
 
 

MEETING DETAILS 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
Tuesday, February 8, 2022 

9:30 AM 
 
 
 

Michael A. Bilandic Building 
160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Printed by authority of the State of Illinois, 2/4/2022, published electronically only 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 1



I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
II. Approval of Agenda

III. Public Comment
IV. Chair's Remarks
V. Message from the Executive Director

VI. Committee Reports
VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items

VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports
IX. Monthly Procurement Report
X. Correction and Approval of Minutes

XI. Other Business
XII. Closed Session

XIII. Adjournment

REGULAR MEETING

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

February 8, 2022
9:30 a.m.

 

Michael A. Bilandic Building
160 North LaSalle Street

Suite S-1000
Chicago, Illinois 60601

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 4



 
 

All meetings will be accessible to handicapped individuals in compliance with Executive Order #5 (1979) as well as 

pertinent State and Federal laws upon notification of anticipated attendance.  Handicapped persons planning to 

attend any meeting and needing special accommodations should contact Mari Money at the Illinois Finance 

Authority by calling (312) 651-1319, TTY (800) 526-0844. 

Thursday, February 3, 2022 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) will hold its regularly scheduled meeting of the 

Members of the Authority in the Authority’s Chicago Office, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-

1000, Chicago, Illinois 60601 on Tuesday, February 8, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. 

 

Due to ongoing health concerns related to the novel COVID-19 virus, members of the public are 

encouraged to attend the regularly scheduled meeting via audio or video conference pursuant to 

the determination and declarations by the Chair attached hereto.  The Audio Conference Number 

is (312) 626-6799 and the Meeting ID is 843 6992 7237 followed by pound (#). When prompted 

for a Participant ID, please press pound (#) and wait for the Password prompt. Upon being 

prompted for a Password, please enter 654007 followed by pound (#). To join the Video 

Conference, use this link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84369927237?pwd=b2VheWJWU2w4eUhZaXB6c1ZXbkJCdz09 

and enter passcode 654007. Guests wishing to comment orally are invited to do so, pursuant to the 

“Guidelines for Public Comment” prescribed by the Authority and posted at www.il-fa.com.  

Guests participating via audio conference who find that they cannot hear the proceedings clearly 

can call (312) 651-1300 or write info@il-fa.com for assistance. Please contact an Assistant 

Secretary of the Board at (312) 651-1300 for more information. 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS  

Tuesday, February 8, 2022 

9:30 AM 

 

AGENDA: 

 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 

II. Approval of Agenda 

III. Public Comments 

IV. Chair’s Remarks 

V. Message from the Executive Director 

VI. Committee Reports 

VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items (see attached) 

VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 

IX. Monthly Procurement Report 

X. Correction and Approval of Minutes 

XI. Other Business 

XII. Closed Session 

XIII. Adjournment 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 5

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84369927237?pwd=b2VheWJWU2w4eUhZaXB6c1ZXbkJCdz09%20
mailto:info@il-fa.com


Call-In: 888-494-4032 3:00 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139# 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

1 The University of Chicago Medical Center Chicago and Harvey (Cook County) $450,000,000  N/A  N/A SP

2 Illinois Institute of Technology Chicago (Cook County) $50,000,000  N/A  N/A RF

Beginning Farmer - Mason Tjelle Dwight Township (Livingston County) $575,400                        -                          -   LK

4 Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC Statewide $200,000,000                        -                          -   BF

$700,575,400                        -                          -   

$700,575,400                        -                          -   

Tab Staff

5 SP

6 SP

7 RF

Conduit Financings

Resolution Authorizing and Approving Amendments to the Bond Trust Indenture relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2017 (Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc.)

GRAND TOTAL

Direct and Alternative Financings

Illinois Finance Authority
February 8, 2022
Page 2

NEW BUSINESS

CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Take Actions to Apply to the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for a Sub-
Allocation of State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI) Funds from the U.S. Department of Treasury and to Establish a Participation Loan Product and 
Other Financial Products Using Such Funds in Furtherance of Climate Bank Purposes, and Other Matters Related Thereto

TOTAL CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

Resolution Authorizing the Amendment and Restatement of the Loan Agreement relating to the $15,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 
2010A (Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers) and Approving Related Matters

RESOLUTIONS

Action

Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

Property Assessed Clean Energy Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

3

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 6



DETERMINATION AND DECLARATIONS BY THE CHAIR OF  

THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY  
 
I, Will Hobert, as the Chair of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), hereby make the following determination 

and declarations: 

THAT the Governor of the State of Illinois issued a Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation on January 07, 2022 (the 

“Disaster Proclamation”) finding that, pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act, a 

disaster exists within the State of Illinois related to public health concerns caused by Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-

19”) and declaring all counties in the State of Illinois as a disaster area, which Proclamation remains in effect for 30 days; 

and 

THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, as amended, I have determined that so 

long as the Disaster Proclamation is effective, including by reason of any reissuance, extension or renewal by the 

Governor of the State of Illinois, an in-person meeting of the Members of the Authority on February 8, 2022, the next 

regularly scheduled meeting of the Authority, would not be practical or prudent because of the disaster declared by the 

Governor; and 

THAT if, on the date of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Members of the Authority, the Disaster Proclamation 

is no longer in effect and there has been no reissuance, renewal or extension thereof, and no delivery of a new 

proclamation by the Governor, the meeting of the Members of the Authority will still occur at the designated location (at 

the Authority’s Chicago Office, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S1000, Chicago, Illinois 60601) provided that the 

required number of Members are able to attend such meeting in person in order to constitute a quorum. However, 

although, members of the public may attend such meeting in person, individuals are strongly encouraged to consider 

attending the meeting remotely to make the in-person meeting as safe as possible.  

THEREFORE if, on the date of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Members of the Authority, the Disaster 

Proclamation is still in effect by reason of a reissuance, renewal or extension, including the delivery of a new 

proclamation by the Governor, the next regular meeting of the Authority scheduled for February 8, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. shall 

be conducted via video and audio conference, without the physical presence of a quorum of the Members, in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, as amended; and 

THAT all Members of the body participating in the meeting, wherever their physical location, shall be verified and can 

hear one another and can hear all discussion and testimony; and 

THAT members of the public present at the regular meeting location of the body can hear all discussion and testimony 

and all votes of the Members of the Authority; any interested member of the public will be provided access to 

contemporaneously hear all discussion, testimony, and roll call votes by telephone via audio conference; and 

THAT regardless of the status of the Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, the Executive Director of the Authority shall 

be physically present at the regular meeting location; and  

THAT meetings of any committees of the Authority held on February 8, 2022 shall also be held in accordance with the 

above practices. 

Signed:      

 

/s/ Will Hobert              February 2, 2022 

Will Hobert, Chair      Date 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 7



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 8



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

IV. CHAIR’S REMARKS 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 9



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

V. MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 10



Executive Director’s message will be distributed separately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 11



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 12



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

VII. PRESENTATION AND 
CONSIDERATION OF NEW BUSINES 

ITEMS 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 13



 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022-0208-CF01 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE BY THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY OF NOT TO EXCEED $450,000,000 AGGREGATE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022 (THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO 

MEDICAL CENTER) IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF 

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, AND 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE THEREOF; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 

AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR MORE BOND TRUST INDENTURES, ONE OR 

MORE LOAN AGREEMENTS, ONE OR MORE BOND PURCHASE 

AGREEMENTS, ONE OR MORE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATES AND 

AGREEMENTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING AND 

APPROVING RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly organized 
and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), 
including, without limitation, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et. seq., as 
supplemented and amended (the “Act”), is authorized by the laws of the State of Illinois, 
including without limitation, the Act, to among other things, finance and refinance the cost of 
“health facilities” owned and operated by “participating health institutions” (as such terms are 
defined in the Act); and 

WHEREAS, The University of Chicago Medical Center, an Illinois not for profit 
corporation (the “Corporation”), wishes to (i) refund all or a portion of (a) the outstanding 
original principal amount $70,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009D (The University of Chicago Medical Center), (b) the outstanding 
original principal amount $70,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009E (The University of Chicago Medical Center), (c) the outstanding 
original principal amount $46,250,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (The University of Chicago Medical Center), (d) the outstanding 
original principal amount $46,250,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (The University of Chicago Medical Center), (e) the outstanding 
original principal amount $46,250,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A (The University of Chicago Medical Center) and (f) the 
outstanding original principal amount $46,250,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate 
Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (The University of Chicago Medical Center) 
(collectively, the “Prior Bonds”); (ii) pay certain payments owed by the Corporation in 
connection with the termination of certain interest rate swap agreements related to the Prior 
Bonds; (iii) pay a portion of the interest on the Series 2022 Bonds, if deemed necessary or 
desirable by the Authority and/or the Corporation; and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in 
connection with the issuance of the Series 2022 Bonds (as hereinafter defined) and the refunding 
of the Prior Bonds, all as permitted by the Act (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”); and  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 14



-2- 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the Act, the Authority wishes to 
finance the Financing Purposes by issuing not to exceed $450,000,000 in aggregate principal 
amount of its revenue bonds in one or more series and designated the Illinois Finance Authority 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the 
“Series 2022 Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, drafts of the following documents have been previously provided to and are 
on file with the Authority, and will be executed and delivered by the Authority (collectively, the 
“Authority Documents”): 

(a) one or more Bond Trust Indentures (collectively, the “Bond Indenture”) 
between the Authority and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., or such other bank or 
trust company as shall be designated by an authorized officer of the Corporation, as bond 
trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), providing for the issuance thereunder of the Series 2022 
Bonds and setting forth the terms and provisions applicable to each series of the Series 
2022 Bonds, including securing each series of the Series 2022 Bonds by an assignment 
thereunder to the Bond Trustee of the Authority’s right, title and interest in and to the 
Series 2022 Obligation (as hereinafter defined) and certain of the Authority’s rights in 
and to the Loan Agreement (as hereinafter defined); 

(b) one or more Loan Agreements (collectively, the “Loan Agreement”) 
between the Authority and the Corporation, under which the Authority will loan the 
proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds to the Corporation, all as more fully described in the 
Loan Agreement;  

 (c) one or more Purchase Contracts (collectively, the “Purchase Contract”) 
among the Authority, the Corporation on its own behalf and as Obligated Group Agent, 
and RBC Capital Markets, LLC and/or such other purchasers as may be approved by the 
Authority (with execution of the Purchase Contract constituting approval by the 
Authority of such other purchasers) and the Corporation (collectively, the “Purchaser”), 
as purchasers of the Series 2022 Bonds, providing for the sale by the Authority and the 
purchase by the Purchaser of the Series 2022 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2022 Bonds, the following 
additional documents will be executed and delivered by parties other than the Authority 
(collectively, the “Additional Transaction Documents”): 

(a) one or more Supplemental Master Trust Indentures, supplementing and 
amending that certain Second Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of 
June 1, 2019, as previously supplemented and amended, among the Corporation, UCM 
Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc., The Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Ingalls 
Home Care, Ingalls Development Foundation (collectively, the “Obligated Group”) and 
Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as successor master trustee, providing for, among 
other things, the issuance thereunder of the Series 2022 Obligation (as hereinafter 
defined); and 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 15



-3- 

(b) one or more Direct Note Obligations, Series 2022 of the Corporation 
which will be pledged as security to the Bond Trustee for the Series 2022 Bonds, in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2022 
Bonds and with prepayment, maturity and interest rate provisions similar to the Series 
2022 Bonds (collectively, the “Series 2022 Obligation”); and 

(c) a Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) and an Official Statement (the “Official Statement”), or a Disclosure 
Document (as defined below) relating to the offering of the Series 2022 Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has adopted a policy requiring bonds without a rating or with a 
rating below investment grade to be sold only to “accredited investors” or “qualified institutional 
buyers” (as such terms are defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission) in minimum 
denominations of at least $100,000, unless a borrower has requested and obtained a waiver of 
such policy from the Authority, which waivers are subject to the satisfaction of certain 
conditions set forth in the policy (the “Credit Rating Policy”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Authority that the Corporation reasonably 
expects that the Series 2022 Bonds will be initially sold to the Purchaser in minimum 
denominations of at least $100,000, and that the Purchaser intends to subsequently sell the Series 
2022 Bonds to certain qualified institutional buyers or accredited investors; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Authority that it reasonably expects that 
after the Series 2022 Bonds are originally issued, (i) the Series 2022 Bonds will receive an 
investment grade rating from one or more of S&P Global Ratings (a rating of BBB- or better), 
Fitch Ratings, Inc. (a rating of BBB- or better) and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (a rating of 
Baa3 or better) (an “Investment Grade Rating”), (ii) one or more official statements or similar 
disclosure documents (collectively, the “Disclosure Document”) will be prepared and distributed 
describing the terms of the Series 2022 Bonds, the security for the Series 2022 Bonds and the 
Obligated Group and (iii) upon receipt of the Investment Grade Rating, Disclosure Document 
and such other deliverables as may be required under the Bond Indenture or the Purchase 
Contract in connection with the receipt of the Investment Grade Rating and the delivery of the 
Disclosure Document, the Bond Indenture will permit the Series 2022 Bonds to be sold to the 
public (investors who are not qualified institutional buyers or accredited investors) in authorized 
denominations of $5,000 or more (the receipt of the Investment Grade Rating, the distribution of 
the Disclosure Document and the receipt of other deliverables as are required under the Bond 
Indenture or the Purchase Contract in connection with the foregoing is collectively referred to 
herein as the “Investment Grade Rating Transaction”);  

WHEREAS, in the event that an Investment Grade Rating is obtained and a Preliminary 
Official Statement or an Official Statement is prepared and distributed prior to the execution of 
the Purchase Contract, the Series 2022 Bonds will be sold to the public in authorized 
denominations of $5,000 or more without restriction in compliance with the Authority’s Credit 
Rating Policy; and  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 16



-4- 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 

Section 1. Findings.  Based upon the representations of the Corporation, the 
Authority hereby makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the 
Corporation, the Series 2022 Bonds to be issued by the Authority and the facilities to be 
refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds: 

(a) The Corporation is a not for profit corporation organized under the laws of 
the State of Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

(b) The Corporation is a “participating health institution” (as defined in the 
Act); 

(c) The Corporation has properly filed with the Authority its request for 
assistance in issuing the Series 2022 Bonds for the benefit of the Corporation or another 
Obligated Group Member and (i) the Series 2022 Bonds will be used for the Financing 
Purposes, and (ii) the facilities to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2022 
Bonds are or will be owned and operated by the Corporation or another Obligated Group 
Member (those facilities are included within the term “project” as defined in the Act); 

(d) The Prior Bonds were issued for purposes that constitute valid purposes 
under the Act, all of the proceeds of the Prior Bonds made available to the Corporation 
were expended to pay, or refinance indebtedness the proceeds of which were expended to 
pay, a portion of the cost of a “project” (as defined in the Act) owned or operated by the 
Corporation or another Obligated Group Member, such refinancing is in the public 
interest, alleviates a financial hardship of the Obligated Group Members and is permitted 
and authorized under the Act; and 

(e) The Series 2022 Bonds are being issued for a valid purpose under and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Section 2. Series 2022 Bonds.  In order to obtain the funds to loan to the Corporation 
to be used for the Financing Purposes aforesaid, the Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of 
the Series 2022 Bonds.  The Series 2022 Bonds shall be issued under and secured by and shall 
have the terms and provisions set forth in the Bond Indenture in an aggregate principal amount 
not exceeding $450,000,000.  The Series 2022 Bonds may be issued in one or more series, of 
which any such series may be issued in two or more subseries, with such additional series or 
subseries designated in such manner as approved by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 
Executive Director, General Counsel or any Assistant Executive Director of the Authority, or 
any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such offices on an 
interim basis (each, an “Authorized Officer”), which approval shall be evidenced by such 
officer’s execution and delivery of the Bond Indenture.  

The Series 2022 Bonds shall mature not later than 40 years from the date of their 
issuance.  The Series 2022 Bonds may be issued as multi-modal bonds, bearing interest at fixed 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 17



-5- 

or variable rates for such periods described in the Bond Indenture (which may include, among 
others, fixed, term, daily, weekly, monthly, annual, multi-annual, short-term or index periods) 
(provided that the Bond Indenture shall provide for a maximum interest rate applicable to the 
Series 2022 Bonds which shall not exceed the lesser of 25% per annum or the maximum interest 
rate permitted by applicable law) and initially at a rate not to exceed 6.0% per annum on the 
original issuance date of the Series 2022 Bonds and as recalculated thereafter from time to time 
in accordance with the terms of the Bond Indenture; and shall be subject to purchase and tender 
and to optional redemption, extraordinary redemption and mandatory bond sinking fund 
redemption and be payable all as set forth in the Bond Indenture.  

The Series 2022 Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons.  
The Series 2022 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual or facsimile 
signature of its Chairperson, its Vice Chairperson, its Executive Director or its Treasurer (or any 
person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such office on an interim 
basis) and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Executive Director, Secretary or 
Assistant Secretary (or any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in 
such office on an interim basis), and may have the corporate seal of the Authority impressed 
manually or printed by facsimile thereon. 

The Series 2022 Bonds shall be issued and sold by the Authority and purchased by the 
Purchaser at an aggregate purchase price of not less than 98% of the aggregate principal amount 
of such Series 2022 Bonds.  The Purchaser shall receive total fees and compensation with respect 
to the purchase of the Series 2022 Bonds, not in excess of 2% of the aggregate principal amount 
of the Series 2022 Bonds. 

The Series 2022 Bonds and the interest thereon shall be limited obligations of the 
Authority, payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived by the Authority pursuant 
to the Loan Agreement (except such income and revenues as may be derived by the Authority 
pursuant to the Unassigned Rights (as defined in the Bond Indenture)).  The Series 2022 Bonds 
and the interest thereon shall never constitute a general obligation or commitment by the 
Authority to expend any of its funds other than (i) proceeds of the sale of the Series 2022 Bonds, 
(ii) the income and revenues derived by the Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the 
Series 2022 Obligation and other amounts available under the Bond Indenture and (iii) any 
money arising out of the investment or reinvestment of said proceeds, income, revenue or 
receipts.   

The Authority hereby delegates to an Authorized Officer, the power and duty to make 
final determinations as to the Prior Bonds to be refunded, the principal amount, number of series 
or subseries of Series 2022 Bonds and any names or other designations therefor, dated date, 
maturities, purchase price, any mandatory sinking fund redemption dates and amounts, optional 
and extraordinary redemption provisions, the Purchaser of the Series 2022 Bonds, the Bond 
Trustee for the Series 2022 Bonds, the interest rates of each series of the Series 2022 Bonds, and 
to approve the final forms of any of the Authority Documents, all within the parameters set forth 
herein. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 18



-6- 

 Section 3. Authority Documents.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve 
the execution (by manual or facsimile signature) by an Authorized Officer, and the delivery, 
performance and use, of the Authority Documents.  The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of 
the Authority is hereby authorized to attest and to affix the official seal of the Authority to any 
Authority Document.  The Authority Documents shall be substantially in the forms previously 
provided to and on file with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as 
shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such 
execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of the terms of the Series 2022 Bonds and the purchase thereof.   

 Section 4.  Additional Transaction Documents.  The Authority does hereby approve 
the execution and delivery of the Additional Transaction Documents.  The Additional 
Transaction Documents shall be in substantially the forms as are approved by an Authorized 
Officer, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the 
Authority’s approval of the final forms of the Additional Transaction Documents. 

 Section 5. Compliance with Credit Rating Policy.  Based on the fact that the 
Corporation reasonably expects that the Series 2022 Bonds will initially be sold to the Purchaser 
and to investors who are qualified institutional buyers or accredited investors in minimum 
denominations of at least $100,000 and that after the Investment Grade Rating Transaction the 
Series 2022 Bonds will have an Investment Grade Rating, the Authority finds that the issuance of 
the Series 2022 Bonds complies with the Authority’s Credit Rating Policy.  In the event that an 
Investment Grade Rating is obtained and a Preliminary Official Statement or an Official 
Statement is prepared and distributed prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the 
Authority hereby approves the sale of the Series 2022 Bonds to the public in authorized 
denominations of $5,000 or more without restriction in compliance with the Authority’s Credit 
Rating Policy. 

 Section 6. Approval of Documents Relating to the Investment Grade Rating 
Transaction.  The Authority does hereby approve the distribution of the Disclosure Document by 
the Purchaser and the Obligated Group Members subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2022 
Bonds as described herein.  The Disclosure Document shall be in the form approved by an 
Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the documents and certificates as required of the 
Authority under the Bond Indenture or the Purchase Contract in order to complete the Investment 
Grade Rating Transaction, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such 
Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the form of the Disclosure 
Document intended for distribution. The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the 
execution (by manual or facsimile signature) by an Authorized Officer, and the delivery, 
performance and use, of any other documents (including supplements to the Bond Indenture and 
the Loan Agreement and delivery of replacement Series 2022 Bonds) deemed necessary to carry 
out the Investment Grade Rating Transaction or to sell the Series 2022 Bonds to new purchasers 
upon the completion of the Investment Grade Rating Transaction. The Authority hereby 
approves the sale of the Series 2022 Bonds in minimum denominations of $5,000, without an 
investor letter, upon the completion of the Investment Grade Rating Transaction and the 
satisfaction of the conditions therefor set forth in the Bond Indenture or the Purchase Contract.      

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 19



-7- 

 Section 7. Distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement.  In the event that the Corporation and an Authorized Officer of the Authority 
determine that it is in the best interest of the Corporation and the Authority to deliver a 
Preliminary Official Statement or an Official Statement prior to the execution of the Purchase 
Contract, the Authority does hereby approve the distribution of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the offering and sale of 
the Series 2022 Bonds.  The Official Statement shall be in substantially the form approved by an 
Authorized Officer by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the Bond Indenture, 
with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the 
Authority’s approval of the final form of the Official Statement. 

 Section 8.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, 
Authorized Officers, officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents (including 
without limitation the execution and delivery of one or more tax exemption agreements, 
supplemental bond indentures, escrow agreements, subscriptions of United States Treasury 
Obligations – State and Local Government Series, interest rate hedge agreements and 
identification certificates or other agreements providing for the payment of the Prior Bonds and 
any additional documents that may be necessary to provide for one or more additional series or 
subseries of Series 2022 Bonds or the completion of the Investment Grade Rating Transaction 
and the acceptance of any continuing disclosure agreement of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 
15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) and any additional agreements, 
certificates, replacement bonds, documents or instruments as may be necessary to carry out and 
comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the Authority Documents, the Additional 
Transaction Documents, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, Authorized Officers, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and 
purposes of these resolutions and within the parameters set forth herein, whether heretofore or 
hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  
Unless otherwise provided therein, wherever in the Authority Documents or any other document 
executed, approved or accepted pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken by the 
Authority, such action shall be taken by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, or in the event 
of the unavailability, inability or refusal of an Authorized Officer to take such action, by any two 
Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, empowered, and delegated the 
power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the Authority, all within the 
parameters set forth herein and in the Bond Indenture. 

 Section 9. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 10. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 11. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 20



-8- 

Approved and effective this 8th day of February, 2022. 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By ____________________________________ 

Executive Director 
ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
                     Assistant Secretary 

[SEAL] 

 

 
Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 21



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022-0208-CF02 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED 

$50,000,000 IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING 

BONDS, SERIES 2022 (ILLINOIS INSTITUTE OF 

TECHNOLOGY), THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH ARE TO BE 

LOANED TO ILLINOIS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, AN 

ILLINOIS NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION. 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been created by the 
Illinois Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.), as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, Illinois Institute of Technology, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the 
“Corporation”), has requested that the Authority issue not to exceed $50,000,000 (excluding 
original issue discount or premium, if any) in aggregate principal amount of revenue bonds 
consisting of one or more series of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Illinois Institute of Technology, 
Series 2022 (the “Bonds”), and loan the proceeds thereof to the Corporation in order to assist the 
Corporation in providing all or a portion of the funds necessary to do any or all of the following: 
to (i) refund all or a portion of the outstanding Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 
2018 (Illinois Institute of Technology) (the “Series 2018 Bonds”), (ii) pay a portion of the 
interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Authority or the Corporation, 
(iii) fund a debt service reserve fund, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Authority or the 
Corporation, and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds 
including the costs of bond insurance or other credit or liquidity enhancement, if any, and certain 
expenses incurred in connection with the refunding of the Series 2018 Bonds (collectively, the 
“Financing Purposes”); and 

WHEREAS, drafts of the following documents have been previously provided to and are 
on file with the Authority (collectively, the “Authority Documents”): 

 (a) a Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) between the Authority and The Bank 
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as bond trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), 
providing for the issuance thereunder of the Bonds and setting forth the terms and 
provisions applicable to the Bonds, including securing such Bonds by an assignment 
thereunder to the Bond Trustee of certain of the Authority’s right, title and interest in and 
to the Note (as hereinafter defined) and certain of the Authority’s rights in and to the 
Loan Agreement (as hereinafter defined); 

 (b) a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) between the Authority and the 
Corporation and under which the Authority will loan the proceeds of the Bonds to the 
Corporation, all as more fully described in the Loan Agreement;  

 (c) a Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) among the 
Corporation, the Authority and such firm or firms of municipal bond underwriters as may 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 22



 - 2 - 

be approved by the Authority (with execution of the Bond Purchase Contract constituting 
approval by the Authority) and the Corporation, including, without limitation, RBC 
Capital Markets, LLC (or an affiliate thereof) and any other underwriter named therein, 
as the underwriter of the Bonds (collectively, the “Underwriters”), providing for the sale 
by the Authority and the purchase by the Underwriters of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the following additional 
documents may be executed and delivered by parties other than the Authority (collectively, the 
“Additional Transaction Documents”): 

 (a) an Official Statement (the “Official Statement”), substantially in the 
form of the draft Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) 
previously provided to the Authority, relating to the offering of the Bonds; 

 (b) one or more Promissory Notes, of the Corporation (collectively, the 
“Note”), which will be pledged to the Authority as security for the Bonds, in a principal 
amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and with prepayment, 
maturity and interest rate provisions similar to the Bonds; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1. Findings.  Based upon the representations of the Corporation, the Authority 
hereby makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the Corporation, the 
Bonds to be issued by the Authority and the facilities to be refinanced with the proceeds of the 
Bonds: 

(a) The Corporation is a not for profit corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

(b) The Corporation is a “private institution of higher education” (as defined 
in the Act) and owns and operates Illinois Institute of Technology in Chicago, Illinois; 

 (c) The Corporation has properly filed with the Authority its request for 
assistance in providing funds to the Corporation and the funds will be used for the 
Financing Purposes, and the facilities to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds 
will be owned and operated by the Corporation, and such facilities are included within 
the terms “educational facilities” and “project” (as defined in the Act); 

 (d) The facilities to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds do not 
include any institution, place or building used or to be used primarily for sectarian 
instruction or study or as a place for devotional activities or religious worship; 

 (e) The indebtedness to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds was 
issued for purposes which constitute valid purposes under the Act, all of the proceeds of 
such indebtedness made available to the Corporation were expended to pay, or refinance 
indebtedness the proceeds of which were expended to pay, a portion of the cost of a 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 23



 - 3 - 

“project” (as defined in the Act) owned or operated by the Corporation, such refinancing 
is in the public interest, is in connection with other financings by the Authority for the 
Corporation and is permitted and authorized under the Act; and  

 (f) The Bonds are being issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

 Section 2. The Bonds.  In order to obtain the funds to loan to the Corporation to be 
used for the Financing Purposes, the Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of the Bonds.  The 
Bonds shall be issued under and secured by and shall have the terms and provisions set forth in 
the Indenture in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $50,000,000, excluding original 
issue discount or premium, if any.  The Bonds may be issued in one or more series, of which any 
such series may be issued in two or more subseries, with such additional series or subseries 
designated in such manner as approved by the Authorized Officer (as defined herein) of the 
Authority, which approval shall be evidenced by such Authorized Officer’s execution and 
delivery of the Indenture.   

 The Bonds shall mature not later than 40 years from the date of their issuance, and shall 
be subject to serial maturities or mandatory bond sinking fund redemption as provided in the 
Indenture, and shall initially bear interest at one or more stated fixed rates not exceeding 6.0% 
per annum.  The Bonds shall be subject to optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary 
redemption and be payable all as set forth in the Indenture. 

The Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons.  The Bonds 
shall be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual or facsimile signature of its 
Chairperson, its Vice Chairperson or its Executive Director (and for purposes of this Resolution, 
any person duly appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise 
authorized to act as provided by resolutions of the Authority) and attested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of its Executive Director, Secretary or any Assistant Secretary or any person 
duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such office on an interim basis, and 
may have the corporate seal of the Authority impressed manually or printed by facsimile thereon. 

The Bonds shall be issued and sold by the Authority and purchased by the Underwriters 
at a purchase price of not less than 98% of the principal amount of the Bonds, excluding any 
original issue discount or premium, if any, plus accrued interest, if any.  The Underwriters shall 
receive total underwriting compensation with respect to the sale of the Bonds, including 
underwriting discount, not in excess of 2% of the principal amount of the Bonds, excluding 
original issue discount or premium, if any, in connection with the sale of the Bonds. 

The Bonds and the interest thereon shall be special, limited obligations of the Authority, 
payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived by the Authority pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement (except such income and revenues as may be derived by the Authority pursuant to the 
Unassigned Rights (as defined in the Indenture)). The Bonds and the interest thereon shall never 
constitute a general obligation or commitment by the Authority to expend any of its funds other 
than (i) proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, (ii) the income and revenues derived by the Authority 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Note and other amounts available under the Indenture 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 24



 - 4 - 

and (iii) any money arising out of the investment or reinvestment of said proceeds, income, 
revenue or receipts.  

The Authority hereby delegates to the Chairperson or the Executive Director of the 
Authority or any other Authorized Officer (as hereinafter defined) the power and duty to make 
final determinations as to the Series 2018 Bonds to be refunded, the principal amount, number of 
series or subseries of Bonds and any names or other designations therefor, dated date, maturities, 
purchase price, any mandatory sinking fund redemption dates and amounts, optional and 
extraordinary redemption provisions, the Underwriters of the Bonds, and the interest rates of 
each series of the Bonds, all within the parameters set forth herein. 

 Section 3. Authority Documents.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve 
the execution (by manual or facsimile signature) by its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive 
Director, or General Counsel, or any person duly appointed by the Members to serve in such 
offices on an interim basis (each an “Authorized Officer”), and the delivery and use of the 
Authority Documents.  The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby 
authorized to attest and to affix the official seal of the Authority to any Authority Document.  
The Authority Documents shall be substantially in the forms previously provided to and on file 
with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes therein (including, without 
limitation, the addition of bond insurance if deemed desirable by the Corporation) as shall be 
approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of any changes or revisions therein from such forms of the Authority Documents and to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of the terms of the Bonds and the purchase thereof. 

 Section 4. Additional Transaction Documents.  The Authority does hereby approve the 
execution and delivery of the Additional Transaction Documents.  The Additional Transaction 
Documents shall be in substantially the forms previously provided to and on file with the 
Authority and hereby approved, with such changes therein as shall be approved by, or in such 
final forms as are approved by, the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the Indenture, 
with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and 
the Authority’s approval of the final forms of the Additional Transaction Documents or any 
changes or revisions therein from such forms of the Additional Transaction Documents. 

 Section 5. Distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement.  The Authority does hereby approve the distribution of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement by the Underwriters in connection with the offering and 
sale of the Bonds.  The Official Statement shall be substantially in the form of the draft 
Preliminary Official Statement provided to and on file with the Authority and hereby approved, 
or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority 
executing the Indenture, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such 
Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the final form of the Official 
Statement. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 25



 - 5 - 

 Section 6. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and 
things and to execute or accept all such documents (including, without limitation, the execution 
and delivery of one or more tax exemption agreements, supplemental bond indentures, escrow 
agreements or other agreements providing for the payment of the Bonds and, any additional 
documents that may be necessary to provide for one or more additional series or subseries of 
Bonds, and documents necessary for the refunding of the Series 2018 Bonds and the acceptance 
of any continuing disclosure agreement of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as may be necessary to carry out and comply with 
the provisions of this Resolution, the Authority Documents and the Additional Transaction 
Documents, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the 
Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions and within 
the parameters set forth herein, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are 
hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, 
wherever in the Authority Documents or any other document executed pursuant hereto it is 
provided that an action shall be taken by the Authority, such action shall be taken by an 
Authorized Officer of the Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of 
an Authorized Officer, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, 
empowered, and delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the 
Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the Indenture. 

 Section 7. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 8. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 9. Effectiveness.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 26



 - 6 - 

 Adopted this 8th day of February, 2022 by vote as follows: 

 Ayes: 

 Nays: 

 Abstain:  

 Absent: 

 Vacant: 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

Executive Director 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
                     Assistant Secretary 

[SEAL] 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 27



Resolution Number 2022-0208-CF03 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF AN AGRICULTURAL 
DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BOND IN THE AMOUNT SPECIFIED HEREIN BY 
THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION OF 

PROPERTY BY THE BORROWER. 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) is authorized, pursuant to 

the Illinois Finance Authority Act in general and Article 830 thereof specifically, 20 ILCS 
3501/801-1 et seq. (the “Act”), to issue agricultural development revenue bonds to finance, 
among other things, (i) Agricultural Facilities, (ii) Agribusinesses and (iii) soil or water 
conservation projects or watershed areas (all as defined or provided for in the Act); and 

 
WHEREAS, Mason Tjelle (the “Borrower”), has submitted an application under the 

Authority’s Beginning Farmer Bond Program to finance the purchase of approximately 72 acres 
of farmland, located in Dwight Township, Livingston County, Illinois (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is willing to (i) issue an Agricultural 

Development Revenue Bond (Tjelle 2022-02-0001) in an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $575,400.00 (the “Bond”) to finance the Project; (ii) having a maturity date not later than 
30 years from the date of the closing date (as defined herein); and (iii) to enter into agreements 
with the Borrower and State Bank of Graymont (the “Lender”) upon terms which will produce 
revenues sufficient to promptly pay the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on the 
Bond, all as set forth in the agreements hereinafter identified; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to authorize the execution of a Loan Agreement (the “Loan 

Agreement”) by and between the Authority and the Borrower in substantially the form used by 
the Authority in previous transactions of this type, with such terms and provisions approved by 
the parties executing the Loan Agreement; the Loan Agreement shall be dated as of date on 
which the Loan Agreement is executed and delivered by the parties thereto (the “Closing Date”); 
pursuant to which Loan Agreement the Authority agrees to lend the Bond proceeds to the 
Borrower, and the Borrower agrees to pay the Authority or its assignee amounts sufficient to 
pay, when due, the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bond and to 
evidence such obligation by executing the Borrower’s Promissory Note to the Authority (the 
“Note”) in the principal amount of $575,400.00 (the “Principal Amount”); and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to authorize the execution of a Lender Loan Agreement (the 

“Lender Loan Agreement”) by and between the Authority and the Lender in substantially the 
form used by the Authority in previous transactions of this type, with such terms and provisions 
approved by the parties executing the Lender Loan Agreement; the Lender Loan Agreement 
shall be dated as of the Closing Date; pursuant to which Lender Loan Agreement  (i) the 
Authority agrees to sell the Bond to the Lender and assign certain of its rights and interests under 
the Loan Agreement and the Note to the Lender and (ii) the Lender agrees to purchase the Bond 
from the Authority;  
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 28



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority 
as follows: 

 
Section 1. That the form, terms and provisions of the proposed Loan Agreement and  

Lender Loan Agreement be, and they are, in all respects, hereby approved; that the Chairperson, 
Vice Chairperson and the Executive Director (or any other person designated in writing by the 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director (each an “Authorized Officer”); are each 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute the Loan Agreement and the Lender Loan 
Agreement on behalf of the Authority, together with such changes as approved by the signatory 
in writing, and to cause these agreements to be delivered to the Borrower and the Lender, 
respectively; that the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to attest to the Loan Agreement and the Lender Loan Agreement on 
behalf of the Authority; and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Loan 
Agreement and the Lender Loan Agreement, the officials, agents and employees of the Authority 
are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to take all acts and to execute all documents 
necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Lender 
Loan Agreement as executed.  

 
Section 2. That the assignment to the Lender of all amounts receivable by the Authority 

under the Loan Agreement and the Note is in all respects approved; provided, however, the 
Authority retains all unassigned rights, particularly rights to indemnification and costs to be paid 
by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement. 

 
Section 3. That the Chairperson Vice Chairperson and the Executive Director are each 

hereby authorized, empowered and directed to cause the Bond to be prepared in the Principal 
Amount; that the Bond will be dated the date of issuance and will be expressed to mature, bear 
interest, pay a premium and be repaid as provided in the Bond and the Lender Loan Agreement. 
The Bond will be payable in such medium of payment and at such place, subject to such terms of 
redemption and containing such other terms and provisions as will be specified in the Loan 
Agreement and Lender Loan Agreement as executed and delivered.  

 
Section 4. That the form, terms and provisions of the Bond be, and the same hereby are, 

in all respects approved; that the Bond in substantially the form used by the Authority in 
previous transactions of this type, with such terms and provisions approved by the parties 
executing the Bond; the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and the Executive Director are each 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute the Bond, either by manual or facsimile 
signature, on behalf of the Authority and to cause it to be delivered to the Lender as the initial 
purchaser of the Bond; that the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to attest to, either by manual or facsimile signature, the 
Bond on behalf of the Authority; and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Bond, 
the officials, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all acts and to execute all documents necessary to carry out and comply with the 
provisions of the Bond. 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 29



 Section 5. That the Executive Director is hereby authorized, empowered and directed 
to issue and sell the Bond to the Lender in the Principal Amount as provided in the Lender Loan 
Agreement, at a price of 100% of the Principal Amount thereof. 

 
Section 6. That all acts of the Executive Director and any other officer of the Authority 

which are in conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the 
issuance and sale of the Bond and the financing of the Project be, and the same hereby are, in all 
respects, approved and confirmed. 

 
Section 7. That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and 

if any section, phrase or provision shall, for any reason, be declared to be invalid, such declaration 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, or provisions hereof. 

 
Section 8. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the 

Members of the Authority. 
 
Passed, approved and filed in the records of the Illinois Finance Authority on February 8, 

2022.      
 
Ayes:   
Nays:  
Abstain:  
Absent:  
Vacancy:  

 
 
 
Approved: 

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
  Title: Executive Director 
 
  
 
 
________________________________ 
           Assistant Secretary 

  (SEAL) 
 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 30



RESOLUTION No. 2022-0208-CF04 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE IN ONE OR MORE SERIES OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $200,000,000 IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY TAXABLE PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY REVENUE BONDS FOR 
PURCHASE BY COUNTERPOINTE SUSTAINABLE REAL ESTATE LLC OR ITS 
DESIGNATED TRANSFEREE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and exists 
under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.) (the “Act”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized pursuant to the Act in general and Article 825 thereof 

specifically, and further authorized in Section 35(a) of the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (50 ILCS 
50/5) (the “PACE Act”) to issue revenue bonds to finance, among other things, “PACE Projects” (as 
defined or provided for in the Act); 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the PACE Act, governmental units (as defined in the PACE Act) may 
create a property assessed clean energy program (a “PACE Program”) within their respective 
jurisdictional boundaries known as a “PACE area” (as defined in the PACE Act, each a “PACE Area” 
hereunder), and may further delegate the administration of such PACE Program to a program 
administrator (a “Program Administrator”);  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PACE Act, a “record owner” (as defined in the PACE Act, and a 
“Record Owner” hereunder) of “property” (as defined in the PACE Act) within a PACE Area may apply 
to a governmental unit or its Program Administrator for funding to finance or refinance certain “energy 
projects” (as defined in the PACE Act, and “PACE Projects” as defined in the Act, which are hereafter 
defined as “Energy Projects”) and that the governmental unit may impose an assessment under a PACE 
Program pursuant to the terms of the recorded assessment contract (“Assessment Contract”) with the 
Record Owner of the property to be assessed; 

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the PACE Act to issue property assessed clean 
energy revenue bonds (“PACE Bonds”) or provide a warehouse fund, in each case to provide liquidity for 
the financing or refinancing of certain Energy Projects for Record Owners that have complied with the 
requirements of the PACE Act and the rules and guidelines of a PACE Program administered on behalf of 
or at the discretion of a governmental unit by a Program Administrator;  
 

WHEREAS, Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(the “Capital Provider”) wishes to purchase PACE Bonds, or have such PACE Bonds purchased by its 
designated transferee, secured by Assessment Contracts related to one or more PACE Programs 
administered on behalf of or at the direction of one or more governmental units by the related Program 
Administrator; 

 
WHEREAS, such PACE Bonds shall be issued pursuant to one or more Master Indentures (each 

a “Master Indenture”) among the Authority, the applicable Program Administrator (if required by the 
scope of duties of the Program Administrator under the applicable PACE Program), the Capital Provider, 
and a bank or other financial institution selected by the Capital Provider or the applicable Program 
Administrator to serve as bond trustee (a “Bond Trustee”), setting out the parameters, terms and 
conditions pursuant to which a series of PACE Bonds may be issued pursuant to an Issuance Certificate 
(an “Issuance Certificate”) among the Authority, the applicable Program Administrator (if required as 
aforesaid), the Capital Provider, the applicable Bond Trustee, and an applicable servicer (if any); and 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 31



 
WHEREAS, PACE Bonds shall be secured by certain related Assessment Contracts assigned to 

the Authority by the applicable governmental unit (acting at the direction of the applicable Program 
Administrator or the Capital Provider) pursuant to an Assignment Agreement (an “Assignment 
Agreement” and together with the applicable Master Indenture and the related Issuance Certificate, the 
“PACE Bond Documents”), executed by the Authority and the applicable governmental unit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Bonds.  In order to obtain the funds to loan to certain Record Owners party to Assessment 
Contracts to be used for the purposes of financing or refinancing Energy Projects, the Authority hereby 
authorizes the issuance of PACE Bonds subject to the terms and conditions set forth in one or more 
Master Indentures and the related Issuance Certificate(s) in substantially the form attached to such Master 
Indenture, along with the execution and delivery of Master Indentures and related Issuance Certificates in 
substantially the forms previously provided to and on file with the Authority, and with such changes as 
are permitted by Section 2 hereof.  PACE Bonds shall be issued, executed and delivered under and 
secured by applicable Assessment Contracts (“Assigned Contracts”) assigned to the Authority pursuant to 
one or more Assignment Agreements, and shall have the terms and provisions set forth in the applicable 
Master Indenture and an applicable Issuance Certificate, subject to the following limitations: 
 
(a) the aggregate principal amount of PACE Bonds that may be issued pursuant to one or more 

Master Indentures and any related Issuance Certificates and purchased by the Capital Provider as 
“Initial Purchaser” (as defined in the applicable Master Indenture) or its “Designated Transferee” 
(as defined and identified and identified in any related Issuance Certificate) collectively, the 
“PACE Bond Purchaser”) shall not exceed $200,000,000;  
 

(b) the PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser may be issued in one or more series, of 
which any such series may be issued in two or more subseries, with such additional series or 
subseries designated in such manner as approved by an Authorized Officer (as defined herein) of 
the Authority, which approval shall be evidenced by such Authorized Officer’s execution and 
delivery of a Master Indenture and applicable Issuance Certificate; 
 

(c) no PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall have a maturity later than 40 years 
from the date of their issuance or such shorter period set forth in the applicable Master Indenture 
securing such PACE Bonds, provided the PACE Bonds may be subject to serial maturities or 
mandatory bond sinking fund redemptions as provided in the applicable Master Indenture and 
applicable Issuance Certificate pursuant to which PACE Bonds are issued;  
 

(d) no PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall bear interest at stated rates exceeding 
20.00% per annum;   
 

(e) no PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall be issued pursuant to a Master 
Indenture and a related Issuance Certificate after the date that is three (3) years after the date of 
approval of this Resolution without further authorization to act as provided by one or more 
resolutions of the Authority; 
 

(f) PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall be subject to optional, mandatory and 
extraordinary redemption and be payable all as set forth in the applicable Master Indenture and 
the applicable Issuance Certificate;  
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 32



(g) PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall be issued only as fully registered bonds 
without coupons;   
 

(h) PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall be executed on behalf of the Authority 
by the manual or facsimile signature of its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director 
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, or 
any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such office on an interim 
basis, and may have the corporate seal of the Authority impressed manually or printed by 
facsimile thereon; and 
 

(i) PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser shall be issued by the Authority for the 
consideration set forth in the applicable Master Indenture and applicable Issuance Certificate at 
par value. 

 
Any PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser issued pursuant to a Master Indenture and any 
applicable Issuance Certificate and the interest thereon shall be limited obligations of the Authority, 
payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived by the Authority pursuant to the Assigned 
Contracts and certain amounts on deposit with the applicable Bond Trustee under the applicable Master 
Indenture.  PACE Bonds for sale to the PACE Bond Purchaser issued pursuant to a Master Indenture and 
any applicable Issuance Certificate and the interest thereon shall never constitute a general obligation or 
commitment by the Authority to expend any of its funds other than (i) proceeds of the sale of such PACE 
Bonds, (ii) the income and revenues derived by the Authority pursuant to Assigned Contracts and other 
amounts available under the applicable Master Indenture and any applicable Issuance Certificate and (iii) 
any money arising out of the investment or reinvestment of said proceeds, income, revenue or receipts. 
 
The Authority hereby delegates to the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director of the 
Authority or any other Authorized Officer (as hereinafter defined), the power and duty to make final 
determinations as to the PACE Bonds to be issued and sold to the PACE Bond Purchaser, including but 
not limited to, the principal amount, number of series or subseries of such PACE Bonds and any names or 
other designations therefor, dated date, maturities, purchase price, any mandatory sinking fund 
redemption dates and amounts, optional and extraordinary redemption provisions, and the interest rates of 
each series or subseries of such PACE Bonds, each series or subseries of which may be issued or sold on 
separate dates pursuant to separate Master Indentures and related Issuance Certificates, and further to 
issue, execute and deliver such PACE Bonds pursuant to a Master Indenture and related Issuance 
Certificate, all within the parameters set forth herein. 
 
Section 2.  PACE Bond Documents.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution 
(by manual or facsimile signature) by its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, or General 
Counsel, or any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such offices on an 
interim basis (each an “Authorized Officer”), and the delivery and use, of the PACE Bond Documents and 
any amendments, supplements, modifications and waivers with respect to the Assigned Contracts 
(together with the PACE Bond Documents, the “PACE Program Documents”).  The Secretary or any 
Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby authorized to attest and to affix the official seal of the 
Authority to any PACE Program Document.  The definitive PACE Program Documents shall be 
substantially in the forms previously provided to and on file with the Authority, or with such changes 
therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such 
execution and delivery to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the 
Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from such forms of the PACE Program 
Documents and to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the 
Authority’s approval of the terms of any PACE Bonds issued pursuant to the PACE Program Documents 
and the purchase thereof. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 33



 
Section 3.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, agents and 
employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and things and to 
execute or accept all such documents (including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of one or 
more supplemental bond indentures, escrow agreements, servicing agreements, or other agreements 
providing for the security and/or payment of the PACE Bonds and any additional documents that may be 
necessary to provide for one or more additional series or subseries of PACE Bonds) as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the PACE Program Documents, and all 
of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions and within the parameters set forth herein, 
whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and 
approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, wherever in the PACE Program Documents or any other 
document executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken by the Authority, such 
action shall be taken by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, 
inability or refusal of an Authorized Officer, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby 
authorized, empowered, and delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of 
the Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the PACE Program Documents. 
 
Section 4.  Severability.  The provisions of this PACE Bond Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, 
such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of 
this PACE Bond Resolution. 
 
Section 5.  Conflicts.   All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 6.  Effectiveness.  This PACE Bond Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its passage, as by law provided. 

Adopted and effective this 8th day of February, 2021:  
 
Ayes:  
 
Nays:  
 
Abstain:  
 
Absent: 
 
Vacancy:  

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By  ______________________________________  

Executive Director 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 

       Assistant Secretary 
[SEAL] 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 34



 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-0208-CF05 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE 

BOND TRUST INDENTURE RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017 (COVENANT 
RETIREMENT COMMUNITIES, INC.). 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and 
exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its Illinois Finance Authority Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc.) in the original  
aggregate principal amount of $52,070,000 (the “Bonds”) pursuant to the Bond Trust Indenture 
dated as of February 1, 2017, as supplemented and amended by the First Supplemental Bond 
Trust Indenture dated as of October 1, 2019 (together, the “Existing Bond Indenture”), each 
between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as bond trustee, the proceeds of which were 
loaned to Covenant Living Communities and Services, f/k/a Covenant Retirement Communities, 
Inc., an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Borrower”), pursuant to the Loan Agreement 
dated as of February 1, 2017 (the “Loan Agreement”) between the Authority and the Borrower; 
and 

WHEREAS, all of the Bonds were purchased by Banc of America Public Capital Corp 
(the “Purchaser”) and currently bear interest at a rate equal to the LIBOR Index Rate (as defined 
in the Existing Bond Indenture) which is determined according to a formula which includes, 
among other things, a percentage of the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a credit 
spread; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds bear interest at the LIBOR Index Rate until a Mandatory Tender 
Date (as defined in the Existing Bond Indenture) of December 1, 2029; and 

WHEREAS, due to the cessation of LIBOR tenors, in part, and the forthcoming 
cessation of the remaining LIBOR tenors prior to the Mandatory Tender Date, the Borrower and 
the Purchaser wish to change the market index that is used to determine the interest rate on the 
Bonds from LIBOR to the Bloomberg Short Term Bank Yield Index (“BSBY”), administered by 
Bloomberg Index Services Limited, by amending the definitions of the Existing Bond Indenture, 
changing references to certain defined terms in the Existing Bond Indenture and permitting the 
execution of indentures supplemental to the Existing Bond Indenture, in each case, to implement 
the change from LIBOR to BSBY or any other alternative market index (collectively, the 
“Amendments”); and   

WHEREAS, Section 902 of the Existing Bond Indenture permits the Amendments upon 
the consent of the holders of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the requested approval of the Amendments, a 
supplement to the Existing Bond Indenture (the “Supplemental Bond Indenture”) and a 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 35



replacement Bond will be prepared along with any additional documents (including a tax 
certificate required in connection with a deemed tax reissuance of the Bonds) necessary or 
appropriate in order to implement the Amendments described herein (the “Amendment 
Instruments”), and will be executed and delivered by the Authority in order to evidence the 
Authority’s approval of the Amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser will certify under the Amendment Instruments that it is the 
sole holder of the Bonds and will consent to the Amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower will represent and certify under the Amendment Instruments 
that it is not in default under the Loan Agreement and the Members of the Obligated Group are 
not in default under the Master Indenture (as such terms are defined in the Existing Bond 
Indenture) and will consent to the Amendments by executing the Amendment Instruments; and  

WHEREAS, a draft of the Supplemental Bond Indenture describing the Amendments 
has been previously provided to the Authority and is on file with the Authority;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 

 Section 1.  Approval of Amendments. The Authority does hereby approve the 
Amendments.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution (by manual or 
facsimile signature) by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, General Counsel, 
or any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such offices on an 
interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by resolutions of the Authority (each an 
“Authorized Officer”) and the delivery and use of the Amendment Instruments.  The Secretary 
or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby authorized to attest, and may affix the 
official seal of the Authority to the Amendment Instruments.  The Amendment Instruments shall 
be substantially in the form of the Amendment Instruments approved by the Authorized Officer 
of the Authority executing the Amendment Instruments (including the form of the Supplemental 
Bond Indenture previously provided to and on file with the Authority with such changes therein 
as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer executing the Supplemental Bond Indenture), 
with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and 
the Authority’s approval of the Amendment Instruments. 

 Section 2.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such 
acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and 
comply with the provisions of these resolutions, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and 
purposes of these resolutions and within the parameters set forth herein, whether heretofore or 
hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved, 
including, but not limited to, amending other provisions of the Existing Bond Indenture to 
change the market index that is used to determine the interest rate on the Bonds from LIBOR to 
BSBY with the consent of the Purchaser and the Borrower.  Unless otherwise provided therein, 
wherever in any document executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 36



by the Authority, such action shall be taken by the Executive Director or the Treasurer of the 
Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of the Executive Director or 
the Treasurer to act, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, 
empowered and delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the 
Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the applicable document. 

 Section 3. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 4. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. Effectiveness.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided.  

 Section 6.  Continued Effectiveness of the Prior Approving Resolution.  This 
resolution shall be and is intended to be in all cases a ratification of the authority granted under 
Resolution No. 2016-1208-HC04, approving the original issuance of the Bonds, as supplemented 
under Resolution No. 2019-1008-CF09 (together, the “Prior Approving Resolution”).  
Notwithstanding anything set forth herein, the Prior Approving Resolution shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 37



Adopted and effective this 8th day of February, 2022:  

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstain:  

Absent:  
       ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
  ____________________________________ 

Executive Director 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 

Assistant Secretary 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 38



 

RESOLUTION 2022-0208-CF06 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT 

OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE $15,000,000 ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2010A (SILVER 

CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS) AND APPROVING 

RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been created by the 
Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority previously issued its $15,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority 
Revenue Bond, Series 2010A (Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers) (the “Series 2010A 
Bond”) pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2010, as previously 
supplemented and amended (the “Loan Agreement”), among the Authority, Silver Cross Hospital 
and Medical Centers (the “Corporation”) and PNC Bank, National Association (the 
“Purchaser”); and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2010A Bond was directly purchased in the principal amount of 
$15,000,000, of which $9,335,000 remains outstanding, and bears interest at a variable rate of 
interest based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) for an initial term ending 
December 1, 2022, with reset provisions thereafter; and 

WHEREAS, due to the cessation of LIBOR tenors, in part, and the forthcoming cessation 
of the remaining LIBOR tenors, the Corporation and the Purchaser have requested the Authority 
amend the Loan Agreement to change the market index that is used to determine the interest rate 
on the Series 2010A Bond from LIBOR to the Bloomberg Short Term Bank Yield Index 
(“BSBY”), administered by Bloomberg Index Services Limited (the “Market Index 
Amendment”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation and the Purchaser have also requested that the Authority 
amend the Loan Agreement in order to amend (1) certain other interest rate provisions in 
addition to the Market Index Amendment, (2) the Tender Date (as defined in the Loan 
Agreement) for the Series 2010A Bond to a date mutually acceptable to the Corporation and the 
Purchaser and (3) certain standard provisions of the Loan Agreement to conform to the 
Authority’s current requirements (collectively with the Market Index Amendment, the 
“Amendments”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the requested approval of the Amendments, an amendment 
and restatement to the Loan Agreement (the “Amended and Restatement Loan Agreement”), 
including the form of a replacement Series 2010A Bond, will be prepared along with any 
additional documents (including a tax certificate required in connection with a deemed tax 
reissuance of the Series 2010A Bond) necessary or appropriate in order to implement the 
Amendments described herein (the “Amendment Instruments”), and will be executed and 
delivered by the Authority in order to evidence the Authority’s approval of the Amendments; and 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 39



 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, a draft of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement has been previously 
provided to the Authority and is on file with the Authority; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1. Amendments.  The Authority does hereby approve the Amendments.  The 
Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution (by manual or facsimile signature) by 
the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, General Counsel, or any person duly 
appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such offices on an interim basis (each an 
“Authorized Officer”) and the delivery and use of the Amendment Instruments.  The Secretary 
or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby authorized to attest, and may affix the 
official seal of the Authority to the Amendment Instruments.  The Amendment Instruments shall 
be substantially in the form of the Amendment Instruments approved by the Authorized Officer 
of the Authority executing the Amendment Instruments (including the forms of the Amended 
and Restated Loan Agreement and the replacement Series 2010A Bond previously provided to 
and on file with the Authority with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized 
Officer executing the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement), with such execution to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of the Amendment Instruments. 

 Section 2. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and 
things and to execute or accept all such documents (including, without limitation, the 
Amendment Instruments) as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of 
these resolutions, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees 
of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions and 
within the parameters set forth herein, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and 
are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, 
wherever in any document executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken 
by the Authority, such action shall be taken by the Executive Director or the Treasurer of the 
Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of the Executive Director or 
the Treasurer to act, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, 
empowered and delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the 
Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the applicable document. 

 Section 3. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 4. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. Effectiveness.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 40



 - 3 - 

 Section 6.  Continued Effectiveness of the Prior Approving Resolution.  This resolution 
shall be and is intended to be in all cases a ratification of the authority granted under Resolution 
No. 2010-1109-HC10, approving the original issuance of the Series 2010A Bond, as 
supplemented under Resolution No. 2018-0612-TE08 (together, the “Prior Approving 
Resolution”).  Notwithstanding anything set forth herein, the Prior Approving Resolution shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

Adopted and effective this 8th day of February, 2022:  

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstain:  

Absent:  
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By ____________________________________ 

Executive Director 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Assistant Secretary 
 
 
[SEAL] 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 41



IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2022-0208-DA07 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO TAKE ACTIONS TO APPLY TO THE 

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND 

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR A SUB-ALLOCATION OF 

STATE SMALL BUSINESS CREDIT INITIATIVE (“SSBCI”) 

FUNDS FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE 

TREASURY AND TO ESTABLISH A PARTICIPATION LOAN 

PRODUCT AND OTHER FINANCIAL PRODUCTS USING 

SUCH FUNDS IN FURTHERANCE OF CLIMATE BANK 

PURPOSES,  AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO  

WHEREAS, Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et 
seq. (the “Act”) grants the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) “all the powers as a body 
corporate necessary and convenient to accomplish the purposes of the Act”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Climate and Equitable Jobs Act (Public Act 102-0662, eff. 
September 15, 2021) and the Authority’s resulting designation as the “Climate Bank” (20 ILCS 
3501/805-5 (f) (new); 20 ILCS 3501/850-5 (new)), the focus of the Authority’s new SSBCI 
Participation Loan Product will be “to aid in all respects with providing financial assistance, 
programs, and products to finance and otherwise develop and implement equitable clean energy 
opportunities in the State to mitigate or adapt to the negative consequences of climate change in 
an equitable manner” and “reflective of the geographic, racial, ethnic, gender, and income-level 
diversity of the State”, and among other purposes under the Act, to drive investment of private 
capital into other focused technology-based companies that expand access to clean energy, clean 
and drinking water, technologies, including but not limited to broadband, in a manner reflective 
of the geographic, racial, ethnic, gender, and income-level diversity of the State; and 

WHEREAS, Section 801-30(a) of the Act specifically authorizes the Authority “to enter 
into loans, contracts, agreements and mortgages in any manner connected with any of its 
corporate purposes”; and  

WHEREAS, Section 801-30(f) of the Act specifically empowers the Authority to “have 
and exercise all powers . . . otherwise necessary to effectuate the purposes of” the Act; and  

WHEREAS, Section 801-40(i) of the Act grants the Authority the power “to make loans to 
persons to finance a project, to enter into loan agreements with respect thereto, and to accept 
guarantees from persons on its loans or the resultant evidences of obligations of the Authority”; 
and  

WHEREAS, Section 850-10(c)(1) of the Act and Section 850-10(d) of the Act permit the 
Authority to enter into joint ventures and to finance working capital; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an invitation from the Illinois Department of Commerce and 
Economic Opportunity (“DCEO”) on January 3, 2022, the Authority wishes to apply for a sub-
allocation of SSBCI Funds awarded to the State, from the U.S. Department of the Treasury 
(“UST”) through DCEO as the primary  allocatee of funds under the State Small Business Credit 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 42



Initiative (“SSBCI”) of the Small Jobs Act of 2010, to enable the Authority to implement a new 
SSBCI-funded Participation Loan Product (the new “SSBCI Participation Loan Product”); and 

WHEREAS, the UST’s 10-year target is for allocatees to generate $10 of private 
investment for every $1 of SSBCI Funds deployed; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority’s new SSBCI Participation Loan Product would seek to provide 
financial assistance to support through a mix of loan and credit facilities, including but not 
limited to Authority/private sector financial institution participation loans of varying terms of up 
to 10 years, and Authority/private sector financial institution revolving lines of credit and other 
such financial products as permitted by UST SSBCI and the Act; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority intends that the SSBCI Participation Loan Product be managed 
pursuant to all UST SSBCI rules and regulations and be separate and apart from the Authority’s 
Participation Loan Product authorized pursuant to Resolution  No. 2018-0208-AD06; and 

WHEREAS, pursuing the development of the SSBCI Participation Loan Product will be 
consistent with the Authority’s objectives of attaining revenue diversification subject to 
generating revenues sufficient to assure cost recovery; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority 
as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein  

Section 2.  Ratification and Approval.  The Authority hereby ratifies and approves all 
actions taken by the Executive Director, including without limitation the execution of any 
application or documents, to apply to DCEO for a Sub-Allocation of SSBCI Funds from the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury and to establish an SSBCI Participation Loan Product and other 
Financial Products using such Funds in furtherance of Climate Bank purposes and related 
matters.   

Section 3. Enactment. This Resolution shall take immediate effect. If any section, 
paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any 
reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect 
any of the remaining provisions of the Resolution.  

Section 4. Further Actions. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, empowered 
and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver all 
documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry out and comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and doings of the Executive 
Director of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this 
Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and the same are hereby in all 
respects ratified, confirmed and approved. All prior and future acts and doings of the officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority that are in conformity with the purposes and intent of this 
Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and performance of the Resolution shall be and 
the same hereby are in all respects approved and confirmed.  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 43



Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
Resolution.  

Section 6. Conflicts. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are 
hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict.  

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 44



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

VIII. PRESENTATION AND 
CONSIDERATION OF FINANCIAL 

REPORTS 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 45



 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
* Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools.  For most other governmental entities, it establishes fair value 
standards for investments in (a) participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment pools, (c) open-end mutual funds, 
(d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values.   

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
Date:  February 8, 2022  
   
To: William Hobert, Chair Roger Poole 
 Peter Amaro Timothy Ryan 
 Drew Beres Eduardo Tobon 
 James J. Fuentes Jennifer Watson 
 Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler 
 Roxanne Nava Jeffrey Wright 
 George Obernagel Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Ximena Granda, Manager of Finance and Administration  
 
Subject: Presentation of Forecast Revenues, Expenses and Net Income from February 1, 2022 

through April 30, 2022 
 
**All information is preliminary and unaudited. 
 

1. COST THE AUHTORITY DOES NOT CONTROL, STATE MANDATED 
 
The Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”) is under constitutional and statutory mandates to complete 
an annual Financial Audit and a biannual Compliance Examination occurring every two years. The total 
estimated audit expense is approximately $290 thousand for Fiscal Year 2022.  Adding staff time which is 
approximately 25% of the annual salary including benefits is about $250 thousand, bringing the total cost 
for our external audit to be over $500 thousand.   The Authority is currently viewed as a Tier 4 Risk 
Agency and approximately six thousand hours to complete the external audit.  In the coming year the 
Authority will have to hire a full-time internal auditor.  The all-in cost for the internal auditor including 
benefits is approximately $187 thousand. Which add an additional cost to the Authority.  Additional cost 
mandated to the Authority is in the area of Information Technology.  Estimated additional cost is $50 
thousand.  The Authority is required to submit various reports to the Office of the Comptroller.  These 
reports include C-08 and C-05 forms, Quarterly financial reporting, GAAP Package and other 
miscellaneous reports.  The estimated all in cost for this function area is $100 thousand.    
 

2. GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME 
 
 
a. Forecast Annual Revenues of $2.3 million are $878 thousand or 27.9% lower than budget primarily 

due to lower than expected closing fees and net interest and investment income.  Forecast closing fees 
of $1.7 million are $648 thousand or 27.0% lower than budget.  Forecast annual fees of $156 
thousand are $4 thousand lower than budget.  Forecast administrative service fees of $96 thousand are 
$20 thousand higher than budget.  Forecast application fees of $18 thousand are $7 thousand lower 
than budget.  Forecast accrued interest income from loans in connection with the former Illinois Rural 
Bond Bank local government borrowers and other loans totaled $324 thousand (which has 
represented a declining asset since 2014).  Net investment income position is $-72 thousand for the 
fiscal year which is $280 thousand lower than budget.* 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 46



 
 

2 
 

 
b. Forecast closing fees and Administrative Service Fees from February 1, 2022 through April 30, 

2022 are $447 thousand which is $294 thousand lower than the 3-month budgeted amount of $741 
thousand.  
 

c. Forecast Annual Expenses of $2.8 million are $175 thousand or 5.8% lower than budget, which has 
been mostly driven by below budget spending on employee-related expenses.  Forecast employee-
related expenses of $1.6 million are $328 thousand or 17.2% lower than budget.  Forecast 
professional services expenses of $828 thousand are $179 thousand or 27.5% higher than budget.  
Forecast annual occupancy costs of $158 thousand are 2.3% higher than budget while forecast general 
and administrative costs of $255 thousand are 11.1% lower than budget.  The forecast Depreciation 
Expense totals $15 thousand.  

 
d. Forecast operating expenses from February 1, 2022, through April 30, 2022 of $837 thousand are 

$66 thousand lower than the 3-month budgeted amount of $903 thousand.  
 

e. Total forecast 3-Month Net loss of $278 thousand was primarily attributable to lower than budgeted 
closing fees and lower operating expenses.  
 

f. Total forecast Annual Net Loss of $563 thousand was due to lower than budgeted operating 
revenues and net interest and investment income.  
 

3. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
 
The Assets, Liabilities and Net Position for the General Operating fund will be provided at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the Authority.  
 

4. ALL FUNDS-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
 
The Assets, Liabilities and Net Position for all other funds will be provided at the end of the next 
quarterly reporting period.  
 

5. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES  
 
The Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Audit Examination was released by the Office of the Auditor General on 
December 21, 2021.  The Special Assistant Auditors RSM US LLP, for the Auditor General expressed an 
unmodified opinion on the Authority’s basic financial statements.  The Two-Year Compliance 
Examination for Fiscal Year 2020 and Fiscal Year 2021 each remain in progress and is in the final stages. 
The Authority anticipates the report to be completed by the end of February.   
 
 
On January 27, 2022, the Authority and the Bureau of Internal Audit met to discuss the entrance 
conference for the Revenues, Receivable and Receipts and Locally Held Funds audits.  These audits are 
underway and at this time nothing to report.  
 

6. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
 
The Fiscal Year Comparison of Bonds Issued, the Fiscal Year 2022 Bonds Issued, and the Schedule of 
Debt will not available until further notice.  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 47



 
 

3 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Ximena Granda 
Manager of Finance and Administration 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 48



 JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN 
 Forecast 
Feb -April 

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL 

YEAR TO 
DATE 

BUDGET 

BUDGET 
VARIANCE 

($) 

BUDGET 
VARIANCE 

(%)
Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 334,346$      294,245$      53,580$     255,838$  6,169$      241,958$    127,355$  434,000$   1,747,491$ 2,395,000$  (647,509)$   -27.0%
Annual Fees 15,432          12,786          17,279      14,320     14,942     17,279       17,781     48,000       157,819    161,417      (3,598)        -2.2%
Administrative Service Fees -                    25,000          -                18,000     3,000       12,000       25,000     13,000       96,000      75,950        20,050       26.4%
Application Fees 1,000            2,100            2,100        2,000       2,000       1,100         2,100       6,000         18,400      25,000        (6,600)        -26.4%
Miscellaneous Fees 240               -                    107           -               104           -                451           -              451            0.0%
Interest Income-Loans 34,601          14,628          36,974      35,627     28,833     39,381       44,258     90,000       324,302    283,750      40,552       14.3%
Other Revenue 91                 91                 245           89            86            85              85             240            1,012        2,500          (1,488)        -59.5%
Total Operating Revenue: 385,710$      348,850$      110,285$   325,874$  55,030$    311,803$    216,683$  591,240$   2,345,475$ 2,943,617$  (598,142)$   -20.3%

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 164,845$      163,344$      166,301$   159,629$  150,256$  145,192$    156,954$  474,000$   1,580,521$ 1,908,702$  (328,181)$   -17.2%
Professional Services 67,261          91,939          79,339      75,615     122,463   80,176       77,199     234,000     827,992    649,167      178,825     27.5%
Occupancy Costs 15,676          15,851          15,723      15,988     16,332     15,723       15,112     47,316       157,721    154,167      3,554         2.3%
General & Administrative 29,222          25,073          24,409      25,767     23,800     24,610       24,717     77,193       254,791    286,667      (31,876)      -11.1%
Depreciation and Amortization 1,529            1,529            1,529        1,529       1,529       1,529         1,529       4,587         15,290      12,500        2,790         22.3%
Total Operating Expense 278,533$      297,736$      287,301$   278,528$  314,380$  267,230$    275,511$  837,096$   2,836,315$ 3,011,203$  (174,888)$   -5.8%

Operating Income(Loss) 107,177$      51,114$        (177,016)$  47,346$    (259,350)$ 44,573$      (58,828)$   (245,856)$  (490,840)$  (67,586)$      (423,254)$   -626.2%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) -$              -$              -$           -$          -$          -$            -$           -$          -$           -$            n/a
Bad Debt Adjustments (Expense) -                    -                    -                -              -                 0.0%
Interest and Investment Income* 28,366          73,152          34,700      30,799     28,026     23,360       19,385     49,000       286,788    208,333      78,455       37.7%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Inves (5,914)           (2,863)           (2,282)       (1,362)      (858)         (3,207)        (1,676)      (6,000)       (24,162)     -              (24,162)      n/a
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Inves (34,434)         (37,599)         (35,567)     (32,332)    (36,779)    (34,042)      (48,538)    (75,000)     (334,291)   -                  (334,291)    n/a
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) (11,982)$       32,690$        (3,149)$      (2,895)$     (9,611)$     (13,889)$     (30,829)$   (32,000)$   (71,665)$    208,333$     (279,998)$   -134.4%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 95,195$        83,804$        (180,165)$  44,451$    (268,961)$ 30,684$      (89,657)$   (277,856)$  (562,505)$  140,747$     (703,252)$   n/a

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds -$              -$              -$           -$          -$          -$           -$             -                 0.0%
Transfers out to other funds -                    -                    -                -               -               -                -                  -                 0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) -$              -$              -$           -$          -$          -$            -$           -$          -$           -$             -$            0.0%

Net Income (Loss) 95,195$        83,804$        (180,165)$  44,451$    (268,961)$ 30,684$      (89,657)$   (277,856)$  (562,505)$  140,747$     (703,252)$   n/a

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
FORECAST OF 

GENERAL OPERATING FUND

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
THROUGH APRIL 30, 2022

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

1 of 1Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 49



����������
�
���
	
�
	����
���

� ��� ��� �� � ���� ������ �
�� ������ � ��� ��� ��� �!""� ��� � #

� �$� �� ���� %� �&!""� ��� �
' �� �� ���� �() �� ��� $& � � #

* �� ��$����+� ��� " �� "� � ,
���� ��" ��-� �%. �/  ������ ���0 ,

1 2345674689 :;< 8< 6=> 8 ?6; ?5; @ #
A �((� �� ��� ��  (( ���������� �����

��$ $������� ���  0" ��  � �� #A  �� �� �-�"B �� C�" ��D
A  �� �(  �� ��,��� �����( ��� ��� �

� �-�"B ��B�E ��$ $����� ��
���� - " ���, #

A  �� �� �-�"F %� C�" ��D
A  �� �(  �� ��,��� �����( ��� ��� �

� �-�"F %�B�E ��$ $����� ��
���� - " ���, #

A  �� �� �-�"F& ��� C�" ��D
A  �� �(  �� ��,��� �����( ��� ��� �

� �-�"F& ���B�E ��$ $����� ��
���� - " ���, #

F � �� � � �� G � "�(� � �� ���H ��� ��G � "�(� �� � � �" � � �� #I  ��
$�-�������  " ����"  � ��

�+���� ����& �" �( �"0 �� ���
����� ��� #

G � "�(� �� � � �" � � �� #A& ��"�
&  -�� � $��J �����-� ��� ���

� �-�"F %���� %�� �-�"B ��
B�E ��$ $����� �%� �&� �� ��

�� +,� �� #.H �� ��/
G � "�(� �� � � �" � � �� #A& ��"�

&  -�� � $��J �����-� ��� ���
� �-�"F& ������ %�� �-�"F %�

��$ $����� �%� �&� �� �� �� +
,� �� #.H �� ��/

G � "�(� �� � � �" � � �� #A& ��"�
&  -�� � $��J �����-� ��� ���

� �-�"� ������ %�� �-�"F& ���
��$ $����� �%� �&� �� �� �� +

,� �� #.H �� ��/

A �  ((G � "�(� � �� ��� H ����� �,
K ���&  -� � ��� � ��+���� ���� C

�L�"" � C �� � � � �� �$� �����
1 2345674689 :;< 8< 6=> 8 ?6; ?5; @ #A  �� �� �-�"B �� C�" ��D� �

" � ��� %���& ��L �,��  (( ����" �
 ��� $���&  -�%��L ��MNN& ����

� �& ��B�EO �0 �%� �&� �� ��
�� +,� �� #.H �� �P/

A  �� �� �-�"B �� C�" ��D
� ����+� � � �" ,&  "( �( ��& ��L �,

��  ((  ��� $��� �& ��"�&  -�
%��L ��MNN& ����� �& ��B�E

O �0 �%� �&� �� �� �� +,� �� #.H �� �
P/

A  �� �� �-�"B �� C�" ��D
� ����+� � � �" ,&  "( �( ��& ��L �,

��  ((  ��� $��� �& ��"�&  -�
%��L ��MNN& ����� �& ��B�E

O �0 �%� �&� �� �� �� +,� �� #.H �� �
P/

' �(� �� �� ���(B�EQ �0� �-�"� ��� $����� ��(" ����&  �M CNNN
 ��� �& ���� �� ��" ,�� ���

� �-�" -������ �A ����  "� �� � #
.H �� �R/ #

� ��� $����� ��(( ���M CNNN � �
S CNNN& ������%� �& ��� �� � �� �

& � -,� �-�" -������ ������
����A ����  "� �� � #.H �� �R/� ��� $����� ��(  ����+� � � �" ,

S CNNN ������& ������%� �&
& � -,� �-�" -������ ������

����A ����  "� �� � #.H �� �R/� ��� $����� ��(  ����+� � � �" ,
T CNNN ������& ������%� �& -��,

& � -,� �-�" -������ ������
����A ����  "� �� � #.H �� �R/

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 50



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 51



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2022  
   
To: William Hobert, Chair Roger Poole 
 Peter Amaro Timothy Ryan  
 Drew Beres Eduardo Tobon  
 James J. Fuentes Jennifer Watson 
 Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler 
 Roxanne Nava Jeffrey Wright 
 George Obernagel Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Brad R. Fletcher, Vice President 
 
Subject: Monthly Summary of Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bond Issuance 
 
All within the parameters set forth in a PACE Bond Resolution previously adopted by the Illinois Finance 
Authority (the “Authority”), staff has approved certain Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) 
project application(s) as further described on Exhibit A attached hereto and an Authorized Officer has 
executed and delivered PACE Bond Documents in connection with the issuance of PACE Bonds for the 
month ended December 31, 2021. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher              
Vice President & Treasurer 
 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 52



Treasury Report   PACE Bond Issuance Summary 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds   Month Ended 12/31/2021 
Page 2   Brad R. Fletcher 
 

Exhibit A 
Project and Financing 

 
Record Owner Bloom Waukegan, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the “Record 

Owner”), as a single-purpose entity created for the purpose of developing and 
owning the Project. 

 
Project Bond proceeds will assist the Record Owner in providing all or a portion of the 

funds necessary for the acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of 
certain energy projects affixed to five, new 3-story multi-family buildings 
containing 41,613 sq. ft. of net rentable area among twenty-two townhouse-style 
units for lease at market rates to tenants located at the northeast corner of 425 
Bloom Street and 2625 Waukegan Avenue, Highland Park, IL (the “Property”), 
including but not limited to: (i) attic and wall insulation, floor insulation above 
attached garages, and insulated windows, (ii) furnace and air conditioner systems, 
(iii) power vent or demand water heaters, (iv) high-efficiency water fixtures, and 
(v) LED lighting (collectively, the “Project”). 

 
Bonds Amount: $1,885,000 
 Source: PACE Loan Group 2019-1 LLC, as Designated Transferee of 

PACE Loan Group, LLC, the Initial Purchaser  
 Term: Not to exceed December 1, 2046 
 Interest: 5.10% Fixed 
 Security: Special Assessment on the Property 
 
 Use of Proceeds: Project Costs 

Program Fees 
Other Fees  
Capitalized Interest 
Capital Provider Fees 

$1,618,734.58 
9,425.00 

43,050.00 
194,940.42 

18,850.00
   $1,885,000.00
 
Impact* Energy Savings: 81,670 kWh 
 Energy Utility Bill Savings: $62,066 
 Water Savings: 575,590 Gallons 
 Water Bill Savings: $13,525 
 
Job Data 125 full-time equivalent construction jobs (14 months) 
 
Districts U.S. Representative: 10 State Senator: 29 State Representative: 58
 
* Average annual estimates as reported by PACE Loan Group, LLC, the Program Administrator for the 
PACE area. 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 53



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2022  
   
To: William Hobert, Chair Roger Poole 
 Peter Amaro Timothy Ryan  
 Drew Beres Eduardo Tobon  
 James J. Fuentes Jennifer Watson 
 Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler 
 Roxanne Nava Jeffrey Wright 
 George Obernagel Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Brad R. Fletcher, Vice President 
 
Subject: Monthly Summary of Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bond Issuance 
 
All within the parameters set forth in a PACE Bond Resolution previously adopted by the Illinois Finance 
Authority (the “Authority”), staff has approved certain Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) 
project application(s) as further described on Exhibit A attached hereto and an Authorized Officer has 
executed and delivered PACE Bond Documents in connection with the issuance of PACE Bonds for the 
month ended January 31, 2022. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher              
Vice President & Treasurer 
 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 54



Treasury Report   PACE Bond Issuance Summary 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds   Month Ended 1/31/2022 
Page 2   Brad R. Fletcher 
 

Exhibit A 
Project and Financing 

 
Record Owner Gateway Rosemont LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the “Record 

Owner”), as a single-purpose entity created for the purpose of developing and 
owning the Project. 

 
Project Bond proceeds will assist the Record Owner in providing all or a portion of the 

funds necessary for the acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of 
certain energy projects affixed to 88,793 square feet of real property to be dual-
branded as a Holiday Inn and Staybridge Suites Hotel located at 6600 Mannheim 
Road, Rosemont, IL (the “Property”), including but not limited to: (i) roof 
membrane with recovery board, (ii) packaged terminal air conditioners and 
related thermostats, variable air volume controls, dampers, fans, and a 20-hp 
variable frequency drive motor on the Property’s cooling tower, (iii) 200-300 
gallon water tanks as well as high-efficiency water fixtures, and (iv) LED lighting 
(collectively, the “Project”). 

 
Bonds Amount: $5,700,000 
 Source: PACE Loan Group 2019-1 LLC, as Designated Transferee of 

PACE Loan Group, LLC, the Initial Purchaser  
 Term: Not to exceed November 1, 2051 
 Interest: 4.80% Fixed 
 Security: Special Assessment on the Property 
 
 Use of Proceeds: Project Costs 

Program Fees 
Other Fees  
Capitalized Interest 
Capital Provider Fees 

$5,137,085.00 
57,000.00 
93,235.00 

355,680.00 
57,000.00

   $5,700,000.00
 
Impact* Energy Savings: 1,613.464 kWh 
 Energy Utility Bill Savings: $444,773 
 Water Savings: 3,705,043 Gallons 
 Water Bill Savings: $86,432 
 
Job Data 140 Full-Time Equivalent Construction Jobs (15 months) 
 
Districts U.S. Representative: 5 State Senator: 39 State Representative: 77
 
* Average annual estimates as reported by TruPACE, LLC, the Program Administrator for the PACE 
area. 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 55



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

IX. MONTHLY PROCUREMENT 
REPORT 

 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 56



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
    BOARD MEETING     

February 08, 2022 
 
   

1 
*Which may be increased or decreased as provided in the contract. 

CONTRACTS/AMENDMENTS EXECUTED 

Procurement Type  Vendor  Term/Purchase 
Date 

Estimated Not to 
Exceed Value 

Action/Proposed Method of 
Procurement  Products/Services Provided 

Small Purchase Contracts  Godaddy.com  09/08/21‐
09/08/23 

$1319.76  Executed  Virtual Web Hosting Service 

Presidio  11/19/21‐
11/18/22 

$6,055.55  Executed  Hewlett Packard 
Maintenance and Support 

Illinois Procurement Code 
Renewals 
 
 
Illinois Procurement Code 
Contracts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Saul Ewing Arnstein & 
Lehr LLP previously 

known as Arnstein and 
Lehr LLP 

06/07/21‐
06/06/25 

$117,647.05*  Executed  Legal Services 

Catalyst  12/23/21‐
06/30/22 

$100,000  Executed  IT Consultant Services 
Extension 

Bridges Court Reporting 
Services 

01/01/22‐
12/31/23 

$39,179.00  Executed  Court Reporting Services 

Dell Marketing  01/05/22‐
01/04/23 

$191.40  Executed  Microsoft Intune 

Mazarini, Inc.  02/01/2022‐
12/31/22 

$2,355.00  Executed  Server Room Door 
Replacement 

DSS Advisors   02/08/22‐
03/08/22 

$25,000  In‐process  Amendment to add funding 
for Climate Bank Consulting 

Services 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 57



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
    BOARD MEETING     

February 08, 2022 
 
   

2 
*Which may be increased or decreased as provided in the contract. 

 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS‐OTHER 
Procurement Type  Vendor  Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 
to Exceed Value 

Action/Proposed Method of 
Procurement  

Products/Services Provided 

Credit Card  Amalgamated‐Credit 
Card 

05/01/22  $80,000  Continue  Credit Card 

Bank Depository  Bank of America‐
Depository 

06/30/22  $400,000  Continue  Bank of America Operating 
Account 

 

INTER‐GOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS 

Procurement Type  Vendor  Term  Estimated Not 
to Exceed Value 

Action/Proposed Method of 
Procurement 

Products/Services Provided 

Inter‐Governmental Agreements  Office of the State 
Fire Marshal (OSFM) 

07/01/20‐
06/30/25 

N/A  IGA‐Executed  Fire Truck Revolving Loan 
Program 

Illinois Department 
of Commerce and 

Economic 
Opportunity 

07/01/21‐
06/30/23 

N/A  IGA‐ Executed     IFA Office Space‐ Springfield 

  Illinois Department 
of Human Services 

(DHS) 

07/01/21‐
06/30/24 

N/A  IGA‐ Executed      DHS Printing Services 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 58



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

X. CORRECTION AND APPROVAL OF 
MINUTES 

 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 59



 
 

 

 

 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 

 Date:  February 8, 2022 

   

Subject: Minutes of the December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 

 

To: Will Hobert, Chair Roger Poole 

 Peter Amaro Timothy Ryan 

 Drew Beres Eduardo Tobon 

 James J. Fuentes Jennifer Watson  

 Arlene A. Juracek Randal Wexler 

 Roxanne Nava Jeffrey Wright 

 George Obernagel  Bradley A. Zeller 

   

   

 

Dear Members of the Authority: 

 

Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Veritext Legal Solutions (the “Minutes”) in 

connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 

begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 

Illinois 60601, on the second Tuesday of November in the year 2021, pursuant to the provisions of Section 

801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of the State 

of Illinois (the “Act”), the Members having met via audio and video conference in accordance with Section 

7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/7, and pursuant to the determination by the Chair of the 

Authority that an in-person meeting of the Authority was not practical or prudent because of the disaster 

declared by the Governor first on November 12, 2021 and then on December 10, 2021. 

 

To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 

corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 

 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

REGULAR MEETING 

December 14, 2021 

9:30 AM 

 

AGENDA: 

 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 (page 3, line 1 through page 8, line 18)  

II. Approval of Agenda 

 (page 8, line 19 through page 10, line 20) 

III. Public Comment 

(page 10, line 21 through page 11, line 13) 

IV. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 11, line 14 through page 12, line 19) 

V. Committee Reports 

(page 12, lines 20 through page 13, line 4) 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 60

http://www.il-fa.com/


 
 
VI. Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items 

(page 13, line 5 through page 23, line 11) 

VII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 

(page 23, line 12 through page 25, line 19) 

VIII. Monthly Procurement Report 

(page 25, line 20 through page 26, line 11)  

IX. Correction and Approval of Minutes 

(page 26, line 12 through page 28, line 10) 

X. Other Business 

(page 28, line 11 though page 30, line 16) 

XI. Closed Session 

(page 30, lines 17 through 20) 

XII. Adjournment 

(page 30, line 21 through page 34, line 9) 

 

The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 

respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 

enclosed. 

 

Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

/s/ Elizabeth Weber           

General Counsel 
 

 

Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 

  2. Voting Record of the December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 61



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
G
U
L
A
R
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S

3 4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
O
F
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r

5
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
H
E
L
D
 
I
N

6
P
E
R
S
O
N
 
a
n
d
 
V
I
A
 
A
U
D
I
O
 
a
n
d
 
V
I
D
E
O
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
o
n

7
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
2
1
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o

8
n
o
t
i
c
e
.

9
P
R
E
S
E
N
T
 
V
I
A
 
A
U
D
I
O
 
A
N
D
 
V
I
D
E
O
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
:

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
W
I
L
L
 
H
O
B
E
R
T

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
E
T
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
D
R
E
W
 
B
E
R
E
S

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
I
M
O
T
H
Y
 
R
Y
A
N

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
E
D
U
A
R
D
O
 
T
O
B
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
E
N
N
I
F
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
A
N
D
Y
 
W
E
X
L
E
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
E
F
F
R
E
Y
 
W
R
I
G
H
T

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
R
A
D
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R

1
7

I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
:

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
A
D
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
R
I
C
H
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
X
I
M
E
N
A
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
,
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
o
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
&

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
A
I
G
 
H
O
L
L
O
W
A
Y
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
A
g
e
n
t

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
(
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
)

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
K
 
M
E
Y
E
R
,
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
A
R
A
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
/
C
C
R
C

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
L
e
g
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d

2
4

P
a
g
e
 
1

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1 2
A
L
S
O
 
P
R
E
S
E
N
T
 
V
I
A
 
A
U
D
I
O
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
:

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
N
A
T
H
A
N
 
T
I
N
G
S
T
A
D
,

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
I
E
F
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
R
 
A
N
D

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
E
N
I
O
R
 
V
I
C
E
 
P
R
E
S
I
D
E
N
T
 
O
F
 
S
H
I
R
L
E
Y
 
R
Y
A
N

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 
L
A
B

7 8 9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

P
a
g
e
 
2

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 62



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.

2
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e

3
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o

4
o
r
d
e
r
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s

6
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
,
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

7
T
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
d
a
t
e
 
i
s
 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
2
1
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s

8
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
t
o

9
o
r
d
e
r
 
b
y
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

1
1

h
a
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
G
u
b
e
r
n
a
t
o
r
i
a
l
 
D
i
s
a
s
t
e
r
 
P
r
o
c
l
a
m
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n

1
2

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
2
,
 
2
0
2
1
 
a
n
d
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
0
,
 
2
0
2
1
,
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g

1
3

t
h
a
t
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

1
4

E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
A
c
t
,
 
a
 
d
i
s
a
s
t
e
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
s

1
5

w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

1
6

h
e
a
l
t
h
 
c
o
n
c
e
r
n
s
 
c
a
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
O
V
I
D
-
1
9
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
c
l
a
r
i
n
g
 
a
l
l

1
7

c
o
u
n
t
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
s
 
a
 
d
i
s
a
s
t
e
r

1
8

a
r
e
a
,
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
s
 
i
n
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
3
0
 
d
a
y
s

1
9

f
r
o
m
 
i
t
s
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
d
a
t
e
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
o
f

2
1

S
u
b
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
(
e
)
 
o
f
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
7
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
O
p
e
n
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s

2
2

A
c
t
,
 
a
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
W
i
l
l

2
3

H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
h
a
s
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
n
 
i
n
-
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f

2
4

t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
2
1
,
 
i
s
 
n
o
tP
a
g
e
 
3

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
p
r
a
c
t
i
c
a
l
 
o
r
 
p
r
u
d
e
n
t
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
s
a
s
t
e
r

2
d
e
c
l
a
r
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

3
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t
e
d
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
a
n
d
 
a
u
d
i
o

4
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
,
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a

5
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
i
s

7
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e

8
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a

9
v
i
d
e
o
 
a
n
d
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 
 
A
l
l
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
t
t
e
n
d

1
0

t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
o
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
w
e
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
s
,
 
t
h
e

1
2

r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
n

1
3

i
n
d
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,

1
4

d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
6

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y

1
7

p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d

1
9

F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
a
l
l
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
o
r

2
0

a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

P
a
g
e
 
4

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 63



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

6
R
o
g
e
r
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
R
o
g
e
r
.

9
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
D
o
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e

1
8

J
e
f
f
r
e
y
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
,
 
d
o
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
t
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y

2
2

C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,

P
a
g
e
 
5

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
u
b
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
(
e
)
 
o
f
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
7
 
o
f

2
t
h
e
 
O
p
e
n
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
A
c
t
,
 
a
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f

3
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
.

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
f
o
r
e
 
w
e
 
b
e
g
i
n
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 
w
a
y

5
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
t
h
a
t

6
e
a
c
h
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
m
u
t
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
w
h
e
n
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
 
t
o

7
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
a
n
y
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
n
o
i
s
e
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g

8
o
r
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
,
 
o
r
 
o
t
h
e
r
w
i
s
e

9
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
.
 
 
I
f
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e

1
0

p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
u
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
m
u
t
e
 
b
u
t
t
o
n

1
1

f
o
u
n
d
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
a
s
k
 
b
a
r
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
.

1
2

Y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
b
a
r
 
b
y
 
m
o
v
i
n
g

1
3

y
o
u
r
 
m
o
u
s
e
 
o
r
 
t
o
u
c
h
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
a
b
l
e
t
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
r
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e

1
5

p
u
b
l
i
c
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
p
h
o
n
e
,
 
t
o
 
m
u
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
m
u
t
e

1
6

y
o
u
r
 
l
i
n
e
,
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
p
r
e
s
s
 
*
6
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
k
e
y
p
a
d
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
d
o

1
7

n
o
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
p
h
o
n
e
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
a
 
r
e
m
i
n
d
e
r
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d

1
9

a
n
d
 
a
 
c
o
u
r
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
b
i
n
g
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s

2
0

p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
u
r
t

2
1

r
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
,
 
I
'
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
a
c
h
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

2
2

s
t
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
n
a
m
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
r
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n

2
3

o
r
 
o
t
h
e
r
w
i
s
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
l
l

P
a
g
e
 
6

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 64



1
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
o
r
 
v
i
a

2
v
i
d
e
o
 
o
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
a
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g

3
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
.

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
c
a
n
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s

5
v
i
d
e
o
 
a
n
d
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
i
s
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e

6
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
?

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
X
E
C
U
T
I
V
E
 
D
I
R
E
C
T
O
R
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,

9
B
r
a
d
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
C
h
r
i
s

1
1

M
e
i
s
t
e
r
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e

1
2

r
o
o
m
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
1
0
t
h
 
f
l
o
o
r
 
o
f
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t

1
3

i
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
J
o
i
n
i
n
g
 
m
e
 
i
s
 
M
a
r
k
 
M
e
y
e
r
,

1
4

A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
c
a
n
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l

1
6

d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
,
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
v
o
t
e
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
'
s

1
7

p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
d
v
i
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y

1
8

g
u
a
r
d
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
f
l
o
o
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

1
9

m
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
o
n
e
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e

2
1

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n

2
2

p
o
s
t
e
d
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
l
o
o
r
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t

2
3

f
l
o
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s

2
4

w
e
b
s
i
t
e
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
l
a
s
t
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
9
,
 
2
0
2
1
.P
a
g
e
 
7

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
d
v
i
s
e
d

2
t
h
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
w
h
o
 
c
h
o
o
s
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o

3
a
n
d
 
w
h
o
 
c
h
o
o
s
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
'
s
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

4
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
f
e
t
y
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
m
a
y
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
o
o
m

5
a
n
d
 
l
i
s
t
e
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
'
s
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t

7
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
M
a
r
k
 
M
e
y
e
r
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
o
n
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l

8
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.

1
1

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
a
n
y
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

1
3

p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
o
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
f
i
n
d

1
4

t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
n
o
t
 
h
e
a
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
,

1
5

p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
6
5
1
-
1
3
0
0
 
o
r
 
w
r
i
t
e
 
i
n
f
o
@
i
l
-
f
a
.
c
o
m

1
6

i
m
m
e
d
i
a
t
e
l
y
 
t
o
 
l
e
t
 
u
s
 
k
n
o
w
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
e
n
d
e
a
v
o
r
 
t
o

1
7

s
o
l
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

2
0

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y

2
2

a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
8

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 65



1
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a

2
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
P
e
t
e
r
 
A
m
a
r
o
.
 
 
S
o

4
m
o
v
e
d
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
D
r
e
w
 
B
e
r
e
s
.

6
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

8
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

1
0

t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
A
m
a
r
o
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

1
1

B
e
r
e
s
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
 
l
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t

1
3

M
e
m
b
e
r
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
 
h
a
s
 
j
o
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d

1
4

m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
4
 
a
.
m
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

P
a
g
e
 
9

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

1
0

J
e
f
f
,
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e
?

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
,
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e

1
4

t
o
o
,
 
s
i
r
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
G
e
t
 
o
f
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d

1
9

F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

2
0

m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

2
2

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

2
4

p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
w
i
s
h
e
s
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
,

P
a
g
e
 
1
0

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 66



1
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o
 
b
y
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

2
r
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
a
n
d
 
f
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
C
l
i
c
k
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
"
R
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r

3
H
a
n
d
"
 
o
p
t
i
o
n
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l

4
b
a
r
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e

5
t
o
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
s
k
 
b
a
r
 
b
y
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
r
 
m
o
u
s
e
 
o
r
 
t
o
u
c
h
i
n
g

6
t
h
e
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
a
b
l
e
t
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

8
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
p
h
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
e
s
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
,

9
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o
 
b
y
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

1
0

"
R
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
H
a
n
d
"
 
f
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
p
r
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
*
9
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

1
2

M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

1
5

r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
2
1
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

1
6

I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e

1
8

S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
F
o
r

1
9

3
1
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
,
 
a
l
s
o
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
t
h
e

2
0

R
e
h
a
b
i
l
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
n
a
m
e
d

2
1

b
y
 
U
.
S
.
 
N
e
w
s
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
r
l
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
N
o
.
 
1
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
r

2
2

o
f
 
c
o
m
p
r
e
h
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
 
m
e
d
i
c
i
n
e
 
a
n
d

2
3

r
e
h
a
b
i
l
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
c
o
r
d

2
4

f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
U
.
S
.
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
.
 
 
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 
T
i
n
g
s
t
a
d
,
 
t
h
e

P
a
g
e
 
1
1

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
'
s
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
V
i
c
e

2
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
j
o
i
n
 
u
s
 
l
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
a
n
d

4
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l

5
t
e
r
m
 
a
p
p
o
i
n
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e

6
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
'
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 
i
s

8
f
o
u
n
d
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 
s
o
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
u
r
n

9
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
t
o
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
 
I
t
e
m
 
6
,
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
n
e
x
t
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r

1
1

t
o
d
a
y
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
y
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
P
r
i
t
z
k
e
r

1
2

f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r

1
3

c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
.
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
t
h
e

1
4

n
o
m
i
n
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
i
s

1
5

m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
r
e
a
c
h
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
A
t

1
6

s
u
c
h
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

1
7

E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e

1
9

m
e
t
.
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
J
e
f
f
r
e
y
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
.

2
1

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
W
i
l
l
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t

2
3

e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o

2
4

r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

P
a
g
e
 
1
2

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 67



1
I
t
e
m
s
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
:
 
 
S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
;

2
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
D
a
n
i
e
l
 
F
e
u
c
h
t
;
 
Y
g
r
e
n
e
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 
F
u
n
d

3
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
L
L
C
;
 
P
e
g
g
y
 
N
o
t
e
b
a
e
r
t
 
N
a
t
u
r
e
 
M
u
s
e
u
m
;
 
a
n
d

4
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
2
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

6
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
J
e
f
f
r
e
y
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
w
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

8
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
w

9
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 
a
n
d
 
5
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
o

1
0

h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
v
o
t
e
 
a
p
p
l
y
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h

1
1

r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
r
e

1
2

a
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

1
3

w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
6
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

1
5

c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
 
a
f
t
e
r
w
a
r
d
s
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
n
e
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
c
u
s
a
l
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
 
n
e
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
c
u
s
a
l
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d

1
9

l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 
a
n
d

2
0

5
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

2
1

v
o
t
e
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.

2
3

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e

P
a
g
e
 
1
3

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
t
h
a
t
 
f
o
r
 
e
a
c
h
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
o
n

2
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

3
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
n
l
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d

4
a
m
o
u
n
t
s
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
i
n
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
,
 
I
t
e
m

6
1
 
i
s
 
a
 
5
0
1
(
c
)
(
3
)
 
B
o
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e

8
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
h
a
b
i
l
i
t
a
t
i
o
n

9
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
s
 
S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n

1
0

A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
,
 
h
e
r
e
i
n
a
f
t
e
r
 
d
e
f
i
n
e
d
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
,
 
i
n

1
1

a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
9
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d

1
3

a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
3
A

1
4

B
o
n
d
s
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f

1
5

o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
,
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
i
f

1
6

d
e
e
m
e
d
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
o
r
 
a
d
v
i
s
a
b
l
e
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
o
r
 
t
h
e

1
7

A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.
 
 
M
o
r
g
a
n

1
8

S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
B
a
n
k
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g

1
9

b
a
n
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
u
r
n
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
S
a
r
a

2
1

P
e
r
u
g
i
n
i
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
c
o
n
t
a
c
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e

2
2

S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
o
u
r

2
3

g
u
e
s
t
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
a
r
a
?

P
a
g
e
 
1
4

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 68



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s

2
S
a
r
a
 
P
e
r
u
g
i
n
i
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
a
m
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
 
a
n
d

3
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 
T
i
n
g
s
t
a
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l

4
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n

5
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
i
n
g
s
t
a
d
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
t
h
e

6
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
?

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
I
N
G
S
T
A
D
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
y
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
s

9
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 
T
i
n
g
s
t
a
d
.
 
 
I
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
V
i
c
e

1
0

P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

1
1

S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
.
 
 
O
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
h
i
r
l
e
y

1
2

R
y
a
n
 
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
2
,
2
0
0
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d

1
3

l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
 
a
v
e
n
u
e

1
4

f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
i
t
s
 
2
0
1
3
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
o
n

1
5

a
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
l
y
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
 
o
u
r
 
c
o
s
t

1
6

o
f
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
.
 
 
S
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n

1
7

w
i
l
l
 
h
e
l
p
 
u
s
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
r
e
s
e
a
r
c
h

1
8

a
n
d
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
 
o
u
t
c
o
m
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
s
 
w
e
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
f
o
r

1
9

m
a
n
y
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
 
a
n
d

2
0

c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
S
a
r
a

2
2

P
e
r
u
g
i
n
i
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
s
o
 
m
u
c
h
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
,

2
3

M
r
.
 
T
i
n
g
s
t
a
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
l
o
o
k
s
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o

2
4

w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
h
i
r
l
e
y
 
R
y
a
n

P
a
g
e
 
1
5

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
A
b
i
l
i
t
y
L
a
b
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
e
a
m
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.

4
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
S
a
r
a
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

6
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
.

9
I
t
e
m
 
2
 
i
s
 
a
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e

1
1

F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
D
a
n
i
e
l
 
N
.
 
F
e
u
c
h
t
 
i
n
 
a

1
2

n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
6
4
,
5
0
0
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
e
u
c
h
t
 
i
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g

1
4

a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
1
8
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
S
t
a
r
k

1
5

C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
T
o
u
l
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
h
e

1
6

p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
b
a
n
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

1
8

c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
3
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
3
 
i
s
 
a
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n

2
2

a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
i
m
e
 
o
f
 
o
n
e
 
o
r

2
3

m
o
r
e
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
s
u
b
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e

2
4

p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
Y
g
r
e
n
e
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 
F
u
n
d
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
L
L
C
,
 
o
r

P
a
g
e
 
1
6

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 69



1
i
t
s
 
d
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
e
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
e
e
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
g
g
r
e
g
a
t
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t

2
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
1
0
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f
 
3
 
y
e
a
r
s
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

4
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
4
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
4
 
i
s
 
a
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g

8
t
h
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
t
o

9
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
a
n
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
d
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
,

1
0

2
0
1
3
 
a
m
o
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 
o
f

1
1

S
c
i
e
n
c
e
s
,
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
s
 
P
e
g
g
y
 
N
o
t
e
b
a
e
r
t
 
N
a
t
u
r
e

1
2

M
u
s
e
u
m
,
 
a
n
d
 
P
N
C
 
B
a
n
k
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e

1
3

s
e
c
o
n
d
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
s
 
o
f

1
4

m
a
n
d
a
t
o
r
y
 
s
i
n
k
i
n
g
 
f
u
n
d
 
r
e
d
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d

1
5

e
f
f
e
c
t
u
a
t
e
s
 
a
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
m
u
l
a

1
6

b
o
r
n
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
3
 
B
o
n
d

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

1
8

c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
5
.

2
1

I
t
e
m
 
5
 
i
s
 
a
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
I
n
t
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h

2
2

t
h
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r

2
3

V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t

2
4

c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
-
t
i
m
e

P
a
g
e
 
1
7

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
f
a
r
m
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
d
u
s
t
r
i
a
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
Y
e
a
r

2
2
0
2
2
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
V
o
l
u
m
e

3
C
a
p
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
s

4
$
1
2
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
2
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

6
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

9
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

1
1

p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
:

1
2

I
t
e
m
s
 
1
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
 
a
n
d
 
5
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
A
r
l
e
n
e
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
.

1
5

I
'
l
l
 
m
a
k
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
i
n

1
7

p
l
a
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
D
r
e
w
 
B
e
r
e
s
.

1
9

S
e
c
o
n
d
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

2
1

t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

2
3

t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

2
4

B
e
r
e
s
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

P
a
g
e
 
1
8

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 70



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e
.
 
 
I
f
 
y
o
u
 
h
i
t
 
*
6
,

2
3

w
e
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

P
a
g
e
 
1
9

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s

3
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
 
a
n
d

4
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

6
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
n
d

8
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
W
e
b
e
r
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o

9
a
s
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
b
o
t
h
 
e
x
i
t
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
t
u
r
n
i
n
g
 
o
f
f

1
0

y
o
u
r
 
c
a
m
e
r
a
,
 
m
u
t
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
,
 
a
n
d
 
l
e
a
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

1
1

r
o
o
m
s
 
y
o
u
r
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
c
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
w
e

1
2

m
o
v
e
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
6
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
X
E
C
U
T
I
V
E
 
D
I
R
E
C
T
O
R
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,

1
4

W
i
l
l
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a

1
5

s
l
i
g
h
t
 
m
o
d
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y

1
6

F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
M
a
r
k
 
M
e
y
e
r
 
w
i
l
l

1
7

h
a
n
d
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d

1
8

w
i
t
h
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
.
 
 
I
 
a
m
 
l
e
a
v
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
I
'
m

1
9

p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
l
e
a
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
o
u
t
 
o
f

2
0

e
a
r
s
h
o
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
M
a
r
k
 
M
e
y
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

2
1

i
n
 
m
y
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s

2
3

B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
 
l
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t

P
a
g
e
 
2
0

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 71



1
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
W
e
b
e
r

2
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
b
y
 
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
i
r

3
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
v
i
d
e
o
 
o
r
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 
 
W
h
i
l
e
,

4
M
r
.
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
i
s
 
s
t
e
p
p
i
n
g
 
a
w
a
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
v
i
d
e
o

5
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
,
 
h
e
 
i
s
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
r
o
o
m

6
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e

7
t
o
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
 
a
n
y
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
a
y
 
a
r
r
i
v
e

8
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
c
a
n
 
n
o
w
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

1
0

I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
6
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
2

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e

1
4

A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
,
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
t
w
o
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
r
o
m

1
5

t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r

1
6

o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e

1
7

C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y

1
8

r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f

1
9

E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a

2
0

m
o
t
i
o
n
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e

2
1

D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
G
e
o
r
g
e

2
4

O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
1

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
R
o
g
e
r
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

3
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

5
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

6
P
o
o
l
e
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r

7
f
o
r
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

P
a
g
e
 
2
2

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 72



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
o
n
 
m
u
t
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
f

6
y
o
u
 
h
i
t
 
*
6
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d

1
0

F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

1
1

m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
3

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
x
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
t
h
e

1
5

f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
?

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
S
i
x
 
G
r
a
n
d
a
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k

1
7

y
o
u
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
a
l

1
9

a
n
d
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
m
a
n
d
a
t
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l

2
0

a
u
d
i
t
 
f
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
1
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r

2
1

c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
 
a
n
d

2
2

F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
1
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e

2
3

d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
.

2
4

T
h
e
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
i
sP
a
g
e
 
2
3

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
2
8
9
,
5
1
6
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g

3
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
a
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
a
i
n
e
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
.

4
W
h
i
l
e
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
a
r
y
 
d
e
p
a
r
t
u
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
d

5
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
l
y
 
h
a
s

6
r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
t
h
e

7
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
-
i
n
t
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e

8
m
a
n
d
a
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
u
e
 
t
o
 
s
u
c
h
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
m
a
n
d
a
t
e
s
 
a
n
d

1
0

t
i
g
h
t
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
l
y
 
i
m
p
o
s
e
d
 
d
e
a
d
l
i
n
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

1
1

s
t
a
f
f
 
i
s
 
o
n
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f

1
2

r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
,
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h

1
3

J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
3
1
 
o
f
 
2
0
2
2
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g

1
5

t
h
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t

1
6

h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
o
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e

1
7

A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
o
f

1
9

$
1
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
r
e
 
$
4
3
9
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
1
9
.
9
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n

2
0

b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g

2
1

f
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
o
f
 
$
2

2
3

m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
r
e
 
$
1
5
7
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
7
.
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n

2
4

b
u
d
g
e
t
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
4

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 73



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
n
e
t
 
l
o
s
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h

2
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
3
1
,
 
2
0
2
2
,
 
i
s
 
$
1
8
3
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
e
t
 
l
o
s
s
 
i
s
 
d
u
e

3
t
o
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
t

4
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
1
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t

6
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n

7
f
o
r
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
 
a
n
d
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
1
 
e
a
c
h

8
r
e
m
a
i
n
 
i
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

9
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
t
o
 
b
e

1
0

r
e
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

1
1

c
o
m
i
n
g
 
w
e
e
k
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
2
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t

1
3

p
l
a
n
 
i
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
t
a
f
f

1
4

h
a
s
 
n
o
t
h
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r

1
6

c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
u
r
n
 
i
t

1
9

o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

2
1

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
S
i
x
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
t
o

2
3

c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
m
o
v
e
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

2
4

p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
5

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
r
a
i
g
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
t
h
e

2
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
H
O
L
L
O
W
A
Y
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
C
r
a
i
g
 
H
o
l
l
o
w
a
y
.

4
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
l
i
s
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

6
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

7
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
a
l
s
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
e
x
p
i
r
i
n
g

8
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
i
n
t
o
 
2
0
2
2
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
e
n
t
l
y

9
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
r
v
e
r
 
m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d

1
0

s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
i
o
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
2
2
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
3

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
r
a
i
g
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y

1
5

a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
f
r
o
m

1
6

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
9
,
 
2
0
2
1
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a

1
9

m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a

2
0

m
o
t
i
o
n
?

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
T
i
m
 
R
y
a
n
.
 
 
S
o

2
2

m
o
v
e
d
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
E
d
u
a
r
d
o
 
T
o
b
o
n
.

2
4

S
e
c
o
n
d
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
6

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 74



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

2
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

4
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
R
y
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

5
T
o
b
o
n
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

P
a
g
e
 
2
7

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
,
 
i
f

3
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e
?

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
A
n
d

6
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s

9
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
 
a
n
d

1
0

t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
2

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e

1
4

b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.

1
6

C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
N
a
v
a
 
w
e
r
e
 
u
n
a
b
l
e

1
7

t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
9

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n

2
0

t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
s
.
 
N
a
v
a

2
1

w
h
o
 
w
e
r
e
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
J
e
n
n
i
f
e
r
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
.

2
4

S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
8

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 75



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
R
a
n
d
y
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
.

2
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

4
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

6
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

7
W
e
x
l
e
r
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

P
a
g
e
 
2
9

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y

7
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s

1
0

B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
 
a
n
d

1
1

t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
w
e
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
f
r
o
m

1
3

o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g

1
4

m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
,
 
e
a
c
h
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
t

1
5

E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
M
a
r
i
 
M
o
n
e
y
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o

1
6

s
h
a
r
e
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.

1
8

T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n

1
9

i
n
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y

2
2

s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
1
,
 
2
0
2
2
.
 
 
W
h
e
t
h
e
r

2
3

w
e
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
m
e
e
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
r
 
n
o
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 
o
n

2
4

b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
u
p
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
l
i
d
a
y
s
.

P
a
g
e
 
3
0

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 76



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
d
e
c
i
d
e
s

2
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
o
n
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
1
,
 
w
e

3
w
i
l
l
 
p
u
t
 
o
f
f
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
F
e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
1
1
.

4
P
l
e
a
s
e
 
s
t
a
y
 
t
u
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
f
r
o
m
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
i
n

5
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
f
e
w
 
w
e
e
k
s
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

7
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
.
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l

8
c
a
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
e
a
c
h

9
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
t
h
e

1
0

p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s

1
1

p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
J
e
f
f
r
e
y
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
.

1
3

S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
B
r
a
d

1
5

Z
e
l
l
e
r
.
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
W
i
l
l
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
.
 
 
W
i
l
l

1
7

t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
O
n

1
9

t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r

2
0

Z
e
l
l
e
r
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
m
a
r
o
?

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
A
M
A
R
O
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
a
n
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m

2
3

t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

2
4

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

P
a
g
e
 
3
1

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
B
e
r
e
s
?

2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
B
E
R
E
S
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

3
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

4
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
I

7
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

8
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m

1
1

t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
,
 
a
n
d

1
2

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
s
i
r
.

1
4

M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

1
6

c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

1
7

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
R
o
g
e
r
.

1
9

M
r
.
 
R
y
a
n
?

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
R
Y
A
N
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

2
1

c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

2
2

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
s
i
r
.

2
4

M
r
.
 
T
o
b
o
n
?

P
a
g
e
 
3
2

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 77



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
T
O
B
O
N
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

2
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

3
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
a
t
s
o
n
?

5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

6
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

7
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
e
x
l
e
r
?

9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
E
X
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

1
0

c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
a
l
l
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
l
l

1
1

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
s
i
r
.

1
3

M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

1
5

c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

1
6

t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
,
 
I
'
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o

1
9

a
p
o
l
o
g
i
z
e
 
f
o
r
 
m
y
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
.
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
 
w
h
a
t

2
0

h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
.
 
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
b
u
t
 
m
y
 
p
h
o
n
e
 
m
u
t
e

2
1

b
u
t
t
o
n
 
q
u
i
t
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
.
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
,
 
b
u
t

2
2

I
 
a
p
o
l
o
g
i
z
e
 
t
o
 
B
r
a
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
y
e
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d

2
4

h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

P
a
g
e
 
3
3

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y

2
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
?

3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
 
H
O
B
E
R
T
:
 
 
A
y
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

4
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
,
 
a
n
d

5
t
e
s
t
i
m
o
n
y
.

6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s

7
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
H
o
b
e
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
e

8
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
9
:
5
6
 
a
.
m
.
 
a
n
d

9
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
e
d
.

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
e
d
 
a
t
 
9
:
5
6
 
a
.
m
.
)

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

P
a
g
e
 
3
4

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 78



1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
E
R
 
C
E
R
T
I
F
I
C
A
T
I
O
N

2 3 4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
,
 
J
O
 
A
N
N
 
L
O
S
O
Y
A
,
 
a
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d

5
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
d
o
 
h
e
r
e
b
y
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
y

6
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
d
 
a
t

7
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a

8
t
r
u
e
,
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

9
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
m
y

1
0

s
t
e
n
o
g
r
a
p
h
i
c
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
s
o
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
b
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
m
y

1
1

p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
.

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
 
W
I
T
N
E
S
S
 
W
H
E
R
E
O
F
,
 
I
 
d
o
 
h
e
r
e
u
n
t
o
 
s
e
t
 
m
y

1
3

h
a
n
d
 
a
t
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
7
,
 
2
0
2
2
.

1
4

1
5

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
<
%
2
1
6
6
,
S
i
g
n
a
t
u
r
e
%
>

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
 
A
N
N
 
L
O
S
O
Y
A
,
 
C
S
R
,
 
R
P
R
,
 
C
R
R

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
.
S
.
R
.
 
N
o
.
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
2
4
3
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

P
a
g
e
 
3
5

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

&

&
1:

19

0

08
4-

00
24

37
35

:1
7

1

1
11

:2
1 

13
:9

,1
9

14
:6

 1
7:

9 
18

:1
2

1.
8

24
:1

9
10

3:
12

10
0

17
:2

10
th

7:
12

11
30

:2
2 

31
:2

,3
12

3:
12

12
0

18
:4

14
1:

7 
3:

7,
24

11
:1

5
15

7,
00

0
24

:2
3

16
0

7:
12

17
35

:1
3

18
16

:1
4

18
3,

00
0

25
:2

19
3:

16
19

.9
24

:1
9 2

2
13

:9
,1

9 
16

:8
,9

18
:1

2 
24

:2
2

2,
20

0
15

:1
2

20
13

15
:1

4 
17

:1
0

17
:1

6
20

13
a

14
:1

3
20

20
23

:2
1 

25
:7

20
21

1:
7 

3:
7,

12
,1

2
3:

24
 7

:2
4 

11
:1

5
23

:2
0,

22
 2

5:
5,

7
26

:1
6

20
22

13
:4

 1
8:

2,
4

24
:1

3 
25

:2
,1

2
26

:8
,1

0 
30

:2
2

35
:1

3

21
66

35
:1

6
28

9,
51

6
24

:1

3

3
13

:9
,1

9 
14

:6
16

:2
0,

21
 1

7:
2

18
:1

2
30

3:
18

31
11

:1
9 

24
:1

3
25

:2
31

2
8:

15

4

4
13

:9
,1

9 
17

:6
,7

18
:1

2
43

9,
00

0
24

:1
9

5

5
13

:9
,2

0 
17

:2
0,

21
18

:1
2

50
1

14
:6

6

6
6:

16
 1

2:
9 

13
:1

4
19

:2
2 

20
:1

2 
21

:1
0

23
:6

64
,5

00
16

:1
2

65
1-

13
00

8:
15

7

7
3:

21
 6

:1
7.

5
24

:2
3 9

9
7:

24
 1

1:
10

 2
6:

16
90

14
:1

1
9:

30
1:

7 
3:

9
9:

34
9:

14
9:

56
34

:8
,1

0

a

a.
m

.
1:

7 
3:

9 
9:

14
34

:8
,1

0
ab

il
it

y
2:

6

ab
il

it
yl

ab
11

:1
8

11
:1

9 
13

:1
 1

4:
10

14
:2

2 
15

:5
,1

1,
12

16
:1

ab
il

it
yl

ab
's

12
:1

ab
le

6:
12

 1
1:

4
19

:2
3 

21
:6

 2
3:

6
31

:9
ab

se
n

ce
33

:1
9

ab
se

n
ce

s
28

:2
0

ac
ad

em
y

17
:1

0
ac

ce
le

ra
te

15
:1

7
ac

re
s

16
:1

4
ac

t
3:

14
,2

2 
6:

2
12

:1
3 

21
:1

4
ad

d
it

io
n

al
ly

30
:1

2
31

:7
ad

d
it

io
n

s
8:

22
26

:1
5

ad
d

re
ss

15
:5

ad
jo

u
rn

31
:7

ad
jo

u
rn

ed
34

:9
,1

0
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
1:

20
ad

op
t

18
:1

1
ad

vi
sa

b
le

14
:1

6
ad

vi
se

d
7:

17
 8

:1
ad

vi
so

r
1:

23
af

or
es

ai
d

35
:7

ag
en

cy
3:

14
ag

en
d

a
6:

5 
7:

20
8:

22
 9

:1
 1

1:
18

12
:2

,9
,1

5 
13

:1
,2

0
14

:2
ag

en
d

as
7:

21
ag

en
t

1:
20

ag
gr

eg
at

e
17

:1
ag

re
em

en
t

17
:9

ah
ea

d
16

:8
 2

5:
23

al
lo

ca
ti

on
17

:2
2

18
:3

am
ar

o
1:

11
 4

:2
1

4:
22

 9
:3

,3
,1

0,
15

9:
16

 1
9:

1,
2 

22
:8

,9
27

:6
,7

 2
9:

8,
9

31
:2

1,
22

am
en

d
ed

3:
22

 6
:2

am
en

d
m

en
t

17
:8

17
:1

3
am

en
d

m
en

ts
12

:4
am

ou
n

t
14

:1
1

16
:1

2 
17

:1
 1

8:
2

am
ou

n
ts

14
:4

17
:1

3
an

n
35

:4
,1

6
an

n
ou

n
ce

15
:2

an
n

u
al

12
:4

 1
7:

22
24

:1
8,

22
an

ti
ci

p
at

es
25

:9
ap

ol
og

iz
e

33
:1

9 ,
22

ap
p

ea
rs

35
:9

ap
p

ly
13

:1
0

ap
p

oi
n

tm
en

t
12

:5
ap

p
re

ci
at

e
15

:1
9

ap
p

ro
va

l
12

:2
4

14
:3

,7
 1

6:
10

ap
p

ro
ve

9:
1 

26
:1

9
ap

p
ro

ve
d

24
:1

6
24

:1
6

ap
p

ro
xi

m
at

el
y

16
:1

4 
24

:1
ar

ea
3:

18
ar

le
n

e
1:

12
 1

8:
14

ar
ri

ve
21

:7
as

k
ed

12
:1

3
as

si
st

21
:7

as
si

st
an

t
1:

18
,2

2
3:

6 
4:

16
 7

:1
4 

8:
6

9:
8 

18
:2

1 
20

:1
5

20
:1

6,
20

 2
2:

3
27

:2
 2

9:
4 

31
:1

7

[&
 -

 a
ss

is
ta

n
t]

P
ag

e 
1

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 79



as
so

ci
at

io
n

14
:1

8
17

:1
2

at
te

n
d

4:
9

at
te

n
d

in
g

4:
19

 7
:1

au
d

io
1:

6,
9,

21
 2

:2
4:

3,
9,

10
,2

0 
6:

6
7:

2,
5 

8:
13

,1
7

20
:1

0 
21

:3
au

d
it

23
:2

0,
24

24
:8

 2
5:

5,
9,

12
au

d
it

or
23

:2
3

25
:1

0
au

d
it

s
23

:2
2

au
th

or
it

y
1:

1,
5,

17
3:

3,
6,

8,
22

,2
4 

4:
3

7:
14

 1
1:

16
 1

2:
12

12
:1

3 
14

:1
4,

17
15

:1
3,

23
 1

7:
10

,2
2

21
:1

4,
16

 2
3:

18
24

:5
,1

0 
25

:8
,1

3
26

:6
,8

au
th

or
it

y'
s

4:
7

7:
23

 1
2:

5 
18

:2
21

:6
 2

4:
2,

17
au

th
or

iz
in

g
16

:2
2

17
:7

av
ai

la
b

le
24

:6
av

en
u

e
15

:1
3

ay
e

31
:2

2 
32

:2
,6

32
:1

0,
15

,2
0 

33
:1

,5
33

:9
,1

4,
23

 3
4:

3
ay

es
10

:1
9 

20
:3

23
:1

0 
28

:9
 3

0:
10

34
:7

b

b
ac

k
8:

9 
16

:2
33

:2
1

b
ac

k
gr

ou
n

d
6:

7
b

an
k

14
:1

8,
19

16
:1

5,
16

 1
7:

12

b
ar

6:
11

,1
2 

11
:4

,5
b

as
is

15
:1

5
b

eg
in

n
in

g
13

:2
16

:9
b

eh
al

f
14

:1
4 

15
:1

1
17

:2
4

b
el

ie
ve

10
:1

0,
13

b
er

es
1:

11
 4

:2
3,

24
9:

5,
5,

11
,1

7,
18

18
:1

8,
18

,2
4 

19
:3

,4
22

:1
0,

11
 2

7:
8,

9
29

:1
0,

11
 3

2:
1,

2
b

oa
rd

1:
23

b
on

d
14

:6
,8

,1
2

16
:9

,1
1,

21
 1

7:
9,

16
20

:1
8

b
on

d
s

14
:1

4,
15

15
:1

4 
16

:2
3 

17
:2

4
b

or
n

e
17

:1
6

b
or

ro
w

er
14

:1
0

14
:1

5,
16

b
ot

to
m

6:
11

 1
1:

4
b

ra
d

1:
16

,1
8 

3:
6

4:
16

,1
8 

7:
9 

8:
9,

10
8:

20
 9

:9
 1

0:
13

,1
5

10
:1

8,
22

 1
3:

22
15

:1
 1

6:
2,

3 
18

:9
18

:2
2 

19
:2

2 
20

:3
20

:6
,2

3 
21

:1
2

22
:4

 2
3:

5,
9,

13
27

:3
 2

8:
5,

9,
12

,1
5

28
:1

9 
29

:5
 3

0:
10

30
:1

8 
31

:1
4,

18
33

:2
2 

34
:1

,7
b

u
d

ge
t

24
:2

0,
24

b
u

d
ge

te
d

25
:3

b
u

il
d

in
g

7:
23

 8
:1

8:
8

b
u

il
d

in
g'

s
8:

3
b

u
si

n
es

s
12

:2
4

13
:9

,1
1,

12
,1

4,
19

14
:1

,9
 1

7:
11

18
:1

1 
20

:1
2 

21
:9

28
:1

3 
30

:1
3,

24
b

u
tt

on
6:

10
 3

3:
21

c

c
14

:6
c.

s.
r.

35
:1

7
ca

le
n

d
ar

13
:4

 1
8:

1
18

:4
ca

ll
3:

3 
4:

17
,2

0
8:

15
 9

:8
,1

1 
13

:2
0

18
:2

1,
24

 2
2:

3,
7

27
:2

,5
 2

9:
4,

7 
31

:8
31

:1
7,

20
 3

3:
21

ca
ll

ed
3:

8
ca

ll
s

4:
11

ca
m

er
a

20
:1

0
ca

p
13

:4
 1

7:
23

18
:3

ca
p

it
al

15
:1

6
ca

re
11

:2
3

ca
rr

ie
s

10
:2

0 
20

:4
23

:1
1 

28
:1

0 
30

:1
1

34
:8

ca
u

se
d

3:
16

cc
rc

1:
22

ce
n

te
r

11
:3

ce
rt

ai
n

ly
4:

18
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

35
:1

ce
rt

if
ie

d
35

:4
ce

rt
if

y
35

:5
ch

ai
r

1:
10

 3
:1

,2
,9

3:
22

 4
:1

5 
5:

22
,2

3
5:

24
 8

:1
8,

19
 9

:7
9:

17
 1

0:
16

,1
7,

19
10

:2
1 

13
:5

,2
3

18
:8

,2
0 

19
:2

4
20

:1
,3

,5
 2

1:
10

,1
1

21
:1

1 
22

:2
 2

3:
7,

8
23

:1
0,

12
,1

7 
25

:1
9

25
:2

0 
26

:4
,1

1,
12

27
:1

 2
8:

6,
7,

9,
11

28
:1

6,
18

 2
9:

3
30

:7
,8

,1
0,

17
 3

1:
16

34
:2

,3
,7

ch
ai

rm
an

33
:2

2
ch

an
ge

17
:1

5
ch

ic
ag

o
4:

7 
7:

13
11

:2
0 

14
:9

 1
7:

10
21

:6
 3

5:
13

ch
ie

f
2:

4 
12

:1
 1

5:
3

15
:1

0
ch

oo
se

8:
2,

3
ch

ri
s

4:
6 

7:
4,

7,
10

8:
11

 1
2:

7 
20

:1
4

20
:2

2 
21

:1
8,

20
22

:6
ch

ri
st

op
h

er
1:

21
cl

ea
rl

y
7:

3,
5 

8:
14

cl
ic

k
11

:2
cl

os
ed

30
:1

9
cl

os
in

g
24

:2
0

co
ll

ec
ti

ve
ly

13
:9

co
m

e
8:

4 
15

:1
9

28
:1

3
co

m
es

30
:2

4
co

m
in

g
25

:1
1

co
m

m
en

t
10

:2
4

11
:8

,1
1

co
m

m
en

ts
6:

9,
23

16
:6

,1
8 

17
:4

,1
8

18
:6

 2
5:

16
co

m
m

it
te

e
12

:9
,1

0
12

:1
7,

18
,2

2 
21

:1
7

co
m

p
le

te
23

:1
9

35
:8

co
m

p
li

an
ce

23
:2

1
25

:6
co

m
p

ly
8:

3
co

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
11

:2
2

[a
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 -
 c

om
p

re
h

en
si

ve
]

P
ag

e 
2

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

co
m

p
u

te
r

20
:2

1
co

m
p

u
te

rs
20

:1
1

co
n

ce
rn

s
3:

16
co

n
d

u
ct

ed
4:

3
co

n
d

u
it

12
:1

8,
22

14
:1

,5
,1

9 
16

:1
6

17
:2

4
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
1:

6,
9

1:
21

 2
:2

 4
:4

,9
,1

0
4:

20
 7

:2
,5

,1
1 

8:
13

21
:3

,5
co

n
fi

rm
6:

24
 7

:4
7:

15
 3

1:
9,

22
 3

2:
2

32
:6

,1
0,

15
,2

0 
33

:1
33

:5
,9

,1
4,

23
 3

4:
3

co
n

n
ec

ti
on

17
:2

1
co

n
se

n
t

13
:8

,2
0

co
n

se
q

u
en

tl
y

24
:5

co
n

si
d

er
12

:4
,1

1
13

:8
,1

3,
19

 2
5:

23
co

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
6:

20
15

:2
0

co
n

si
d

er
ed

13
:1

5
co

n
si

d
er

in
g

14
:2

co
n

si
st

en
t

12
:1

3
co

n
st

it
u

te
d

6:
3

co
n

st
it

u
ti

on
al

23
:1

8
co

n
st

ra
in

ed
24

:3
co

n
ta

ct
14

:2
1

co
n

ta
in

ed
14

:4
co

n
ti

n
u

e
21

:9
co

n
tr

ac
t

26
:9

co
n

tr
ac

ts
26

:5
,8

co
n

tr
ol

6:
12

 1
1:

3
co

rr
ec

t
35

:8
co

rr
ec

ti
on

s
8:

22
26

:1
5

co
st

15
:1

5
co

st
s

14
:1

7

co
u

n
se

l
1:

23
 2

0:
8

20
:1

8 
21

:1
co

u
n

ti
es

3:
17

co
u

n
ty

16
:1

5
co

u
rt

6:
19

,2
0

co
vi

d
3:

16
cr

ai
g

1:
20

 2
6:

1,
3

26
:1

3
cr

r
35

:1
6

cs
r

35
:1

6
cu

rr
en

tl
y

4:
7 

24
:2

34
:8

d

d
an

ie
l

13
:2

 1
6:

11
d

at
e

3:
7,

19
 3

0:
23

d
at

ed
17

:9
d

ay
s

3:
18

d
ea

d
li

n
es

24
:1

0
d

ec
em

b
er

1:
7 

3:
7

3:
12

,2
4 

7:
24

11
:1

5 
26

:5
d

ec
id

es
31

:1
d

ec
la

re
d

4:
2

d
ec

la
ri

n
g

3:
16

d
ee

m
ed

14
:1

6
d

ef
in

ed
14

:1
0

d
el

iv
er

y
17

:8
d

ep
ar

tu
re

s
24

:4
d

ep
en

d
30

:2
3

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

17
:1

d
es

ir
e

11
:1

,9
d

et
er

m
in

ed
3:

23
d

ir
ec

ti
on

23
:2

3
35

:1
1

d
ir

ec
tl

y
12

:9
d

ir
ec

to
r

1:
21

 4
:6

7:
8,

10
 1

2:
6,

7,
12

20
:7

,1
3 

21
:1

,1
5,

19
21

:2
1 

22
:6

 3
0:

15
31

:1
,4

d
is

as
te

r
3:

11
,1

4
3:

17
 4

:1
d

is
cu

ss
ed

20
:1

7
d

is
cu

ss
io

n
4:

14
30

:1
8 

31
:1

0,
23

32
:3

,7
,1

6,
21

 3
3:

2
33

:6
,1

0,
15

,2
4

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s
7:

16
32

:1
1 

34
:4

d
oi

n
g

14
:9

 1
7:

11
d

re
w

1:
11

 9
:5

18
:1

8
d

u
e

24
:9

,2
0 

25
:2

e

e
3:

21
 6

:1
ea

rl
ie

r
12

:1
0,

23
21

:1
7

ea
rs

h
ot

20
:2

0
ed

it
s

8:
22

 2
6:

15
ed

u
ar

d
o

1:
14

26
:2

3
ef

fe
ct

3:
18

ef
fe

ct
u

at
es

17
:1

5
el

ig
ib

le
17

:2
4

el
im

in
at

e
6:

7
el

iz
ab

et
h

1:
23

em
er

ge
n

cy
3:

14
em

p
lo

ye
es

15
:1

2
en

d
ea

vo
r

8:
16

en
er

gy
13

:2
 1

6:
24

es
ti

m
at

ed
23

:2
4

ev
er

yb
od

y
33

:2
0

ex
am

in
at

io
n

23
:2

1
25

:6
,6

ex
ce

ed
14

:3
,1

1
16

:1
2 

17
:2

ex
cu

se
28

:2
0

ex
ec

u
te

d
26

:9
ex

ec
u

ti
on

17
:8

ex
ec

u
ti

ve
1:

19
,2

1
4:

6 
7:

8,
10

 1
2:

5,
7

12
:1

0,
12

,1
7 

20
:7

20
:1

3 
21

:1
,1

5,
16

21
:1

9,
20

 2
2:

6
30

:1
5 

31
:1

,4
ex

em
p

t
15

:1
5

17
:2

3
ex

is
ts

3:
14

ex
it

20
:9

ex
p

ec
te

d
24

:2
0

ex
p

en
se

23
:2

4
ex

p
en

se
s

24
:5

,1
2

24
:2

2
ex

p
ir

in
g

26
:7

ex
te

rn
al

23
:2

2,
24

24
:8

ex
te

rn
al

ly
24

:1
0

f

fa
.c

om
8:

15
fa

rm
er

13
:2

 1
6:

9
fa

rm
er

s
18

:1
fa

rm
la

n
d

16
:1

4
fe

at
u

re
6:

17
fe

b
ru

ar
y

31
:3

fe
d

er
al

ly
17

:2
3

fe
es

24
:2

1
fe

u
ch

t
13

:2
 1

6:
11

16
:1

3
fi

n
al

14
:8

 1
6:

11
fi

n
al

ly
5:

21
 6

:2
4

19
:2

4 
28

:6
 3

0:
6

34
:1

fi
n

an
ce

1:
1,

5,
17

1:
19

 3
:2

 1
1:

16
21

:1
3

fi
n

an
ci

al
2:

4 
12

:1
15

:3
,1

0 
23

:1
5,

19
25

:5
,9

,2
2

fi
n

an
ci

n
g

12
:1

8,
22

14
:5

,2
2 

16
:1

fi
n

d
8:

13
 3

0:
14

[c
om

p
u

te
r 

- 
fi

n
d

]
P

ag
e 

3

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 80



fi
n

d
in

g
3:

12
fi

rs
t

7:
18

,2
2 

17
:2

4
33

:1
8

fi
sc

al
23

:2
0,

21
,2

2
25

:5
,7

,7
,1

2
fl

et
ch

er
1:

18
 3

:5
,6

4:
18

,1
9,

23
 5

:1
,3

,5
5:

8,
11

,1
3,

15
,1

7,
21

5:
24

 8
:1

0,
10

 9
:9

,9
9:

19
,2

1,
23

 1
0:

1,
3

10
:5

,7
,9

,1
2,

16
,1

8
10

:1
9 

13
:2

2,
22

16
:3

,3
 1

8:
13

,1
6,

22
18

:2
2 

19
:3

,5
,7

,9
19

:1
1,

13
,1

5,
17

,1
9

19
:2

1 
20

:2
,3

,1
6,

22
20

:2
3 

22
:4

,4
,1

0,
12

22
:1

4,
16

,1
8,

20
,2

2
22

:2
4 

23
:2

,4
,9

,1
0

27
:3

,3
,8

,1
0,

12
,1

4
27

:1
6,

18
,2

0,
22

,2
4

28
:2

,5
,8

,9
,1

5,
15

29
:5

,5
,1

0,
12

,1
4,

16
29

:1
8,

20
,2

2,
24

30
:2

,4
,6

,9
,1

0
31

:1
8,

18
 3

2:
1,

5,
9

32
:1

3,
18

,2
3 

33
:4

,8
33

:1
2,

17
 3

4:
1,

6,
7

fl
oo

r
7:

12
,1

8,
22

7:
23

fo
ll

ow
in

g
12

:2
4

18
:1

1
fo

re
ca

st
24

:3
,1

1
24

:1
5,

18
,2

2 
25

:1
fo

re
go

in
g

35
:7

fo
rm

u
la

17
:1

5
fo

rw
ar

d
15

:2
3

20
:1

2
fo

u
n

d
6:

11
 1

2:
8

fr
am

p
to

n
1:

19

fu
en

te
s

28
:1

6,
20

fu
n

ct
io

n
11

:2
,1

0
fu

n
d

13
:2

 1
4:

15
16

:2
4 

17
:1

4

g

ge
n

er
al

1:
23

 1
3:

8
20

:8
 2

1:
1 

23
:2

3
25

:1
0

ge
n

er
at

ed
15

:1
6

ge
or

ge
1:

12
 2

1:
23

go
in

g
20

:1
4

go
od

3:
1,

5
go

ve
rn

or
3:

10
12

:1
1 

21
:1

5
gr

an
d

a
1:

19
 2

3:
16

23
:1

6
gu

ar
d

s
7:

18
gu

b
er

n
at

or
ia

l
3:

11
gu

es
t

14
:2

3

h

h
an

d
11

:2
,3

,1
0

35
:1

3
h

an
d

le
20

:1
7

h
ap

p
en

ed
33

:2
0

h
ap

p
y

11
:1

7
h

ea
lt

h
3:

16
 8

:4
h

ea
lt

h
ca

re
1:

22
h

ea
r

4:
13

 7
:2

,1
5

8:
14

 1
9:

23
 2

3:
6

31
:4

,9
,2

3 
32

:3
,7

32
:1

1,
16

,2
1 

33
:2

,6
33

:1
0,

15
,2

0,
24

34
:4

h
ea

rd
7:

5
h

ea
ri

n
g

8:
24

13
:1

8 
16

:8
,2

0
17

:6
,2

0 
25

:1
8

26
:1

8 
30

:2
1

h
el

d
1:

5
h

el
p

15
:1

7
h

er
ei

n
af

te
r

14
:1

0
h

er
eu

n
to

35
:1

2
h

it
19

:2
2 

23
:6

h
ob

er
t

1:
10

 3
:1

,2
3:

9,
23

 4
:1

5,
15

5:
22

,2
3,

24
 8

:1
8,

19
8:

19
 9

:7
,7

,1
7

10
:1

6,
17

,1
9,

21
,2

1
11

:1
4 

13
:5

,5
,2

3
18

:8
,8

,2
0,

20
 1

9:
24

20
:1

,3
,5

,5
 2

1:
10

21
:1

1,
11

 2
2:

2,
2

23
:7

,8
,1

0,
12

,1
2,

17
25

:1
9,

20
,2

0 
26

:4
26

:1
1,

12
,1

2 
27

:1
,1

28
:6

,7
,9

,1
1,

11
,1

6
28

:1
8,

18
 2

9:
3,

3
30

:7
,8

,1
0,

17
,1

7
31

:1
6,

16
 3

4:
2,

3,
7

h
ol

id
ay

s
30

:2
4

h
ol

lo
w

ay
1:

20
26

:3
,3

h
os

p
it

al
11

:2
4

i

il
8:

15
il

li
n

oi
s

1:
1,

5,
17

3:
2,

10
,1

3,
15

,1
7

7:
13

 1
1:

16
 1

3:
3

16
:2

4 
21

:1
3 

35
:5

35
:1

3
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
8:

16
im

p
os

ed
24

:1
0

im
p

ro
ve

15
:1

8
in

cl
u

d
es

24
:1

5
26

:7
in

cl
u

d
in

g
12

:4
24

:1
4

in
co

m
e

24
:1

2,
21

25
:4

in
d

ic
at

e
11

:1
,9

in
d

ic
at

io
n

4:
13

in
d

iv
id

u
al

13
:1

1
in

d
u

st
ri

al
18

:1
in

fo
8:

15
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
24

:1
4

in
it

ia
l

18
:2

in
st

it
u

te
11

:2
0

14
:9

in
te

n
si

ve
24

:7
in

te
n

t
17

:2
1

in
te

re
st

14
:1

5
17

:1
5 

24
:2

1 
25

:4
in

te
rn

al
25

:1
2

in
tr

od
u

ce
14

:2
2

in
ve

st
m

en
t

24
:2

1
25

:4
is

su
an

ce
3:

19
14

:1
7 

16
:2

2
is

su
e

8:
17

 1
7:

23
is

su
ed

3:
11

 1
4:

14
it

em
12

:9
 1

3:
11

,1
4

14
:1

,5
 1

6:
8,

9,
20

16
:2

1 
17

:6
,7

,2
0,

21
20

:1
2 

21
:1

0
it

em
s

13
:1

,9
,1

2,
19

18
:1

1,
12

j

ja
n

u
ar

y
17

:9
24

:1
3 

25
:2

 3
0:

22
31

:2
 3

5:
13

je
ff

10
:1

0
je

ff
re

y
1:

15
 5

:1
8

12
:2

0 
13

:6
 3

1:
12

je
n

n
if

er
1:

14
28

:2
3

jo
35

:4
,1

6
jo

in
12

:2
jo

in
ed

9:
13

jo
in

in
g

7:
13

[f
in

d
in

g 
- 

jo
in

in
g]

P
ag

e 
4

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

jo
n

at
h

an
2:

3
11

:2
4 

15
:3

,7
,9

ju
ra

ce
k

1:
12

 5
:1

,2
9:

19
,2

0 
18

:1
4,

14
18

:1
7,

23
 1

9:
5,

6
22

:1
2,

13
 2

7:
10

,1
1

29
:1

2,
13

 3
2:

5,
6

k

k
ey

p
ad

6:
16

k
n

ow
8:

16
 3

3:
19

k
n

ow
n

11
:1

9

l

la
b

2:
6

la
n

gu
ag

e
20

:1
7

la
sa

ll
e

7:
12

le
av

in
g

20
:1

0,
18

20
:1

9
le

ga
l

1:
23

li
n

e
6:

16
 1

4:
23

28
:3

li
st

ed
26

:5
li

st
en

8:
5

ll
c

13
:3

 1
6:

24
lo

an
17

:9
lo

ca
te

d
11

:3
 1

6:
14

lo
ca

ti
on

4:
8 

7:
6,

17
8:

8
lo

ok
s

15
:2

3
lo

so
ya

35
:4

,1
6

lo
ss

25
:1

,2
lo

w
er

24
:1

9,
20

,2
3

25
:3

m

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
26

:9
m

ak
in

g
6:

4,
7,

22
m

an
ag

em
en

t
3:

14
m

an
ag

er
1:

19
m

an
d

at
e

23
:1

9
m

an
d

at
es

24
:8

,9

m
an

d
at

or
y

17
:1

4
m

ar
i

30
:1

5
m

ar
k

1:
22

 7
:1

3
8:

7 
20

:1
6,

20
m

at
er

ia
ls

12
:8

30
:1

4
m

at
te

r
30

:1
8

m
ed

ic
in

e
11

:2
2

m
ee

t
24

:6
 3

0:
23

m
ee

ti
n

g
1:

2,
5 

3:
3

3:
8,

23
 4

:2
,8

,1
0

7:
2,

6 
9:

14
 1

1:
15

12
:1

5 
20

:9
 2

1:
5,

8
30

:1
3,

22
 3

1:
2,

3
34

:9
,1

0 
35

:7
,9

m
ee

ti
n

gs
3:

21
 6

:2
7:

19
,2

1
m

ei
st

er
1:

21
 4

:6
7:

8,
11

 2
0:

7,
13

,1
4

21
:1

,4
,1

8,
20

 2
2:

6
30

:1
5 

31
:1

m
em

b
er

1:
11

,1
1

1:
12

,1
2,

13
,1

3,
14

1:
14

,1
5,

15
,1

6 
4:

22
4:

24
 5

:2
,4

,7
,1

0,
12

5:
14

,1
6,

20
 6

:6
,1

4
6:

21
 9

:3
,5

,1
0,

10
9:

13
,1

6,
18

,2
0,

22
9:

24
 1

0:
2,

4,
6,

8,
11

10
:1

5 
12

:1
9,

20
13

:1
2 

16
:5

,1
7

17
:3

,1
7 

18
:5

,1
4,

18
18

:2
3,

23
 1

9:
2,

4,
6

19
:8

,1
0,

12
,1

4,
16

19
:1

8,
20

 2
1:

23
22

:1
,5

,5
,9

,1
1,

13
22

:1
5,

17
,1

9,
21

,2
3

23
:1

,3
 2

5:
15

26
:2

1,
23

 2
7:

4,
4,

7
27

:9
,1

1,
13

,1
5,

17
27

:1
9,

21
,2

3 
28

:1
,4

28
:2

3 
29

:1
,6

,6
,9

29
:1

1,
13

,1
5,

17
,1

9
29

:2
1,

23
 3

0:
1,

3,
5

30
:1

4 
31

:9
,1

2,
14

31
:1

4,
19

,1
9,

22
32

:2
,6

,1
0,

15
,2

0
33

:1
,5

,9
,1

4,
18

m
em

b
er

s
1:

2 
4:

5,
9

4:
12

,1
3,

19
 6

:3
 7

:1
8:

2,
12

 1
1:

12
12

:1
6 

13
:8

 1
4:

2
15

:6
 2

1:
7 

24
:1

7
28

:1
4,

16
m

es
sa

ge
12

:7
m

et
12

:1
0,

19
,2

2
21

:1
7

m
ey

er
1:

22
 7

:1
3

8:
7 

20
:1

6 ,
20

m
il

li
on

14
:1

1 
17

:2
18

:4
 2

4:
19

,2
3

m
in

u
te

s
26

:1
5,

19
m

od
if

ic
at

io
n

20
:1

5
m

on
ey

30
:1

5
m

on
th

25
:2

3
m

or
ga

n
14

:1
7

m
or

n
in

g
3:

1,
5

11
:1

7 
12

:2
3 

21
:1

7
m

or
n

in
g'

s
7:

16
8:

5
m

ot
io

n
6:

8,
22

 9
:1

9:
2,

10
,1

5 
10

:2
0

18
:1

0,
12

,1
3,

15
,2

3
20

:4
 2

1:
20

,2
2

22
:5

 2
3:

11
 2

6:
19

26
:2

0 
27

:4
 2

8:
10

28
:1

9,
22

 2
9:

6
30

:1
1 

31
:6

,8
,1

1,
19

34
:8

m
ou

se
6:

13
 1

1:
5

m
ov

e
20

:1
2 

25
:2

3
30

:1
2

m
ov

ed
9:

4 
21

:2
4

26
:2

2 
28

:2
4 

31
:1

3
m

ov
in

g
5:

19
 6

:1
2

11
:5

 1
6:

8,
20

 1
7:

6
17

:2
0 

23
:7

m
u

se
u

m
13

:3
17

:1
2

m
u

te
5:

6 
6:

6,
10

,1
5

7:
7 

10
:1

0,
13

19
:2

2 
23

:5
 3

3:
20

m
u

ti
n

g
20

:1
0

n

n
16

:1
1

n
am

e
6:

22
 1

5:
8

n
am

ed
11

:2
0

n
at

io
n

al
14

:1
8

17
:1

2
n

at
u

re
13

:3
 1

7:
11

n
av

a
28

:1
6,

20
n

ec
es

sa
ry

14
:1

6
31

:2
n

ee
d

13
:1

6,
18

n
et

24
:1

2,
21

 2
5:

1
25

:2
,3

n
ew

12
:2

4 
13

:8
,1

1
13

:1
2,

14
,1

9 
14

:1
15

:3
 1

8:
11

 2
0:

12
21

:9
n

ew
s

11
:2

1
n

oi
se

6:
7

n
om

in
at

in
g

21
:2

0
22

:6
n

om
in

at
io

n
s

12
:1

1
21

:1
4

n
om

in
ee

s
12

:1
4

n
or

th
7:

12
n

ot
e

13
:2

4 
30

:1
3

n
ot

eb
ae

rt
13

:3
17

:1
1

[j
on

at
h

an
 -

 n
ot

eb
ae

rt
]

P
ag

e 
5

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 81



n
ot

es
35

:1
0

n
ot

ic
e

1:
8

n
ov

em
b

er
3:

12
26

:1
0,

16

o

ob
er

n
ag

el
1:

12
 5

:3
5:

4 
9:

21
,2

2 
19

:7
,8

21
:2

3,
24

 2
2:

5,
14

22
:1

5 
27

:1
2,

13
29

:1
4,

15
 3

2:
9,

10
of

fi
ce

4:
7 

21
:6

23
:2

3 
25

:1
0

of
fi

ce
r

2:
4 

12
:1

15
:4

,1
0

ok
ay

10
:1

6,
18

19
:2

3 
23

:6
 2

5:
18

op
en

3:
21

 6
:2

op
er

at
in

g
24

:2
,3

,5
25

:3
op

er
at

io
n

s
26

:7
op

ti
on

11
:3

or
d

er
3:

4,
9 

17
:2

3
or

ga
n

iz
at

io
n

15
:1

4
ou

tc
om

es
15

:1
8

ou
ts

id
e

20
:1

8 
21

:5
ou

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

14
:1

3
17

:1
6

p

p
ac

e
16

:2
1,

23
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

31
:1

0
31

:2
3 

32
:3

,7
,1

1,
16

32
:2

1 
33

:2
,6

,1
0,

15
33

:2
4 

34
:4

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e
28

:1
7

28
:2

1
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
in

g
4:

8
6:

10
,1

5 
8:

13
10

:2
4 

11
:8

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

12
:1

4 
21

:3
p

as
s

18
:1

1
p

at
ie

n
ts

11
:2

3
15

:1
8

p
ay

14
:1

7
p

ay
m

en
ts

17
:1

4
p

eg
gy

13
:3

 1
7:

11
p

er
ce

n
t

24
:1

9,
23

p
er

io
d

17
:2

p
er

so
n

1:
6,

21
 3

:2
3

7:
1

p
er

so
n

al
35

:1
1

p
er

u
gi

n
i

1:
22

14
:2

1 
15

:1
,2

,2
1,

22
p

et
er

1:
11

 9
:3

p
h

on
e

6:
15

,1
7

11
:8

 3
3:

20
p

h
ys

ic
al

4:
4 

7:
6

7:
17

 8
:7

 1
1:

22
p

h
ys

ic
al

ly
7:

11
20

:1
9

p
la

ce
18

:1
7 

20
:2

1
p

la
n

25
:1

3
p

le
as

e
4:

17
 6

:1
0

8:
15

 9
:8

,1
2 

11
:1

,9
18

:2
1 

20
:2

4 
22

:3
23

:1
4 

26
:1

 2
7:

2
29

:4
 3

0:
13

 3
1:

4
31

:1
7

p
le

as
ed

15
:2

p
n

c
17

:1
2

p
oi

n
t

12
:1

5
p

oo
le

1:
13

 5
:5

,7
9:

23
,2

4 
10

:1
5

19
:9

,1
0 

22
:1

,1
,6

22
:1

6,
17

 2
7:

14
,1

5
29

:1
6,

17
 3

2:
14

,1
5

p
or

ti
on

14
:1

3
p

os
it

io
n

12
:1

2
21

:1
8

p
os

it
io

n
s

21
:1

5
p

os
si

b
le

6:
6

p
os

te
d

7:
22

p
ra

ct
ic

al
4:

1
p

re
se

n
ce

4:
4

p
re

se
n

t
1:

9 
2:

2
5:

20
 7

:1
1 

23
:1

4
26

:1
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
on

s
7:

16
p

re
se

n
te

d
14

:1
24

:1
4

p
re

se
n

ti
n

g
24

:1
1

p
re

si
d

en
t

1:
18

,1
9

1:
22

 2
:5

 1
2:

2 
15

:4
15

:1
0

p
re

si
d

io
26

:1
0

p
re

ss
6:

16
 3

0:
14

p
re

ss
in

g
11

:1
0

p
re

vi
ou

sl
y

14
:1

4
p

ri
m

ar
il

y
24

:2
0

p
ri

m
ar

y
14

:2
1

p
ri

tz
k

er
12

:1
1

p
ro

ce
ed

in
g

31
:1

1
p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
1:

4
6:

20
 8

:5
,1

4 
35

:6
,9

p
ro

ce
ed

s
14

:1
2

p
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
s

3:
11

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
1:

20
25

:2
4 

26
:2

,6
p

ro
gr

es
s

25
:8

p
ro

je
ct

s
12

:3
 1

4:
5

18
:1

 2
4:

15
p

ro
vi

d
e

12
:1

6
20

:1
7

p
ro

vi
d

er
11

:2
1

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

6:
9,

23
15

:1
3

p
ro

vi
si

on
s

3:
13

,2
0

p
ru

d
en

t
4:

1

p
u

b
li

c
3:

15
 6

:1
5

7:
1,

18
,2

1 
8:

2,
3,

8
8:

12
 1

0:
23

 1
1:

7
11

:1
1 

21
:7

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

16
:2

4
p

u
rc

h
as

in
g

14
:1

8
16

:1
3,

16
p

u
rs

u
an

t
1:

7 
3:

13
18

:3
 2

1:
13

p
u

t
31

:3

q

q
u

es
ti

on
s

16
:5

,1
7

17
:3

,1
7 

18
:5

25
:1

5
q

u
it

33
:2

1
q

u
or

u
m

4:
5 

6:
2

r

ra
is

e
11

:2
,2

,1
0

ra
n

d
y

1:
15

 2
9:

1
ra

te
17

:1
5

re
ac

h
12

:1
5

re
ce

iv
ed

21
:1

4
re

co
m

m
en

d
12

:2
4

re
co

m
m

en
d

ed
21

:1
8

re
co

rd
6:

9,
23

 9
:1

2
11

:2
3  

20
:2

4
re

co
rd

ed
6:

18
13

:1
0

re
cu

sa
l

13
:1

6 ,
18

re
cu

se
d

21
:2

re
d

em
p

ti
on

17
:1

4
re

d
u

ce
15

:1
5

re
d

u
ce

d
24

:4
,6

re
fi

n
an

ce
15

:1
4

re
fl

ec
t

9:
12

 2
0:

24
re

fu
n

d
14

:1
2

re
gu

la
r

1:
2,

4 
3:

8
4:

2

[n
ot

es
 -

 r
eg

u
la

r]
P

ag
e 

6

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

re
gu

la
rl

y
9:

13
11

:1
5 

30
:2

1 
34

:9
re

h
ab

il
it

at
io

n
11

:2
0,

23
 1

4:
8

re
la

te
d

3:
15

 1
7:

16
re

le
as

ed
25

:1
0

re
m

ai
n

25
:8

re
m

ai
n

d
er

21
:8

re
m

ai
n

in
g

21
:5

re
m

ai
n

s
3:

18
re

m
in

d
er

6:
18

re
p

or
t

1:
4 

11
:2

1
12

:1
7 

25
:9

,1
4,

24
26

:2
,6

,7
re

p
or

te
d

35
:6

re
p

or
te

r
6:

19
,2

1
35

:1
,5

re
p

or
ti

n
g

24
:7

re
p

or
ts

12
:9

 2
3:

15
25

:2
2

re
q

u
es

t
6:

5 
8:

24
14

:6
 1

6:
9 

17
:2

2
18

:3
,1

0 
21

:1
9

26
:1

8 
28

:1
9 

31
:6

re
q

u
es

ts
14

:7
16

:1
0

re
q

u
ir

ed
24

:7
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

8:
4

re
se

ar
ch

15
:1

7
re

so
lu

ti
on

14
:3

,8
16

:1
1,

21
 1

7:
7,

21
18

:3
re

so
u

rc
e

24
:7

re
so

u
rc

es
24

:6
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

13
:1

1
20

:1
1

re
sp

on
d

in
g

31
:7

re
sp

on
se

4:
12

 8
:2

3
11

:1
3 

13
:1

7 
16

:7
16

:1
9 

17
:5

,1
9

18
:7

 2
5:

17
 2

6:
17

30
:2

0
re

st
15

:2
4

re
ve

n
u

e
24

:3
,1

5
re

ve
n

u
es

24
:1

2,
18

25
:3

re
vi

se
s

17
:1

3
ri

ch
1:

19
ro

ge
r

1:
13

 5
:6

,8
22

:1
 3

2:
18

ro
ll

4:
11

,1
7,

20
 9

:8
9:

11
 1

3:
20

 1
8:

21
18

:2
4 

22
:3

,7
 2

7:
2

27
:5

 2
9:

4,
7 

31
:7

31
:1

7,
20

ro
om

7:
12

 8
:4

20
:1

9 
21

:5
ro

om
s

20
:1

1
rp

r
35

:1
6

ry
an

1:
13

 2
:5

 5
:9

5:
10

 1
0:

1,
2 

11
:1

8
13

:1
 1

4:
9,

22
 1

5:
4

15
:1

1,
12

,2
4 

19
:1

1
19

:1
2 

22
:1

8,
19

26
:2

1,
21

 2
7:

4,
16

27
:1

7 
29

:1
8,

19
32

:1
9,

20

s

sa
fe

ty
8:

4
sa

ra
1:

22
 1

4:
20

,2
4

15
:2

,2
1 

16
:4

sa
vi

n
gs

15
:1

6
sc

h
ed

u
le

17
:1

3
25

:8
sc

h
ed

u
le

d
9:

13
11

:1
5 

30
:2

2 
34

:9
sc

ie
n

ce
s

17
:1

1
sc

re
en

6:
11

,1
3

11
:4

,6
se

co
n

d
9:

6,
10

 1
7:

8
17

:1
3 

18
:1

6,
19

,2
3

22
:1

,5
 2

6:
24

 2
7:

4

29
:2

,6
 3

1:
15

,1
9

se
co

n
d

in
g

6:
8,

22
se

cr
et

ar
y

1:
18

,2
2

3:
6 

4:
16

 7
:1

4 
8:

7
9:

8 
18

:2
1 

20
:1

5
20

:1
6,

20
 2

2:
3

27
:2

 2
9:

4 
31

:1
7

se
ct

io
n

3:
21

 6
:1

se
cu

ri
ty

7:
17

 8
:1

se
e

6:
12

 1
1:

5
se

n
io

r
2:

5 
12

:1
15

:4
,9

se
p

ar
at

el
y

13
:1

3
13

:1
5

se
ri

es
14

:1
3 

16
:2

3
17

:1
6

se
rv

e
15

:9
,1

8
se

rv
er

26
:9

se
ss

io
n

30
:1

9
se

t
35

:1
2

sh
ar

e
30

:1
6

sh
ir

le
y

2:
5 

11
:1

8
13

:1
 1

4:
9,

22
 1

5:
4

15
:1

1,
11

,2
4

sh
or

th
an

d
35

:4
,6

si
gn

at
u

re
35

:1
6

si
gn

if
ic

an
tl

y
15

:1
5

si
n

k
in

g
17

:1
4

si
r

10
:1

4 
32

:1
3,

23
33

:1
2

si
x

23
:1

4,
16

 2
5:

21
sl

ig
h

t
20

:1
5

so
lv

e
8:

17
sp

ec
if

ic
13

:1
2

st
af

f
1:

17
 1

4:
7

16
:1

0 
24

:4
,1

1
25

:1
3

st
an

le
y

14
:1

8
st

ar
k

16
:1

4
st

at
e

3:
10

,1
5,

17
6:

22
 1

6:
15

 3
5:

5

st
at

em
en

t
24

:1
1

st
at

u
to

ry
23

:1
9

24
:9

st
ay

31
:4

st
en

og
ra

p
h

ic
35

:1
0

st
ep

p
in

g
21

:4
st

re
et

7:
12

su
b

se
ct

io
n

3:
21

6:
1

su
b

se
q

u
en

t
13

:1
0

su
b

se
ri

es
16

:2
3

su
p

p
or

t
26

:6
,1

0

t

ta
b

le
t

6:
13

 1
1:

6
ta

k
e

4:
11

 1
3:

20
ta

k
en

4:
12

 3
5:

10
ta

sk
6:

11
 1

1:
5

ta
x

15
:1

5 
17

:2
3

te
am

16
:1

te
rm

12
:5

 2
1:

16
22

:7
te

rm
in

at
e

12
:1

4
te

rm
in

at
in

g
21

:2
te

st
im

on
y

4:
14

31
:1

0,
24

 3
2:

4,
8,

12
32

:1
7,

22
 3

3:
3,

7,
11

33
:1

6,
24

 3
4:

5
th

an
k

3:
1 

4:
16

,2
3

5:
1,

3,
5,

8,
11

,1
3,

15
5:

17
,2

1,
24

 7
:8

8:
11

,2
0 

9:
17

,1
9,

21
9:

23
 1

0:
1,

3,
5,

7,
9

10
:1

2,
22

 1
2:

21
13

:6
,2

3 
15

:1
,8

,1
3

15
:2

2 
16

:4
 1

8:
9

19
:3

,5
,7

,9
,1

1,
13

19
:1

5,
17

,1
9,

21
20

:2
,6

,2
1,

22
 2

1:
12

22
:1

0,
12

,1
4,

16
,1

8
22

:2
0,

22
,2

4 
23

:2
,4

[r
eg

u
la

rl
y 

- 
th

an
k

]
P

ag
e 

7

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 82



23
:1

3,
16

 2
5:

19
,2

1
26

:1
3 

27
:8

,1
0,

12
27

:1
4,

16
,1

8,
20

,2
2

27
:2

4 
28

:2
,5

,8
,1

2
28

:1
9 

29
:1

0,
12

,1
4

29
:1

6,
18

,2
0,

22
,2

4
30

:2
,4

,6
,9

,1
8 

32
:1

32
:5

,9
,1

3,
18

,2
3

33
:8

,1
2,

17
 3

4:
1,

6
th

an
k

s
20

:1
3 

26
:4

26
:1

1
th

in
gs

14
:2

0
th

re
e

7:
18

,2
0,

21
th

u
rs

d
ay

7:
24

ti
gh

t
24

:1
0

ti
m

26
:2

1
ti

m
e

3:
9 

6:
3 

8:
6

12
:1

6 
13

:2
4 

14
:7

15
:1

9,
22

 1
6:

10
,2

2
16

:2
2 

17
:2

4 
20

:8
25

:1
3 

34
:8

ti
m

ot
h

y
1:

13
ti

n
gs

ta
d

2:
3 

11
:2

4
15

:3
,5

,8
,9

,2
3

to
b

on
1:

14
 5

:1
1,

12
10

:3
,4

 1
9:

13
,1

4
22

:2
0,

21
 2

6:
23

,2
3

27
:5

,1
8,

19
 2

9:
20

29
:2

1 
32

:2
4 

33
:1

to
d

ay
3:

24
 7

:1
9

12
:4

,1
1 

15
:2

0
28

:1
7,

21
to

d
ay

's
3:

7 
6:

5,
19

8:
22

 1
3:

1 
14

:2
to

ta
l

23
:2

4
to

u
ch

in
g

6:
13

 1
1:

5
to

u
lo

n
16

:1
5

tr
ac

to
r

10
:1

5
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
14

:1
9

15
:1

6 
16

:1
,1

6

tr
an

sc
ri

b
ed

35
:1

0
tr

an
sc

ri
b

in
g

6:
19

tr
an

sc
ri

p
t

35
:8

tr
an

sf
er

ee
17

:1
tr

an
sl

at
io

n
al

15
:1

7
tr

u
e

35
:8

tu
es

d
ay

1:
7 

3:
7

tu
n

ed
31

:4
tu

rn
12

:8
 1

4:
20

25
:1

8
tu

rn
in

g
20

:9
tw

o
21

:1
4 

23
:2

0
25

:6

u

u
.s

.
11

:2
1,

24
u

n
ab

le
28

:1
6,

21
u

n
an

im
ou

sl
y

12
:2

3 
21

:1
7

u
n

d
er

w
ay

25
:1

3
u

n
m

u
te

6:
15

u
se

6:
10

v

vi
ce

1:
18

,1
9,

22
 2

:5
12

:1
 1

5:
4,

9
vi

d
eo

1:
6,

9 
4:

3,
9

4:
10

,1
9 

6:
10

 7
:2

,5
8:

13
 1

0:
24

 2
1:

3,
4

vo
lu

m
e

13
:4

 1
7:

23
18

:2
vo

lu
n

ta
ry

24
:4

vo
te

13
:1

0,
21

vo
te

d
12

:2
3

vo
te

s
7:

16
vo

ti
n

g
6:

8 w

w
an

te
d

30
:1

5
w

at
so

n
1:

14
 5

:1
3

5:
14

 1
0:

5,
6 

19
:1

5
19

:1
6 

22
:2

2,
23

27
:2

0,
21

 2
8:

23
,2

3
29

:6
,2

2,
23

 3
3:

4,
5

w
ay

6:
4

w
eb

er
1:

23
 2

0:
8

21
:1

w
eb

si
te

7:
24

w
ee

k
s

25
:1

1 
31

:5
w

el
co

m
e

11
:1

4,
17

15
:3

w
ex

le
r

1:
15

 5
:1

5
5:

16
 1

0:
7,

8 
19

:1
7

19
:1

8 
22

:2
4 

23
:1

27
:2

2,
23

 2
9:

1,
1,

7
29

:2
4 

30
:1

 3
3:

8,
9

w
h

er
eo

f
35

:1
2

w
is

h
8:

21
 2

6:
14

w
is

h
es

10
:2

4 
11

:8
w

it
n

es
s

35
:1

2
w

or
k

in
g

15
:2

4
33

:2
1

w
or

ld
11

:2
1

w
ri

gh
t

1:
15

 5
:1

8
9:

13
 1

0:
9,

11
12

:1
9,

20
,2

0 
19

:1
9

19
:2

0 
23

:2
,3

27
:2

4 
28

:1
 3

0:
2,

3
31

:1
2,

12
,1

9 
33

:1
3

33
:1

4
w

ri
te

8:
15

w
ri

tt
en

12
:8

x

xi
m

en
a

1:
19

y

ye
ar

13
:4

 1
8:

1,
4

21
:1

6 
22

:7
 2

3:
20

23
:2

0,
21

,2
2 

25
:5

,6
25

:7
,7

,1
2

ye
ar

s
11

:1
9 

15
:1

9
17

:2

yg
re

n
e

13
:2

 1
6:

24

z

ze
ll

er
1:

16
 5

:1
9,

20
10

:1
2,

13
 1

9:
21

23
:4

 2
8:

2,
4 

30
:4

,5
31

:1
4,

15
,2

0 
33

:1
7

33
:1

8

[t
h

an
k

 -
 z

el
le

r]
P

ag
e 

8

V
er

it
ex

t L
eg

al
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

w
w

w
.v

er
it

ex
t.c

om
88

8-
39

1-
33

76

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 83



 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

DECEMBER 14, 2021 QUORUM 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

12 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel †  Y Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright (Added) † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † Y Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 84



 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

DECEMBER 14, 2021 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 

APPROVED 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 85



       NO. 01 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF01 

PRIVATE ACTIVITY BONDS - REVENUE BONDS 

REHABILITATION INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO  

D/B/A SHIRLEY RYAN ABILITYLAB 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 86



       NO. 02 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF02 

PRIVATE ACTIVITY BONDS - REVENUE BONDS 

BEGINNING FARMER - DANIEL N. FEUCHT 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda  

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 87



       NO. 03 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF03 

PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY BONDS – REVENUE BONDS 

 YGRENE ENERGY FUND ILLINOIS, LLC 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 88



       NO. 04 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF04 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS 

OF JANUARY 1, 2013 WITH THE CHICAGO ACADEMY OF SCIENCES AND 

APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDED BOND AND CERTAIN 

OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING THERETO; AND RELATED MATTERS 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 89



       NO. 05 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF05 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT REQUESTING AN INITIAL ALLOCATION OF 

CALENDAR YEAR 2022 PRIVATE ACTIVITY VOLUME CAP IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $120,000,000 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 90



       NO. 06 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1214-CF06 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY 

APPROVED* 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

11 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † NV Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

NV – Denotes Not Voting 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 * Consent Agenda 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 91



 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

AUTHORITY FROM NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

APPROVED 

 

 

 December 14, 2021 

 

12 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † Y Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 
 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 92



 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

EXCUSING THE ABSENCE OF ANY MEMBERS UNABLE TO PARTICIPATE 

IN ANY VOTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE AUTHORITY 

 FOR DECEMBER 14, 2021 

APPROVED 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

12 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † Y Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 93



 

 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

ADJOURNING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE AUTHORITY FOR 

DECEMBER 14, 2021 AND EACH MEMBER’S CONFIRMATION OF HIS OR HER 

ABILITY TO HEAR ALL PARTICIPANTS, DISCUSSION AND TESTIMONY 

APPROVED 

 

December 14, 2021 

 

12 YEAS           0 NAYS           0 PRESENT 

 

Y Amaro † Y Obernagel † Y  Wexler † 

Y Beres † Y Poole † Y Wright † 

E Fuentes  Y Ryan † Y Zeller † 

Y Juracek † Y Tobon † Y Chair Hobert † 

E Nava  Y Watson †   

 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

† In accordance with the provisions of Section 7(e) of the Open Meetings Act, the 

Member participated via audio or video conference. 

 

 

  

 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 94



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

XI. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 95



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 96



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 97



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 98



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 99



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 100



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 101



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 102



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 103



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 104



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 105



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 106



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 107



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 108



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 109



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 110



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 111



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 112



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 113



Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 114



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 115



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 116



  
APPENDIX A - INFORMATION 

REGARDING NEW 
BUSINESS ITEMS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
Tuesday, February 8, 2022 

9:30 AM 
 
 
 

Michael A. Bilandic Building 
160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Printed by authority of the State of Illinois, 2/4/2022, published electronically only 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 117



Call-In: 888-494-4032 3:00 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139# 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

1 The University of Chicago Medical Center Chicago and Harvey (Cook County) $450,000,000  N/A  N/A SP

2 Illinois Institute of Technology Chicago (Cook County) $50,000,000  N/A  N/A RF

Beginning Farmer - Mason Tjelle Dwight Township (Livingston County) $575,400                         -                           -   LK

4 Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC Statewide $200,000,000                         -                           -   BF

$700,575,400                         -                           -   

$700,575,400                         -                           -   

Tab Staff

5 SP

6 SP

7 RF

Conduit Financings

Resolution Authorizing and Approving Amendments to the Bond Trust Indenture relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2017 (Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc.)

GRAND TOTAL

Direct and Alternative Financings

Illinois Finance Authority
February 8, 2022
Appendix A

NEW BUSINESS

CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Take Actions to Apply to the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for a Sub-
Allocation of State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI) Funds from the U.S. Department of Treasury and to Establish a Participation Loan Product and 
Other Financial Products Using Such Funds in Furtherance of Climate Bank Purposes, and Other Matters Related Thereto

TOTAL CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

Resolution Authorizing the Amendment and Restatement of the Loan Agreement relating to the $15,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 
2010A (Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers) and Approving Related Matters

RESOLUTIONS

Action

Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

Property Assessed Clean Energy Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

3

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 118



 
 

February 8, 2022 

 CONDUIT

$450,000,000 (not-to-exceed)  
The University of Chicago Medical Center 

 
REQUEST Purpose: The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC” or the “Borrower”), an 

Illinois not-for-profit corporation, has requested that the Illinois Finance Authority (the 
“Authority”) issue one or more series of its Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $450,000,000 (the “Bonds”) to be used, together with certain 
other funds to: (i) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance 
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009D-1 (The University of Chicago 
Medical Center) (the “Series 2009D-1 Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount 
of approximately $35,000,000; (ii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount 
of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009D-2 (The 
University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2009D-2 Bonds”), currently outstanding in 
the principal amount of approximately $35,000,000; (iii) refund all or a portion of the 
outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009E-1 (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2009E-1 
Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $60,000,000; (iv) 
refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009E-2 (The University of Chicago Medical 
Center) (the “Series 2009E-2 Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of 
approximately $10,000,000; (v) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of 
Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (The 
University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2010A Bonds”), currently outstanding in 
the principal amount of approximately $46,250,000; (vi) refund all or a portion of the 
outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010B (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2010B 
Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $46,250,000; (vii) 
refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A (The University of Chicago Medical 
Center) (the “Series 2011A Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of 
approximately $46,250,000; (viii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of 
Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (The 
University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2011B Bonds” and, together with the 
Series 2009D-1 Bonds, the Series 2009D-2 Bonds, the Series 2009E-1 Bonds, the Series 
2009E-2 Bonds, the Series 2010A Bonds, the Series 2010B Bonds and the Series 2011A 
Bonds, the “Prior Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately 
$46,250,000; (ix) pay certain payments owed by the Borrower in connection with the 
termination of certain interest rate swap agreements related to the Prior Bonds; (x) pay a 
portion of the interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable by the Authority and/or 
the Borrower; and (xi) pay certain fees or expenses incurred in connection with the refunding 
of the Prior Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None 

BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution (one-time consideration).  

MATERIAL CHANGES None.  This is the first time this project has been presented to the Members of the Authority. 

BORROWER JOB DATA 10,094 Current jobs 0 New jobs projected 

  N/A Retained jobs 0 Construction jobs projected 

BORROWER DESCRIPTION  Locations: Chicago and Harvey, Illinois (Cook County/Northeast and Southland Regions) 
 The Borrower currently operates three hospitals and an ambulatory care facility located on the 

main campus of the University of Chicago and The Ingalls Memorial Hospital, as well as certain 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 119



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 2       Sara D. Perugini  
 

outlying facilities and activities. The Borrower is currently licensed to operate 1,296 beds, of 
which 1,116 beds are currently staffed. The three hospitals operated by the Borrower on the 
main campus of the University of Chicago consist of: (i) the Center for Care and Discovery, an 
adult patient care facility for complex and specialty care, (ii) Bernard Mitchell Hospital, an adult 
patient care facility, and (iii) Comer Children’s Hospital. Ingalls Memorial Hospital, located in 
the South Suburban Harvey is an acute care hospital. 

 The Borrower is a member of an obligated group formed in 2019 consisting of the following 
members:  the Borrower, UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc. (formerly, Ingalls 
Health System) (“CHHD”), The Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“IMH”), Ingalls Home Care 
(“IHC”) and Ingalls Development Foundation (“IDF” and, together with the Borrower, CHHD, 
IMH and IHC, the “Members of the Obligated Group”). 

 Each Member of the Obligated Group is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation which has been 
recognized as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the 
“Code”) and which is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code. 

SECURITY All Obligations issued under the Master Trust Indenture, including the Obligation securing the 
Bonds, will be secured by a security interest in the Unrestricted Receivables of the Members of the 
Obligated Group. 
 

STRUCTURE/CREDIT INDICATORS  The Bonds, as contemplated, will be issued in one or more fixed rate series and will initially be 
sold in a limited offering underwritten by RBC Capital Markets.  As issued, initial sale and 
secondary market resale of the Bonds is limited to Institutional Accredited Investors and/or 
Qualified Institutional Buyers in minimum denominations of $100,000.  Such investors/buyers 
have relied upon publicly available information and materials in making their decision to 
purchase the Bonds, and such investors/buyers will state that they have received all information 
that they believe is necessary and appropriate in making their decision to purchase the Bonds 
(which may include draft documents).    It is contemplated in the bond documents that within a 
specified number of days following the issuance of the Bonds, certain conditions (including the 
delivery of at least one investment-grade rating on the Bonds, the delivery of a disclosure 
document made available to the public and the delivery of other related opinions, certificates, 
showings and documents) will be met to allow the Bonds to be sold to the public by the holders 
thereof in the secondary market tin minimum denominations of $5,000.  

 The Bonds will not be rated at the time of issuance due to the contemplated initial structure of a 
limited offering underwritten by RBC Capital Markets to Institutional Accredited Investors 
and/or Qualified Institutional Buyers in minimum denominations of $100,000.  The Borrower 
has long-term underlying ratings of ‘A1’, Stable Outlook, by Moody’s as of December 4, 2019,  
‘AA-‘, Stable Outlook, by S&P as of October 21, 2021 and ‘AA-‘, Stable Outlook, by Fitch as 
of March 18, 2021.  The bond documents will provide that, within a specified number of days 
following the issuance of the Bonds, the Borrower will seek an investment-grade rating on the 
Bonds by at least one rating agency that currently maintains a long-term rating on certain of the 
Borrower’s existing debt in order to meet one of the conditions that will enable the Bonds to be 
sold in denominations of $5,000 as described in the previous bullet point.   

MATURITY Bonds will mature no later than August 1, 2044. 
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES Sources:   Uses:  

 

Bonds 
Premium 

$331,800,000 
$53,245,168 

 
 
 

Refunding of Prior Bonds 
Swap Termination Payment 
Costs of issuance 

(Estimated)        
 

$325,000,000 
$57,750,000 
$2,295,168 

 
Total $385,045,168 Total $385,045,168  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Peer Review Committee recommends approval of the Final Bond Resolution for consideration in 
connection with this financing. 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 120



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 3       Sara D. Perugini  
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT 

February 8, 2022 
 
Project:  The University of Chicago Medical Center 

STATISTICS 

Project Number: 12529 Amount: $450,000,000 (not-to-exceed) 
Type:   501(c)3) Bonds IFA Staff: Sara D. Perugini 
Location:   Chicago County/Region: Cook/Northeast and Southland 

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution (one-time consideration) No Authority Funds at Risk  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds No extraordinary conditions 
Peer Review Committee recommends approval of the Final Bond Resolution for consideration in connection with 
this financing.   

AUTHORITY PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bonds that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance and/or refinance 
capital projects that will be used to further their charitable mission.  The Authority’s issuance will convey federal 
income tax-exempt status on interest earned on tax-exempt Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the 
Borrower’s interest expense. 

 

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) bond issues do not require Volume Cap. 

JOBS 

Current employment:     10,094 New jobs projected:        0  
Retained jobs:                 N/A Construction jobs projected:       0   
  

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources:  Uses:  
Bonds 
Premium 

$331,800,000 
$53,245,168 

Refunding of Prior Bonds 
Swap Termination Payment 
Costs of Issuance (Estimated) 
 

$325,000,000 
$57,750,000 
$2,295,168 

Total $385,045,168 Total        $385,045,168 

    
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 121



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 4       Sara D. Perugini  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Purpose: The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC” or the “Borrower”), an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation, has requested that the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) issue one or more 
series of its Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $450,000,000 (the 
“Bonds”) to be used, together with certain other funds to: (i) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal 
amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009D-1 (The University 
of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2009D-1 Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of 
approximately $35,000,000; (ii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance 
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009D-2 (The University of Chicago Medical 
Center) (the “Series 2009D-2 Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately 
$35,000,000; (iii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2009E-1 (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the 
“Series 2009E-1 Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $60,000,000; (iv) 
refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009E-2 (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2009E-2 Bonds”), 
currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $10,000,000; (v) refund all or a portion of the 
outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 
2010A (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2010A Bonds”), currently outstanding in the 
principal amount of approximately $46,250,000; (vi) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal 
amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (The University of 
Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2010B Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of 
approximately $46,250,000; (vii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance 
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A (The University of Chicago Medical Center) 
(the “Series 2011A Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $46,250,000; 
(viii) refund all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate 
Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (The University of Chicago Medical Center) (the “Series 2011B 
Bonds” and, together with the Series 2009D-1 Bonds, the Series 2009D-2 Bonds, the Series 2009E-1 Bonds, 
the Series 2009E-2 Bonds, the Series 2010A Bonds, the Series 2010B Bonds and the Series 2011A Bonds, the 
“Prior Bonds”), currently outstanding in the principal amount of approximately $46,250,000; (ix) pay certain 
payments owed by the Borrower in connection with the termination of certain interest rate swap agreements 
related to the Prior Bonds; (x) pay a portion of the interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable by 
the Authority and/or the Borrower; and (xi) pay certain fees or expenses incurred in connection with the 
refunding of the Prior Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds.  

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

 Locations:  Chicago (Cook County/Northeast and Southland Regions) 
 The Borrower currently operates three hospitals and an ambulatory care facility located on the main campus of 

the University of Chicago, as well as certain outlying facilities and activities. The Borrower is currently licensed 
to operate 1,296 beds, of which 1,116 beds are currently staffed. The three hospitals operated by the Borrower 
on the main campus of the University of Chicago consist of: (i) the Center for Care and Discovery, an adult 
patient care facility for complex and specialty care, (ii) Bernard Mitchell Hospital, an adult patient care facility, 
and (iii) Comer Children’s Hospital.  Ingalls Memorial Hospital, located in the South Suburban Harvey is an 
acute care hospital. 

 The Borrower is a member of an obligated group formed in 2019 consisting of the following members:  the 
Borrower, UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc. (formerly, Ingalls Health System) (“CHHD”), 
The Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“IMH”), Ingalls Home Care (“IHC”) and Ingalls Development Foundation 
(“IDF” and, together with the Borrower, CHHD, IMH and IHC, the “Members of the Obligated Group”). 

 Each Member of the Obligated Group is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation which has been recognized as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) and which are exempt 
from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code. 

FINANCING SUMMARY 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 122



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 5       Sara D. Perugini  
 
Security: The Bonds will be secured by a security interest in the Unrestricted Receivables of the 

Members of the Obligated Group. 
 
Structure: The Bonds, as contemplated, will be issued in one or more fixed rate series and will 

initially be sold in a limited offering underwritten by RBC Capital Markets.  As issued, 
initial sale and secondary market resale of the Bonds is limited to Institutional Accredited 
Investors and/or Qualified Institutional Buyers in minimum denominations of $100,000.  
Such investors/buyers have relied upon publicly available information and materials in 
making their decision to purchase the Bonds, and such investors/buyers will state that 
they have received all information that they believe is necessary and appropriate in 
making their decision to purchase the Bonds (which may include draft documents).    It is 
contemplated in the bond documents that within a specified number of days following the 
issuance of the Bonds, certain conditions (including the delivery of at least one 
investment-grade rating on the Bonds, the delivery of a disclosure document made 
available to the public and the delivery of other related opinions, certificates, showings 
and documents) will be met to allow the Bonds to be sold to the public by the holders 
thereof for trading in the secondary market in minimum denominations of $5,000.  

 
 
Interest Rate Mode: Fixed Rate Mode 
 
Interest Rate: The rates on the Bonds will be determined on the day of pricing.  The Final Bond 

Resolution establishes interest rate parameters of not to exceed 6.00% on the Bonds.      
 
Credit Enhancement:  None 
 
Maturity:   Bonds will mature no later than August 1, 2044. 
 
Rating: The Bonds will not be rated at the time of issuance due to the contemplated initial 

structure of a limited offering underwritten by RBC Capital Markets to Institutional 
Accredited Investors and/or Qualified Institutional Buyers in minimum denominations of 
$100,000.  The Borrower has long-term underlying ratings of ‘A1’, Stable Outlook, by 
Moody’s as of December 4, 2019,  ‘AA-‘, Stable Outlook, by S&P as of October 21, 
2021 and ‘AA-‘, Stable Outlook, by Fitch as of March 18, 2021 The bond documents will 
provide that, within a specified number of days following the issuance of the Bonds, the 
Borrower will seek an investment-grade rating on the Bonds by at least one rating agency 
that currently maintains a long-term rating on certain of the Borrower’s existing debt in 
order to meet one of the conditions that will enable the Bonds to be sold in denominations 
of $5,000 as described above.   

 
Estimated Closing Date:    February, 2022 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicant:  The University of Chicago Medical Center 
   5841 S. Maryland Avenue 

Chicago (Cook County), IL  
60637-1447 
 

Contact:    Ivan Samstein, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Website:    www.uchospitals.edu 
 
Borrower:    The University of Chicago Medical Center 
 
Board Members: 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 123



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 6       Sara D. Perugini  
 
Brien O’Brien, Chair 
Paul Alivisatos (ex officio) 
Andrew M. Alper 
Philip Alphonse 
Robert (Bob) Behar, MD 
Kevin J. Brown 
Paul J. Carbone 
Cynthia Chereskin  
Robert G. Clark 
Douglas M. Cook 
John D. Cooney 
Thomas J. Duckworth 
Barry E. Fields 
Rodney L. Goldstein 
Nickol R. Hackett 
Stephanie Harris 
Thomas Jackiewicz (ex officio) 
Jonathan Jonas 
Ashley D. Joyce 
Patrick J. Kelly 
Rachel D. Kohler 
Ka Yee Lee (ex officio) 
 

Cheryl Mayberry-McKissack 
Brian Miller 
Steven Montner, MD (ex officio) 
Joseph Neubauer (ex officio) 
Emily Nicklin 
Joseph P. Nolan 
Louis Pinkham IV 
Kenneth S. Polonsky, M.D. (ex officio) 
Nicholas K. Pontikes 
Kevin M. Purcell 
John D. Rayis 
Scott Silverman 
Robin M. Steans 
James C. Stephen 
Alexis Strongin, MD 
John A. Svoboda 
Michael Tang 
Bryan Traubert, MD 
Scott Wald 
Paul G. Yovovich 
Robert J. Zimmer (ex officio) 
 

   
 
Life Trustees:   
Paul F. Anderson 
Ellen Block 
Craig J. Duchossois 
James S. Frank 
Stanford J. Goldblatt 
Jonathan Kovler 
Howard G. Krane 
John D. Mabie 
Barry L. MacLean 
Gordon Segal 
Terry Van Der Aa 
Paula Wolff 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP  Chicago Chad Doobay 
Bond Counsel:    Chapman and Cutler LLP  Chicago John Bibby 
     Megan Rudd   
Borrower’s 
Advisor: Swap Financial Group  New York Nat Singer 
Underwriter: RBC Capital Markets  Chicago Jerry Berg 
     Carlos Pineiro    
Underwriter’s Counsel: Polsinelli LLP  Chicago Janet Ziegler 
Trustee: Computershare  Chicago Gail Klewin 
     Chitra Patel 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 124



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 7       Sara D. Perugini  
 
Issuer’s Counsel: Burke Burns & Pinelli, Ltd.  Chicago Stephen Welcome 
     Martin T. Burns   

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 

Congressional:      1, 2 
State Senate:    13, 15  
State House:     26, 30  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 125



The University of Chicago Medical Center            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       February 8, 2022 
Page 8       Sara D. Perugini  
 

 

SERVICE AREA 

UCMC’s primary service area consists of the Southern Metropolitan Chicago Area, including the south side of the City of 
Chicago, the south and southwest suburbs of Chicago and northwest Indiana.  This area includes just over 175 zip codes.  
The Ingalls primary service area consists of the Southland region, including Harvey, IL and surrounding areas, and 
Northwest IN communities, Munster and Hammond.  This area includes over 50 zip codes. 
 
 
 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 126



 
 

 February 8, 2022 

  CONDUIT 
 
 

$50,000,000 (not-to-exceed)  
Illinois Institute of Technology 

 
REQUEST Purpose:  The Illinois Institute of Technology, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Corporation”, 

“Illinois Tech”, or the “University”), has requested that the Authority issue not to exceed $50,000,000 
(excluding original issue discount or premium, if any) in aggregate principal amount of revenue bonds 
consisting of one or more series of Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (Illinois Institute of Technology) (the 
“Bonds”), and loan the proceeds thereof to the Corporation in order to assist the Corporation in providing all 
or a portion of the funds necessary to do any or all of the following: to (i) refund all or a portion of the 
outstanding Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 2018 (Illinois Institute of Technology) (the 
“Series 2018 Bonds”), (ii) pay a portion of the interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or advisable by 
the Authority or the Corporation, (iii) fund a debt service reserve fund, if deemed necessary or advisable by 
the Authority or the Corporation, and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of 
the Bonds including the costs of bond insurance or other credit or liquidity enhancement, if any,  and certain 
expenses incurred in connection with the refunding of the Series 2018 Bonds (collectively, the “Financing 
Purposes”). 
Program:  Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 
Extraordinary Conditions:  None. 

BOARD ACTION Final Bond Resolution (One-time consideration) 

MATERIAL 

CHANGES 
None. This is the first time this financing has been presented to the Board of Directors. 

JOB DATA *683 (402-FT; 281-PT) 
Faculty 

*568 Staff 

Current (FT+PT) 
 
Current (FT+PT) 

N/A New jobs projected (Refunding Bonds) 

  N/A 
* Pursuant to Continuing 
Disclosure Report posted 

as of  Oct. 2021 

Retained jobs N/A Construction jobs projected (Refunding Bonds) 

BORROWER 
DESCRIPTION 

● Locations (Financed with IFA Series 2018 Bond Proceeds): Chicago / Cook County / Northeast  
● Type of entity: The Illinois Institute of Technology is a private co-educational, non-sectarian institute of 

higher education established in 1940.  The University is a result of the merger of the Armour Institute of 
Technology and the Lewis Institute.  The Institute of Design, created in 1937, joined the University in 
1949.  The Chicago Kent School of Law merged with the University in 1969. 

● Illinois Tech’s mission is to provide a world-class education for students from the United States and around 
the world and continue to serve as an institute for research. 

● Illinois Tech currently serves approximately 5,884 (Fall 2021 - FTEs) undergraduate, graduate, and law 
students at its campuses and research facilities located at two Chicago locations (Main Campus – 10 W. 
35th Street and Chicago-Kent School of Law (Conviser Law Center) – 565 W. Adams St.); Wheaton (Rice 
Campus), and Bedford Park (Moffett Campus – Institute of Food Safety & Health). 

STRUCTURE ● The plan of finance contemplates that the Series 2022 Bonds will be underwritten by RBC Capital 
Markets, LLC (the “Underwriter”) and sold through a public offering in one or more series or subseries.  
The Underwriter is contemplating sale of the Bonds with an investment grade rating based on Illinois 
Tech’s underlying ‘Baa3’ rating (Moody’s).    

CREDIT 

INDICATORS/ 
SECURITY  

● Illinois Tech’s current long-term rating is ‘Baa3’ (Moody’s) as was most recently affirmed as of August 5, 
2021, with a Stable Outlook.   

● Illinois Tech plans to apply to Moody’s for a long-term rating on the proposed IFA Series 2022 Bonds. 
● Illinois Tech’s current underlying long-term debt rating is ‘Baa3’ from Moody’s (and equivalent to “BBB-

”).   
● The Series 2022 Bonds will be an unsecured General Obligation of Illinois Tech, payable from any of its 

revenues.   
INTEREST RATE ● Fixed interest rates to be determined based on market conditions at the time of pricing.   
MATURITY ● For IFA Bond Resolution parameter purposes, not to exceed 40 years from the date of issuance.    

● Illinois Tech currently plans to maintain the existing final maturity date (i.e., November 1, 2033) on the 
Series 2018 Bonds to be refunded with the Series 2022 Bonds. 

 ● The current plan is to structure payments that result in level annual savings compared to the outstanding 
Series 2018 Bonds (which currently bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.60%).   

 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 127



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 2   Rich Frampton  
 

      
SOURCES AND USES 
(PRELIMINARY AS OF 

2/1/2022, SUBJECT TO 

CHANGE) 
 
 
 
 

Sources: 
IFA Series 2022 Bonds –   
Par Amount 

Premium 
 
 
Total 

 
 

$31,825,000 
6,457,000 

 
 

$38,282,000 

Uses: 
Refunding Escrow - IFA Series 2018 

Bonds 
Prepayment Termination 
Costs of Issuance 
 
Total 

 
 

$35,432,000 
2,403,000 

447,000 
 

$38,282,000 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION Peer Review Committee recommends approval. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 128



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 3   Rich Frampton  
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT 

February 8, 2022 
 

INFORMATIONAL – PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
 

Project: Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

STATISTICS 
 

Project Number: 12528 Amount: Not to exceed $50,000,000  
Type: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  IFA Staff: Rich Frampton  
Location: Chicago County/ 
  Region: Cook County/Northeast   

BOARD ACTION 
 
Final Bond Resolution (One-Time Consideration) No Extraordinary Conditions  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  No IFA Funds at Risk 
Peer Review Committee recommends approval  
 

IFA PRODUCT – CONDUIT 501(c)(3) REVENUE BONDS 
 
501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital 
projects that will be used to further their organizational mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-
exempt status on interest earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest 
expense. 

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require IRS Section 146 Volume Cap. 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 
 
Structure: The IFA Series 2022 Bonds will be unsecured general obligations of Illinois Tech payable from 

any of its revenues, and such Bonds will be issued under and secured by the terms set forth in the 
Trust Indenture.   

 
Illinois Tech anticipates the Bonds will be underwritten by RBC Capital Markets, LLC (the 
“Underwriter”) and sold as fixed rate bonds with multiple maturities.  
 

Security/Ratings: 
 Illinois Tech and the University’s financing team are planning to market and sell the Series 2022 

Bonds based on the direct, underlying rating of Illinois Tech (currently ‘Baa3’/Stable, affirmed 
(Moody’s) as of 8/5/2021).     

  
 Illinois Tech has applied for a direct underlying bond rating from Moody’s on the proposed IFA 

Series 2022 Bonds.   
 
Interest Rate:  It is anticipated that the Bonds shall bear interest at one or more stated fixed interest rates which 

will be determined based on market conditions at the time of pricing based on each maturity and 
on the direct, rated bond structure selected by the University. 

 
Maturity: Pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the not-to-exceed parameter on the final maturity date for the 

IFA Series 2022 Bonds is set at not later than 40 years from the date of issuance.  (Note:  Illinois 
Tech and the financing team anticipate retaining the existing final maturity date of 11/1/2033 
established for the Series 2018 Bonds.) 

 
Estimated  
Closing Date:  February or March 2022 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 129



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 4   Rich Frampton  
 
 
Rationale: The Series 2022 Refunding Bonds will allow the University to streamline and conform its 

financial covenants across its debt obligations.  Additionally, the proposed Series 2022 Refunding 
Bonds will enable Illinois Tech to modestly reduce its annual scheduled payments on the Series 
2022 Bonds based on market conditions reported as of 2/1/2022.   

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Description: The Illinois Institute of Technology (“IIT”, “Illinois Tech”, or the “University”) is a private co-
educational, non-sectarian institution of higher learning located in Chicago.  The University was 
established in 1940 through the merger of the Armour Institute of Technology and the Lewis 
Institute.  The Institute of Design, founded in 1937, joined the University in 1949.  The Chicago-
Kent College of Law merged with the University in 1969. 

 
The Borrower is a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit corporation exempt from federal income taxes under 
the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Illinois Tech is governed by a 40-member Board of Trustees (comprised of Board Officers, 
University Regents, and Board Trustees), 32 Life Trustees, and 15 Trustees Emeritus (see pp. 7-8). 
 

New Illinois  
Tech Leadership: On August 16, 2021, the University named Dr. Rajagopal “Raj” Echambadi as its tenth president, 

and ex officio officer of the Board of Trustees.  An internationally renowned business-innovation 
expert and in his most recent position as Dean at Northeastern University’s School of Business, 
Dr. Echambadi led the development of innovative new programs including a significant increase 
in interdisciplinary combined degree offerings. Prior to joining Northeastern, Echambadi served as 
the Alan J. and Joyce D. Baltz Professor and the senior associate dean of strategic innovation at 
Gies College of Business at the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign where he was a 
driving force behind the University of Illinois’ scaled online M.B.A. (iMBA) program.  He holds a 
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering and a Master of Business Administration from 
Anna University in India, and a doctorate in marketing from the University of Houston.    
 

Background: The University’s main campus (now known as the “Mies Campus”) is located approximately four 
miles south of downtown Chicago just east of the Dan Ryan Expressway (I-90/I-94) and consists 
of a 128-acre complex of approximately 50 buildings based on a master plan developed by 
Ludwig Mies van der Rohe.   

  
In 1991, the University opened its “Rice Campus” in Wheaton, Illinois.  The Rice Campus offers 
engineering, computer science, and applied technology courses aimed at working professionals.   
 
In 1992, the University opened its Downtown Campus at 565 W. Adams Street which houses the 
Chicago-Kent College of Law, Stuart Graduate School of Business, and the IIT Institute of 
Design.   
 
In 1988, IIT established its Moffett Campus in Bedford Park, which provides degree and 
certification programs in food safety and technology, after CPC International, Inc. donated this 
corporate research facility to the University.  
 
IIT offers its degreed educational programs through the following colleges: 
 

 Armour College of Engineering 
 Chicago-Kent College of Law 
 College of Architecture 
 Lewis College of Science and Letters 
 Institute of Design 
 College of Computing (launched in June 2020) 
 Stuart School of Business. 

 
Illinois Tech is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission, which most recently affirmed 
Illinois Tech’s accreditation (for 10 years) in 2016.  In addition to comprehensive, University-

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 130



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 5   Rich Frampton  
 

wide accreditation, Illinois Tech’s various academic units and professional programs are 
accredited or approved by their respective specialty accrediting organizations.   

 
 Illinois Tech has made a concerted effort to attract and retain students of strong academic 

standing.  The results of this effort have been evidenced by steady upward trends in standardized 
entrance test scores (SAT and ACT) of the University’s incoming freshman class.  Specifically, 
the average SAT/ACT composite scores posted by incoming freshmen improved from 1235/28 for 
2016-2017 to 1310/29 for 2021-2022. 

 
Illinois Tech’s enrollment, particularly at the graduate level, has been adversely impacted in recent 
years by visa issues among its international students.  In response, the University made a strategic 
decision to focus on building its domestic, undergraduate enrollment.  Consistent with this plan, 
Illinois Tech’s freshman enrollments had been on an upward trajectory prior to the COVID-19 
pandemic, with incoming freshman enrollments increasing from 505 in 2016-2017 to 608 in 2018-
2019 and 584 in 2019-2020.  Concurrent with the onset of COVID-19 (and related measures), 
incoming freshman enrollment declined to 517 in 2020-2021 and 507 in 2021-2022).     

 
In a positive recent enrollment development, in October 2021, the University reported total full-
time equivalent enrollment (FTE enrollment) of 5,884 students (including undergraduate, law 
students, and graduate students), a 3.6% increase over the 5,666 FTEs enrolled in Fall 2020 (FY 
2021).     
 

Selected Rankings 
& Recognition: See the following link for a comprehensive posting of Illinois Tech’s public and professional 

recognition:  https://www.iit.edu/about/rankings-and-recognition/numbers  
 

 Opportunity Insights:  #1 in Illinois and #32 Nationally for Lifting Students from Families 
in the Bottom 20% of Income to the Top 20% 

 U.S. News & World Report:  #42 Best Value National Universities (research institutions that 
offer undergraduate, master’s, and doctoral degrees) and “among the top 60 National 
Universities with the highest campus ethnic diversity”. 

 Forbes:  Top 25 STEM Colleges 2018 
 Brookings Institution:  #1 in Occupational (mid-career) Earnings Power of any field 

(irrespective of major) compared to the following Chicago-region universities:  The 
University of Chicago; Northwestern University, and The University of Notre Dame.  

 PayScale:  ranked Illinois Tech as #2 in Illinois and #83 nationally in the 20-year Net Return 
on Investment after Financial Aid (among Private Colleges, Illinois Tech ranked #1 in Illinois 
and #39 nationally) 

 Illinois Tech was recognized as one of the first area colleges to participate in the Chicago Star 
Scholarship program for community college students.   

 
Research  
Institutes 
& Affiliations: Illinois Tech operates several research institutes (described below) and the University Technology 

Park at Illinois Tech.  Finally, the University houses the IIT Research Institute (d/b/a “IITRI”), 
which is an independent, 501(c)(3) not-for-profit contract research organization that is a stand-
alone corporate entity that is affiliated with the University but has its own stand-alone board and 
corporate status.   

 
 Ed Kaplan Family Institute for Innovation and Tech Entrepreneurship (the “Kaplan 

Institute”):  Illinois Tech held a ribbon-cutting event for the new, two-story, 70,000 SF 
Kaplan Institute facility in October 2018.  The new Kaplan Institute was the first new 
academic building to open on Illinois Tech’s main campus in over 40 years.  The mission of 
the Kaplan Institute is to serve as a hub for discovery, innovation, and business creation, 
giving students the skills and experience needed to make their innovations commercially 
viable.   

 The Institute for Food Safety and Health (IFSH) – Moffett Campus, Bedford Park, 
Illinois:  is a world-renowned food science research institute focusing on food safety, food 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 131



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 6   Rich Frampton  
 

defense, and nutrition for stakeholders in government, industry, and academia located in 
Bedford Park. 

 Pritzker Institute of Biomedical Science and Engineering is an umbrella organization that 
supports biomedical science and engineering research activities at Illinois Tech. 

 Wanger Institute for Sustainable Energy Research (WISER) is an umbrella organization 
that supports energy and sustainability research with educational activities across the colleges 
and institutes at Illinois Tech. 

 University Technology Park (“UTP”) at Illinois Tech is a state-of-the-art, 4-building 
research park composed of 300,000 SF of laboratories, office space, and an incubator to assist 
science and technology startups and growing businesses.   In partnership with Illinois Tech, 
companies enjoy access to state-of-the-art analytical equipment inside the University’s core 
labs. 
o Opened in 2011 after an award-winning restoration of the historic Mies van der Rohe 

building, the Incubator offers 33,000 square feet of world-class space.  Inside the 
Incubator are Steelcase-furnished labs and offices for lease, including office suites, 9 dry 
labs, and 19 wet labs with adjacent office space (750 SF to 2,000 SF) for rent.   

 IIT Research Institute (“IITRI”) is an independent, not-for-profit, contract research 
organization focusing on the life sciences, including pharmaceutical, biotech, veterinary, 
agrichemical and nutraceuticals industries.  IITRI is a stand-alone 501(c)(3) corporate entity 
that had approximately $3.88 million of IFA Bonds outstanding as of 5/31/2021 (which are a 
direct obligation of IITRI). 

 
Outstanding  
IFA Bond  
Issues:  As of the University’s most recent audit report (as of 5/31/2021), the University had 

approximately $157.253MM of IFA Bonds outstanding, comprised of (i) the outstanding balance 
of the IFA Series 2019 Bonds (approximately $120MM) and (ii) the University’s IFA Series 2018 
Bonds ($35.432MM as of 1/1/2022), which will be refunded upon issuance of the IFA Series 2022 
Bonds.  Payments on all outstanding and prior IFA (IEFA) Bond issues have been paid as 
scheduled.  The above-referenced outstanding balance excludes IITRI’s outstanding $3.880MM 
IFA Series 2014 Bonds (although not direct Illinois Tech debt, IITRI is a subsidiary of Illinois 
Tech and an operating unit reported as part Illinois Tech’s consolidated financial report).   

 
 Payments on all outstanding and prior IFA (IEFA) Bonds have been paid as scheduled. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION 
 
The proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to Illinois Institute of Technology, an Illinois not for profit corporation 
(the “Corporation”), and will be used, together with certain other moneys, to (i) refund all or a portion of the 
outstanding Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 2018 (Illinois Institute of Technology) (the “Series 
2018 Bonds”), (ii) pay a portion of the interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Authority or 
the Corporation, (iii) fund a debt service reserve fund, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Authority or the 
Corporation, and (iv) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, including the costs 
of bond insurance or other credit or liquidity enhancement, if any, and certain expenses incurred in connection with 
the refunding of the Series 2018 Bonds. 
 
The initial owner and principal user of the facilities being financed, refinanced or reimbursed with the proceeds of 
the Bonds is the Corporation and such facilities are and will be located on land owned or principally used by the 
Corporation, located at (i) the Corporation’s main campus (the “Main Campus”), bordered generally by 30th Street 
on the north, 35th Street on the south, the Metra Rock Island Railroad tracks on the west and Michigan Avenue on 
the east in Chicago, Illinois; and (ii) the Corporation’s downtown campus located at 565 West Adams Street, 
Chicago, Illinois.  The State Street Addresses are located on the Main Campus. 
 
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 

Applicant: Illinois Institute of Technology, 10 W. 35th Street, Suite 1900, Chicago, IL 60616 
Contact: Mr. Jeffrey Bethke, Interim Vice President for Finance and CFO, 10 West 35th St., Suite 1900, 

Chicago, IL 60616; (T) +1 312.567.3825; email:  jbethke@iit.edu   
Website: http://www.iit.edu 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 132



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 7   Rich Frampton  
 
Project name:  IFA Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds (Illinois Tech Project), Series 2022 
 
Governance: Illinois Tech’s Board Officers, Regents, and Trustees are listed below (as of 1/19/2021) – 

(Life Trustees and Trustees Emeritus are reported on p. 8): 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officers
Name Profession Role

Michael P. Galvin President, Galvin Enterprises Chairman of the Board

Raj Echambadi President

Ellen M. Jordan CEO, Global Grounds, LLC Vice Chair

Thomas E. Lanctot CEO, Catholic Investments Services Vice Chair

University Regents
Name Profession

Craig J. Duchossois Executive Chair, Duchossois Group

John W. Rowe Chairman Emeritus, Exelon Corp

Ralph Wanger RW Investments

Alan W. Wendorf Former Chairman, President and CEO, Sargent & Lundy

Trustees
Name Profession

Jimmy A. Akintonde President and CEO, Ujamaa Construction Inc.

Judson B. Althoff Executive VP Worldwide Commercial Business, Microsoft

Carson Block Founder and Investment Officer, Muddy Waters Capital

Kathleen Brandenburg Founder and Chief Design Strategy Officer, IA Collaborative

Frank M. Clark Managing Partner, Centurion Enterprises Group

Jim Dugan CEO, Co-Founder and Managing Partner, OCA Ventures

Carter H. Eckert

Daniel R. Ephraim President, Modern Process Equipment Corporation

Michael J. Graff Chairman and CEO, American Air Liquide Holdings

Robert D. Hoel

Stacey M. Kacek CEO, Intelligent

Peter M. Kelly Project Director, Middough Inc.

Steven Keogh President, Commercial Risk Solutions, Aon plc

Karen R. Klein Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary, Relativity

Ted Koenig President and CEO, Monroe Capital

Amanda Lannert CEO, Jellyvision

Richard Neil Levy CEO and Founder, Victory Park Capital

Douglas Michael Monieson Executive Chairman, UICO LLC

Jenny Niemann President and CEO, Forward Space

Victoria L. Noonan Managing Principal and Chicago Market Leader, Cushman & Wakefield

Michael J. Palumbo Chairman and President, MJP Capital

Rohit Prasad Senior VP and Head Scientist, Amazon Alexa, Amazon Inc

Mayari Pritzker President, Robert and Mayari Pritzker Family Foundation

Victor Tsao Founder and President, Miven Venture Partners

Mark P. Sexton FAIA, LEED, Krueck+Sexton Architects

Stephen Urrutia Managing Director and Operation Executive, JP Morgan Chase

Eric G. Vassilatos Co-Owner, Skybox Capital

Pallavi Verma Senior Managing Director, North America Workplace, Accenture

John C. Walden CEO, Inversion LLC

Brian C. Walker Chief Product Officer, W.W. Grainger Inc.

Kevin Willer Partner, Chicago Ventures

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 133



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 8   Rich Frampton  
 
 
 
 
 
Illinois Tech – Governance – Life Trustees and Trustees Emeritus – as of 1/19/2022: 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 134



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 9   Rich Frampton  
 

 
 
 

Life Trustees
Name Profession

Andrea L. Berry

John P. Calamos Founder, Chairman, CEO and Co-CIO, Calamos Asset Management

Martin Cooper Chairman, Dyna, LLC

Robert A. Cornog

James E. Cowie Collegis Education - Chicago

David L. Crowell Managing Director, Cotter Consulting

Bryan R. Dunn President and CEO, Kinship Trust Company

S. Christopher Gladwin CEO, Ocient

James Gagnard Managing Director, Rocket Wagon Industrial loT Studio

Jamshyd N. Godrej Chairman and Managing Director, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company

Marc R. Hannah Partner, SUDA LLC

Martin C. Jischke President Emeritus, Purdue University

Norbert O. Kaiser Chairman of the Board, SSWhite Dental

Edward L. Kaplan President, Nalpak Ventures

Patrick J. Kelly CEO, DP Holdings

Kaarina Koshenalusta CEO, Global Initiatives Partners

Joel D. Krauss

John H. Krehbiel Jr. Partner, KF Partners

Eric C. Larson Chairman, Tilia Holdings

Sherrie B. Littlejohn

Bruce C. Liimatainen

Rosemarie Mitchell

Victor A. Morgenstern President, Resolute Advisors

Anita M. Nagler

John G. Olin Chairman and Founder, Sierra Instruments

Robert J. Potter President, R.J. Potter Company

Harold Singleton

Carole Browe Segal President, Segal Family Foundation

Carl S. Spetzler CEO, Strategic Decisions Group

Efthimios J. Stojka

David J. Vitale

Robert Washlow Manager, Bay West Management

Trustee Emeritus
Name

John L. Anderson

Harold A. Bergen

Heather Bilandic Black

S.R. Cho

Lewis M. Collens

Alvin L. Gorman

Donald R. Hollis

James W. Kiley

Dirk Lohan

Adrian R. Nemcek

Ilana D. Rovner

John R. Schmidt

Bernard F. Sergesketter

William A. VanSanten Jr.

Priscilla Anne Walter

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 135



Illinois Institute of Technology (d/b/a “Illinois Tech”)  Project Report for Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 10   Rich Frampton  
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Auditor: Crowe LLP Chicago, IL Stuart Miller 
Borrower’s Counsel: Perkins Coie LLP Chicago, IL Christine Biebel 
Financial Advisor to  
  Borrower: Swap Financial New York, NY Nat Singer 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Nancy Burke 
Underwriter: RBC Capital Markets LLC Chicago, IL Christopher Good 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP Chicago, IL Chad Doobay  
Rating Agency Moody’s Investors Service New York, NY Patrick McCabe 
Bond Trustee: Bank of New York Mellon Chicago, IL Alvin Courts 
IFA Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP Chicago, IL Thomas Smith 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS - (Original Illinois Tech Series 2018/Series 2022 Bond Project sites only) 

Main (Mies) Campus – Chicago – 10 W. 35th St., Chicago, IL 60616 
Congressional:       1 
State Senate:     13 
State House:   26 
 
565 W. Adams - Chicago – Downtown Campus (Conviser Law Center) 
Congressional:    7 
State Senate:    5 
State House:    9 

PROJECT SITE MAPS FOR ILLINOIS TECH’S SERIES 2022 REFUNDING BONDS  

 

              Source:  Bing Maps 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 136



 
Memorandum 

 

To:  Authority Members 
 

From:  Lorrie Karcher 
 

Date:  February 8, 2022 
 

Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

 

 Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

 Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

 Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

 Amount:  Up to $575,400 maximum of new money for each project 
 

 Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 

 Total Requested: $575,400 
 

 Calendar Year Activity Summary: (as of February 8, 2022) 
– Volume Cap:  $TBD (Note:  IFA allocation request/award pending for CY 2022) 
– Volume Cap Committed:  $TBD 
– Volume Cap Remaining:   $TBD 
– Average Farm Acreage:  72 
– Number of Farms Financed:  1 

 

 Benefits: 
–  Succession Planning for next generation of young farmers 
–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct Authority or State funds at risk 
–  New Money Bonds:   

– Authority conveys tax-exempt, municipal bond status onto the financing  
– Will use dedicated 2022 Authority Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer Bond transactions  

 

 Authority Fees:   
 One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each financing.  
 

 Structure/Ratings:  
 Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s bank (the 

“Bank”) 
 The Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan (typically 1st Mortgage) 
 Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Bank, as with a commercial 

loan 
 Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured commercial loan 
 Note:  Commercial Banks frequently pair Beginning Farmer Bonds with two programs offered by the U.S. 

Department of Agriculture’s (USDA’s) Farm Service Agency (“FSA”).  (1) The FSA’s Down Payment 
Assistance Loan Program provides for a 5% Equity-45% FSA Subordinate Loan-50% Bank-Purchased 
Beginning Farmer Bond structure for first-time farmers.  (2) The FSA’s Participation Loan Program provides 
a 50% Bank (Beginning Farmer Bond) -50% FSA Participation Loan and requires no borrower equity.  The 
FSA’s Down Payment Assistance Loan rate is 1.50% fixed.  The FSA Participation Loan rate is 2.50% fixed.  
The FSA is the unit of the U.S. Department of Agriculture that manages farm credit and loan programs. 

 

 Bond Counsel: Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. - 70 West Madison, Suite 4300, Chicago, IL  60602 
Contact:  Martin T. Burns 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 137



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2 February 8, 2022 
 Lorrie Karcher 
 
A. Project Number:  30448 
Borrower(s): Tjelle, Mason 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Dwight, IL 
Authority Bond Amount: $575,400.00 
Use of Funds: Farmland –72 acres of farmland 
Purchase Price: $700,000 / $9,722 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 0%    
% Authority Bonds 82% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% Other 18% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage with State Bank of Graymont) 
Township: Dwight 
Counties/Regions: Livingston / North Central 
Bond Purchaser: The State Bank of Graymont 
Lender Contact:  Brandon Tate 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    16 
 State Senate:       53 
 State House:     106 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty-year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin April 1, 2023. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with 
the first interest payment date to begin one April 1, 2023 with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances 
due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 138



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2022  
   
To: William Hobert, Chair Roger Poole 
 Peter Amaro Timothy Ryan  
 Drew Beres Eduardo Tobon  
 James J. Fuentes Jennifer Watson 
 Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler 
 Roxanne Nava Jeffrey Wright 
 George Obernagel Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Brad R. Fletcher, Vice President 
 
Subject: Issuance of Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds 
 
At the request of Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the 
“Capital Provider” or “Initial Purchaser”), I transmit herewith a Property Assessed Clean Energy 
(“PACE”) Bond Resolution authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds by the Illinois Finance Authority 
to be purchased by the Capital Provider or its designated transferee. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher           
Vice President 
 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 139



Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC   PACE Bond Resolution 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 2   Brad R. Fletcher 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT 

February 8, 2022 
 
Capital Provider: Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BOARD ACTION 
 

PACE Bond Resolution (One-Time Consideration)  Amount: Not to exceed $200,000,000 
No extraordinary conditions.  No IFA funds at risk. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the PACE Bond Resolution presented for consideration in connection with bond 
issuances to be purchased by the Capital Provider or its designated transferee. 
 _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE 
 
Proceeds of the Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds will be loaned to record owners of privately-
owned commercial, industrial, non-residential agricultural, or multi-family (of 5 or more units) real property to 
finance “energy projects” as defined under the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act, 50 ILCS 50/1 et seq. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

AUTHORITY PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 
 
Under Illinois law, a record owner of a commercial property may voluntarily enter into an assessment contract with 
a governmental unit in order to finance or refinance up to 100% of the commercial property owner’s energy 
efficiency, renewable energy, and water conservation projects through the issuance of PACE bonds.  Program 
administrators administer commercial property assessed clean energy programs on behalf of or at the discretion of 
counties or municipalities to facilitate access to capital within their jurisdictions.  
 
Governmental units permissively assign assessment contracts to the Illinois Finance Authority for its standardized, 
efficient, and affordable PACE bond financing services, which PACE bonds are issued pursuant to subsection (d) of 
Section 825-65 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq., in accordance with the Property 
Assessed Clean Energy Act. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

VOLUME CAP 
 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds do not require volume cap. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

JOB DATA 
 

N/A Current Jobs  N/A New Jobs Protected 
N/A Retained Jobs  * Construction Jobs Projected 

 
*The Authority reasonably anticipates reporting at a later time the amount of construction jobs, if any, created as a 
result of energy projects financed by the Authority’s bond proceeds. 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 140



Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC   PACE Bond Resolution 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 3   Brad R. Fletcher 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ESTIMATED SOURCES & USES 
   
Sources:   Uses:  
PACE Bonds $200,000,000  Energy Project Costs (including 

but not limited to Capitalized 
Interest and/or Debt Service 
Reserve Funds, if any) 

$200,000,000 

Total $200,000,000  Total $200,000,000 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

FINANCING SUMMARY 
 
The conduit transactions authorized by the PACE Bond Resolution will not be rated.  The plan of finance 
contemplates that the Capital Provider, as an institutional Accredited Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer, will 
purchase the Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds in minimum denominations of $100,000 or more.  
PACE bonds will be issued pursuant to Issuance Certificates under a Master Indenture specific to the Capital 
Provider. 
 
The aggregate principal amount, final maturity date, and the interest rate or rates for each energy project funded by 
bond proceeds shall be as set forth in the Issuance Certificates.   
 
The Capital Provider or its designated transferee will be secured by assessment contracts which constitute liens 
against properties against which assessments are imposed and recorded in the office of the applicable County 
Recorder.  The lien of the assessment contract shall run with the property until the assessment is paid in full and a 
satisfaction or release for the same has been recorded by the governmental unit or its program administrator and 
shall have the same lien priority and status as other property tax and special assessment liens as provided in the 
Property Tax Code.   
 
The Capital Provider or its designated transferee shall have and possess the delegable powers and rights at law or in 
equity as the applicable governmental unit would have if the assessment contract had not been assigned with regard 
to (i) the precedence and priority of liens evidenced by the assessment contract, (ii) the accrual of interest, and (iii) 
the fees and expenses of collection.   
   
Mortgage holder consent is required. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 
As amended, supplemented, modified or replaced, the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act states that an energy 
project means the acquisition, construction, installation, or modification of an alternative energy improvement, 
energy efficiency improvement, renewable energy improvement, or water use improvement affixed to real property 
(including new construction).   
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 
 
Under Illinois law, an evaluation of the existing water or energy use and a modeling of expected monetary savings is 
required for any proposed energy efficiency improvement, renewable energy improvement, or water use 
improvement, unless the water use improvement is undertaken to improve water quality, before a record owner of 
commercial property may enter into an assessment contract with a governmental unit. 
 
By entering into assessment contracts with governmental units, record owners expect the monetary savings to be 
greater than the repayment costs of certain, but not all, energy projects financed or refinanced through assessments 
imposed upon their respective properties. 
  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 141



Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate LLC   PACE Bond Resolution 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2022 
Page 4   Brad R. Fletcher 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 
Record Owners: Names of (a) shareholders holding more than 7.5% of equity interests, or (b) all general partners 

(if the record owner is a partnership), or (c) members holding more than 7.5% of the economic or 
voting interest of the record owner (if the record owner is a limited liability company), or (d) if the 
record owner or any property financed would be a land trust, an identification of the trust and all 
beneficiaries of the trust including the percentage of beneficial interest of each beneficiary of the 
trust, will be reported to the Authority’s Secretary (or Assistant Secretary).   

 
Capital Provider 
  Ownership:  Please see the confidential section of this Project Summary Report. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
   
Capital Provider: Counterpointe Sustainable Real    

  Estate, LLC 
Old Greenwich, CT Eric Alini 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SERVICE AREA 

 
The PACE Bond Resolution authorizes the Capital Provider or its designated transferee to purchase PACE Bonds 
issued by the Authority for energy projects statewide. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
 
Congressional: TBD 
State Senate: TBD 
State House: TBD 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 142



 
 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

To: Members of the Authority 
 
From: Sara D. Perugini 
 
Date: February 8, 2022 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing and Approving Amendments to the Bond Trust Indenture relating to the Illinois 

Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc.) 
 Authority 2017 File Number: 12373 
 
The Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has issued the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2017 (Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc.) in an aggregate principal amount of $52,070,000 (the 
“Bonds”), of which $34,220,000 are currently outstanding, for the benefit of Covenant Living Communities and 
Services, f/k/a Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc. (the “Borrower”) pursuant to the Bond Trust Indenture 
dated as of February 1, 2017, as supplemented and amended by the First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture dated 
as of October 1, 2019 (the “Existing Bond Indenture”), between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as 
bond trustee (the “Bond Trustee”). 
 
All of the Bonds were purchased by Banc of America Public Capital Corp (the “Purchaser”) and currently bear 
interest at a rate equal to the LIBOR Index Rate (as defined in the Existing Bond Indenture) which is determined 
according to a formula which includes, among other things, a percentage of the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(“LIBOR”) plus a credit spread.  The Bonds bear interest at the LIBOR Index Rate until a Mandatory Tender Date 
(as defined in the Existing Bond Indenture) of December 1, 2029. 
 
Due to the cessation of LIBOR tenors, in part, and the forthcoming cessation of the remaining LIBOR tenors prior to 
the Mandatory Tender Date, the Borrower and the Purchaser wish to change the market index that is used to 
determine the interest rate on the Bonds from LIBOR to the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index (“BSBY”), 
administered by Bloomberg Index Services Limited, by amending the definitions of the Existing Bond Indenture, 
changing references to certain defined terms in the Existing Bond Indenture and permitting the execution of 
indentures supplemental to the Existing Bond Indenture, in each case, to implement the change from LIBOR to 
BSBY or any other alternative market index (collectively, the “Amendments”).   
 
The Amendments will not cause the Bonds to be deemed reissued (the “No Reissuance Determination”) for 
purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).   
 
The proposed resolution of the Authority will approve (i) the Amendments and (ii) the execution and delivery by the 
Authority of (a) a supplement to the Existing Bond Indenture, (b) a replacement Bond and (c) any additional 
documents necessary in order to implement the Amendments (including a tax certificate if any changes to the Code 
require Chapman and Cutler LLP to reverse its No Reissuance Determination). 
 
The supplement to the Existing Bond Indenture is authorized by the existing terms of the Bond Indenture.  The 
Purchaser has agreed to approve the Amendments by executing a consent to the execution and delivery of a 
supplement to the Existing Bond Indenture. 
 
Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the Amendments will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of any of the Bonds. 
 
The Peer Review Committee recommends approval of the accompanying resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 143



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE 
 
2022 Board of Directors: 
 
Sarah Bentley    
Kathy Buettner    
Pamela Christensen     
Janet Creaney    
Terri Cunliffe     
Lorene Flewellen    
John Fredrickson    
Janet Hoffman     
Kurt Kincanon     
Matt Manlove      
Robert Martin     
Jennifer Means     
Mary Palmer     
LoAnn Peterson    
Sue Poston    
Dixie Reppe     
Todd Slechta     
Andrew Vanove    
John Wenrich    
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower’s Counsel:  Erickson Peterson Cramer St. Paul, MN Julie Peterson 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL  John Bibby 
     Latrice Baptiste 
Bank:  Banc of America Public Capital Corp.   Chicago, IL Sylvia Rodrigo 
Bank Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP  Chicago, IL Chad Doobay 
Issuer’s Counsel: Sanchez Daniels & Hoffman LP Chicago, IL Heather Erickson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 144



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

To: Members of the Authority 
 
From: Sara D. Perugini 
 
Date: February 8, 2022 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Amendment and Restatement of the Loan Agreement relating to the 

$15,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 2010A (Silver Cross Hospital and Medical 
Centers) and Approving Related Matters 

 Authority 2010 File Number: H-HO-TE-CD-8417 
 
The Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has previously issued the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue 
Bond, Series 2010A (Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers) in an aggregate principal amount of $15,000,000 
(the “Series 2010A Bond”), of which $9,335,000 is currently outstanding, pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of 
December 1, 2010, as previously supplemented and amended (the “Loan Agreement”), among the Authority, 
Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Corporation”) and PNC 
Bank, National Association, purchaser and current sole bondholder of the Series 2010A Bond (the “Purchaser”), 
for the benefit of the Corporation. 
 
All of the Series 2010A Bond was directly purchased by the Purchaser and bears interest at a variable rate of interest 
based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) for an initial term ending December 1, 2022 with reset 
provisions thereafter. 
 
The Corporation and the Purchaser are requesting the approval of a resolution to authorize the execution and 
delivery of (i) an amendment and restatement to the Loan Agreement (the “Amended and Restated Loan 
Agreement”) (a) to, due to the cessation of LIBOR tenors, in part, and the forthcoming cessation of the remaining 
LIBOR tenors, effectuate a change in the interest rate formula borne on the Series 2010A Bond that is based on 
LIBOR to an interest rate formula borne on the Series 2010A Bond that is based on the Bloomberg Short Term Bank 
Yield Index (“BSBY”), administered by Bloomberg Index Services Limited, and other elements of the interest rate 
formula that are applied to calculate the interest rate on the Series 2010A Bond, (b) to extend the initial term for 
which the Purchaser will own the Series 2010A Bond to a date that is five years after the February 2022 effective 
date of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement or to any other date that is mutually acceptable to the 
Corporation and the Purchaser, and (c) to amend certain standard provisions of the Loan Agreement to conform to 
the Authority’s current requirements (collectively, the “Amendments”), (ii) a replacement Series 2010A Bond in 
connection with the Amendments, and (iii) any additional documents (including a tax certificate required in 
connection with a deemed tax reissuance of the Series 2010A Bond) necessary or appropriate in order to implement 
the Amendments.  
 
The proposed resolution of the Authority will approve (i) the Amendments and (ii) the execution and delivery by the 
Authority of (a) the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, (b) a replacement Series 2010A Bond and (c) any 
additional documents (including a tax certificate required in connection with a deemed tax reissuance of the Series 
2010A Bond) necessary or appropriate in order to implement the Amendments.   
 
The Corporation’s and the Purchaser’s execution of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement will evidence their 
approval and consent to the Amendments. 
 
As a result of the Amendments, the Series 2010A Bond will be deemed reissued for purposes of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the 
Amendments will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Series 2010A Bond.   
 
The Peer Review Committee recommends approval of the accompanying resolution. 
 
 
 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 145



Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers   Resolution Authorizing Amendments 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  February 8, 2022  
Page 2  Sara D. Perugini 
 
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE 
 
2022 Officers: 

John Phelan, Chairman, (Effective November 30, 2020) 
Ruth Colby, President/Chief Executive Officer 
Jean Kenol, First Vice Chairman 
Michael Scudder, Second Vice Chairman  
Susan Prock, Secretary 
David Mikolajczak, D.O., Treasurer 
Vince Pryor, Assistant Treasurer 
 
2022 Directors: 
 
Ms. Ruth Colby 
Judge Vincent Cornelius 
Mr. Terry D’Arcy 
Mr. Douglas Hutchison, Jr. ((Emeritus) 
Jean Kenol 
Dr. David Livingston 
Dr. David Mikolajczak D.O. 
Dr. Judith Mitchell 
Dr. Corinne Nawrocki, D.O. 
Mr. John Phelan 
Ms. Susan Prock 
Mr. Michael Scudder 
Mr. Mark Stofan  (Emeritus) 
Denise Winfrey 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower’s Counsel:  Foley & Lardner LLP Chicago, IL Laura Bilas 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL  Rich Tomei 
     Latrice Baptiste 
Bank:  PNC Bank, National Association Lancing, MI Chris Cramer 
Bank Counsel Chapman and Cutler LLP  Chicago, IL Carol Thompson 
Issuer’s Counsel: Nixon Peabody LLP  Chicago, IL Julie Seymour 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 146



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

To:  Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”) 
 
From:  Richard K. Frampton, Executive Vice President 
  Ximena Granda, Manager of Finance & Administration 
  Stanley Luboff, Senior Advisor Federal UST/SSBCI Programs   
 
Date: February 8, 2021 
 
Subject: Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Take Actions to Apply to the Illinois 

Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for a Sub-Allocation of State Small 
Business Credit Initiative (“SSBCI”) Funds from the U.S. Department of the Treasury 
and to Establish a Participation Loan Product and Other Financial Products Using Such 
Funds in Furtherance of Climate Bank Purposes, and Other Matters Related Thereto  

Background  

President Joseph Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”) into law 
effective March 11, 2020. Within this legislation, the State Small Business Credit Initiative, 
(“SSBCI”), of the Small Jobs Act of 2010 was amended and reauthorized, (Title IV, Subtitle C, 
Sec. 4201). Funding under this legislation is designated to provide credit support and risk-
sharing between states and private sector financial institutions/investors on small business 
development creation/expansion projects.  

The State of Illinois is eligible for a base allocation of over $261MM, with additional potential 
allocations for certain targeted purposes and incentives, bringing the State’s total potential award 
to over $354MM. The Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity 
(“DCEO”) has been delegated by the Governor’s Office as Illinois’ “Implementation Entity”, 
making it the main point of contact between the U.S. Department of the Treasury, (“UST”), 
and the State in receiving and administering Illinois’ projected award. 

Within its pending Application, DCEO is requesting authority to sub-allocate a total of $20MM 
of the State’s future SSBCI funding to the Authority, which plans to deploy those funds in 
support of Illinois small businesses within a structure similar to that of the Authority’s current 
Participation Loan Product, but totally separate in a manner consistent with all UST SSBCI rules 
and regulations. SSBCI funds resemble grants to the states, though their use is solely restricted to 
State programs that provide support to for-profit small businesses in a manner that follows strict 
UST SSBCI rules and regulations during the entire 7-year term of the UST Allocation 
Agreement. Upon completion of the 7-year term of the UST Allocation Agreement, funds 
successfully deployed as loans, plus any interest earned over time, will transfer from UST 
control to the State’s ownership. Thus IFA’s SSBCI-funded assets under this loan product 
initiative (as a designated sub-allocatee) successfully deployed as loans, plus any interest earned 
over time, would then become part of the Authority’s balance sheet, to be further deployed as 
IFA chooses. 

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 147



Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Take Actions to Apply to the Illinois Department of Commerce and 
Economic Opportunity for a Sub-Allocation of State Small Business Credit Initiative (“SSBCI”) Funds  
Page 2  February 8, 2022  
 

In the event the DCEO/IFA Application is approved by UST, DCEO will receive Illinois’ 
allocations in three equal tranches, with access to the second and third tranches contingent on 
Illinois deploying at least 80% of each preceding tranche within a stipulated three-year period. 
Accordingly, DCEO will have the authority to sub-allocate the above-cited $20MM to IFA, 
transferring the first $10MM upon completion of a UST/DCEO Allocation Agreement, with a 
second $10MM tranche, transferred once DCEO is able to utilize 80% of its first one-third 
tranche within the prescribed 3-year time frame.  

Pursuant to these allocations, over the term of the SSBCI program, the Authority will be eligible 
to use up to 5% of the proceeds of the first $10MM tranche, up to 3% of the second $10MM 
tranche, as well as any interest and fees earned on credit facilities funded by Authority SSBCI-
funded loans/lines of credit, to cover Authority allocated overhead expenses related to the new 
SSBCI program.  (Furthermore, any interest income earned on deposits of IFA’s “idle SSBCI 
funds” -- that is, funds awaiting deployment in small business loan activity -- may also be used to 
cover any IFA expenses, even if not in connection with the Authority’s SSBCI Participation 
Loan Fund.) 

The Authority’s New SSBCI Participation Loan Fund - Objectives 

The Authority plans to use its SSBCI Funds to capitalize a targeted small business participation 
loan product to finance for-profit companies engaged in businesses that provide or otherwise 
deploy climate, broadband, and other focused, future-based technologies necessary to attain the 
State’s long-term climate and development objectives consistent with the Authority’s designation 
as the “Climate Bank of the State” pursuant  to 20 ILCS 3501/850-15 and Illinois Public Act 
102-0662 (the “Climate and Equitable Jobs Act”).   

The anticipated product mixes would provide for the following target allocations for the 
Authority’s SSBCI Participation Loan Funds:  (1) 65% of the SSBCI Funds would be  allocated 
to Participation Loans with terms of 5 years or less; (2) 25% of the SSBCI Funds would be 
allocated to Authority/Bank Loans supporting Revolving Lines of Credit; while (3) 10% of the 
SSBCI Funds would be allocated to Participation Loans with terms of 7 to 10 years. 

The overall objective is to position these SSBCI-funded companies to help Illinois attain long-
term Climate Bank and related Authority priorities. Notably, a key objective in Treasury’s 
deployment of SSBCI Funds is to enable SSBCI allocatees to improve credit access to mission-
related businesses located in disadvantaged urban and rural communities.  

The accompanying Resolution authorizes the Executive Director to undertake all actions deemed 
necessary to apply for a sub-allocation of up to $20MM of SSBCI Funds as part of DCEO’s 
submission to UST.  

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution as presented and in furtherance of 
the Authority’s Climate Bank business plan and related revenue diversification and cost recovery 
objectives.  

Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 148


	00 Board Book Cover Template
	Board Agenda A 2021-12 (v6)
	I Roll Call
	II Approve Agenda
	02-08-22-board-notice
	III Public Comment
	IV Chair Remarks
	V Message from Executive Director
	ED Message Slipsheet
	VI Commitee Reports
	VII Presentation of New Business
	01 UCMC 2022 IFA Resolution 4883-0190-0554 v5
	02 IIT 2022 Bonds IFA Resolution 4891-9770-3946 v5
	03 Tjelle Resolution
	04 Resolution Counterpointe Sustainable Real Estate February 2022 (v1)
	05 Covenant Living Communities 2017- IFA Amendment Resolution (2022) (1)
	06 Silver Cross 2022 - 2010A Amendment Resolution
	07 SSBCI Resolution 2022-02 (v9)
	VIII Presentation of Financial Reports
	Financial Memo February Meeting  - Projected
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT Projections through 4-30-22
	FINANCIALS AUDIT A 2020 Audit Guide Extract
	FINANCIALS AUDIT B unsecure Auditor General 22-Notice-of-Intent--Group-2--11-01-21
	Treasury Report 01 - PACE Update Highland Park 2022-02 (v2)
	Treasury Report 02 - PACE Update Rosemont 2022-02 (v2)
	IX Monthly Procurement Report
	PROCUREMENT BOD monthly Procurement Report -February 2022-Final
	X Correction Approval of Minutes
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 12-14-2021 v2 Clean
	MINUTES B TILED FullIFAMeeting Minutes 12-2021 CORRECTED NOT APPROVED
	MINUTES C Voting Record 12-14-21
	XI Other Business
	PRESS BB Article 1
	PRESS BB Article 2
	PRESS BB Article 3
	XII Closed Session
	XIII Adjournment
	A00 Board Book Appendix A Cover Template
	Appendix A Agenda 2022-02 (v5)
	A01 UCMC 2022 - Project Summary Report - 1
	A02 IIT FBR 2022-02-08 (v10) Report - Feb 2022 02-01-2022 CLEAN - DIRECT RATING - NOT INSURED
	A03 PUBLIC Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 02 08 2022
	A04 Counterpointe SRE Project Summary Report 2022-02 (v2)
	A05 Covenant Living Communities 2017 Amendments (2022) - Memo
	A06 Silver Cross Series 2010A Amendments (2022) - Memo
	A07 SSBCI Intro - Feb 2022 Board Mtg 2-1-2022 (v9)



